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Foreword

When he was proffered the cup of hemlock by his fellow-citizens,
Socrates’ last words were, “Crito, I owe a cock to Asclepius; will you
remember to pay the debt?” A gentleman is responsible for his
obligations, and this book is the repayment of the efforts of three great
men who chose me as their protege—Ezra Pound, the dominant
literary figure of our time; George Stimpson, the most respected
journalist in Washington (the title has been vacant since his death);
and H. L. Hunt, whose spectacular business success blinded the public
to his brilliant philosophical achievements It was H.L.. Hunt who
invented the term “The Mistaken” for the self-corrupted members of
the new class who now control our world—he might have added that
they could also be described as “The Misshapen”, because of their
warped and perverted sense of values.

The present work is also an expression of another Greek attitude—
gratitude for life. Michael Lekakis introduced this astounding Greek
attribute to me some thirty years ago. I describe it as “astounding”,
because no one today thinks of being grateful for life. Who can
conceive of “gratitude forlife” in anexistence of eternal and worldwide
slavery imposed upon humanity by the minions of the World Order?

In “The Greek Way”, Edith Hamilton says, “Tragedy was a Greek
creation because in Greece thought was free.” We do not have tragedy
today because of the thought control imposed by the World Order.
Instead, we have “Newspeak” and “doublethink” in the world of
1984.1 was privileged to sit in on a number of conversations between
Edith Hamilton and Ezra Pound, in which the conversation was
uninhibited and far-reaching—freedom of thought in a federal
institution in which one of the talkers was held as a political prisoner!
Pound describes these talks in “The Cantos”,




“And they want to know what we talked about?
‘de litteris et de armis, praestantibusque ingeniis.”

Nietzsche also discoursed on “tragic pleasure”, which no longer
exists, because the World Order, in its anxiety to maintain control of
every aspect of our lives, has banned passion. As a poor substitute, it
gives us drugs and degeneracy.

There are many facts in this book which you, the reader, will not
wish to accept. I ask you to accept nothing, but to make your own
investigations. You may find even more astonishing true facts than [
have managed to glean in thirty-five years of intensive and in-depth
research.

Finally, we have Edith Hamilton’s rendering of Socrates’ most
notable admonition, “Agree withme if I seem to you to speak the truth:
or, if not, withstand me might and main that I may not deceive you as
well as myself in my desire, and like the bee leave my sting in you
before I die. And now let us proceed.”

Eustace Mullins,
November 1, 1984

PREFACE TO SECOND EDITION

My search for the names and addresses of the secret rulers of the
world became a mediaeval quest to find the Holy Grail which would
fling open the doors of freedom for the oppressed and betrayed
peoples of the world, particularly those in my own country. These
World Order minions fear exposure more than they fear armed force
or a legal system which would punish them for their crimes against
humanity. I discovered that the hidden manipulators of the World
Qrder had maintained their power by a very simple technique, which
I have likened to amasked ball. The bal masque enables the Gnostics,
the Knowing Ones, to identify their friends and enemies because they
alone know who is wearing what costume. It is a masquerade which
depends entirely upon disguise, that is, on things which are not what
they seem. H. T. Martineau wrote in 1833, in "Three Ages", 1.1 "A
troop of gentlemen, whose country could not be divined from their
complexions, since each wore a mask." Persons whose country
cannot be divined from their complexions — bandits wore a mask to
preventtheir victims fromidentifying them. The bandits of the World
Order have succeeded in robbing the whole world through the
technique of the bal masque, the disguise whichenablesthem to carry
on their Satanic work without being identified and prosecuted.

The bal masque is the ideal vehicle for this program, because the
World Order gained its present power in Europe of the nineteenth
century. It was a truism among the old European aristocracy that
"Balls are given for those who are not invited". The guests attend
because of duty or career, to spend an evening in the company of
boring persons when they would much rather be elsewhere. The
reward of being a guest at a bal masque is to be one of the Knowing
Ones, those who know which masque hid the face of the King, which
costume is that of the Grand Vizier. The other guests never knew
whether they were talking to a mere courtier, or to a powerful
personage. The masses, with their faces pressed againstthe windows



of the ballroom, know none of the celebrants, and will never know.
This is the technique of the World Order, to be masked in mystery,
with its hierarchy protected by their anonymity and their masks, so
that those who revolt will strike out against the wrong targets,
insignificant officials who are expendable.

The World Order record is one of horror, as the ghosts of the
massacred billions cry out for retribution. Its true nature is described
by that master of the macabre, Edgar Allan Poe, in"The Masque of the
Red Death",

"While the pestilence raged most furiously abroad, the Prince
Prospero entertained his thousand friends at a masked ball of the most
unusual magnificence. . .And now was acknowledged the presence of
the Red Death. He had come like a thiefin the night. And one by one
dropped the revelers in the blood-bedewed halls of their revel, and
died each in the despairing posture of his fall. And Darkness and
Decay and the Red Death held illimitable dominion over all."

What Poe depicts is what is actually happening to the present
world under the ministrations and conspiracies of the World Order —
increasing pollution, disease and famine ending in worldwide
desolationand thedisappearance of our species. Whatis the alternative?
We can survive by ripping the mask off of the face of the Red Death,
and by sending him back to that hell from which he came. God made
the earth for the living, and we are overdue in our attack on the
Brotherhood of Death. We must not be inveigled into more contrived
"wars" for the profit of the World Order, nor can we afford to continue
to be misled by their control over the media, the educational process,
and our governmental institutions.
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CHAPTER ONE
The “New’”’ World Order

In 1985, as a sequel to the history of the Federal Reserve System,
this writer published “The World Order’ as acompendium of additional
information on this subject. Itnever occurred tome to call it “The New
World Order” because my researches had traced its depredations back
for some five thousand years. Perhaps in response to the exposes in
thisvolume, the spokesman for the Brotherhood of Death went public
with their claims for a “New World Order”, which essentially was the
Brave New World described by Aldous Huxley in his groundbreaking
novel. Behind all demands for this new order were the same
imperatives, as listed by Professor Stanley Hoffman, in “Primacy or
World Order”, “What will have to take place is a gradual adaptation
of the social, economic, and political system ofthe United Statesto the
imperatives of world order.”

As Professor Hoffmann points out, the United States is the
primary target of the missiles of the New World Orderbecause it still
retains,however, perverted and distorted, the essential machinery for
arepublic whichprovides for the freedom of its citizens. The Order’s
present goals were originated by Lord Castlereagh at the Congress of
Viennain 1815, when he handed over Europe to the victorious Money
Power, as exemplified by the presence of the House of Rothschild.
This was “the balance of power”, which was never a balance of power
at all, but rather a worldwide system of control to be manipulated at
the pleasure of the conspirators. Henry Kissinger has been busily
reviving this program for renewed control, as he wrote in a think piece
for Newsweek, January 28, 1991, “We now face ‘a new balance of
power’. Today, it translates into the notion of ‘a new world order’,
whichwouldemerge from a setoflegal arrangements to be safeguarded
by collective security.”




When minions of the World Order such as Henry Kissinger call
for “collecuive security”, what they are really seeking is a protective
order behind which they can safely carry out their depredations
against all mankind. This was very reluctantly identified by President
George Bush, after months of dodging questions about the “new
world order” which he had publicly called for, when he finally stated
it really was “a United Nations peacekeeping force”. This took us
back to the Second World War, which produced the United Nations.
Walter Millis, in “Road to War, America 1914-17" further removed
this program to the First World War, when he wrote, “The Colonel’s
(Edward Mandel House) sole justification for preparing such a bath
of blood for his countrymen was his hope of establishing anew world
order of peace and security as a result.” Note the call for “security”;
once again, this is the cry of the international criminals for protection
as they carry out their universal work of sabotage and destruction.
Househad first laid out the program for this “world order” in his book,
“Philip Dru-Administrator”, in which Dru, (House himself) became
the guiding force behind the government and directed it to the goals
of world order. The same forces set up a Second World War, from
which the United Nations emerged as the new guarantor of “collective
security”. Random House Dictionary tells us that the United Nations
was created in Washington January 2, 1942, when twenty-six nations
allied against the Axis, or “fascist” Powers. In “The American
Language”, H.L. Mencken says that President Roosevelt coined the
term, “United Nations” in conference with Prime Minister Winston
Churchill at the White House in December of 1941, on the eve of the
Pearl Harbor attack which manipulated us into World War II. The
United Nations became an active entity at the Dumbarton Oaks
conference in 1944, when Great Britain, the United States and Russia
set it in motion as a financial dictator.

If the United Nations was created to fight “fascism”, its mission
endedin 1945, when Fascism was defeated by military force. Fascism
derives its name from the bundle of rods which ancient Roman
officials carried into court to punish offenders. Thus, fascism
historically means law and order, the rule of law, and the intent to
punish criminals. This, of course, is what the conspirators of the
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World Order wish to avoid atall costs. The Oxford English Dictionary
defines Fascism as “one of a body of Italian nationalists which was
organized in 1919 to oppose Communism in Italy.” Other definitions
state simply that the Fascists were organized “to fight Bolshevism”.
Thus the United Nations essentially was set up to battle against “anti-
Communists” as exemplified by Germany, Italy and Japan. When this
goal was successful in 1945, the United Nations no longer had a
historic mission. Nevertheless, it continued to function, and the
Rockefellers donated the most expensive parcel of real estate in
Manbhattan for its world headquarters. It was against this background
thatthe Governorof New York, Nelson AldrichRockefeller,addressed
a meeting at the Sheraton Park Hotel on July 26, 1968, in which he
called for the creation of “a new world order”.

Rockefeller ignored the fact that it was Adolf Hitler who had
preempted this title as “My New Order” for Europe. The phrase was
an attractive one to our politicians, as President Bush revealed when
he addressed Congress on September 11, 1990, in a speech carried
nationally on television, in which he called for “a new world . . . A
world quite different from the one we have known . .. a new world
order.” He continued to reiterate this demand in subsequent addresses
on television, declaring on January 29, 1991 in his annual State of the
Union address, “It is a big idea — a new world order, where diverse
nations are drawn together in common to achieve the universal
aspirations of mankind, peace and security, freedom, and the rule of
law.” He repeated this toxin on February 1, 1991 in three separate
addresses on the same day, in which he emphasized the new world
order call. He modestly refrained from pointing out that it was not a
new phrase, and thatit had been adopted by Congress in 1782 for the
Great Seal of the United States, the incomplete pyramid with its occult
eye, and the phrase “Novus Ordo Seclorum” beneath it, identifying
this nation as committed to “a new world order” or a new order for the
ages whichapparently depended upon pyramidpower forits fulfillment.
This symbol dated from 1776, when Adam Weishaupt, founder of the
[lluminati sect, formulated aprogram remarkably similar to that of the
world order conspirators today. Weishaupt called for:
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Abolition of all monarchies and all ordered governments.
Abolition of private property and inheritances.

Abolition of patriotism and nationalism.

Abolition of family life and the institution of marriage, and
the establishment of communal education for children.

5. Abolition of all religion.”

o=

It was hardly accidental that the Rothschilds, when they hired Karl
Marx and the League of Just Men to formulate a program, received the
Communist Manifesto of 1848, which contained the above formula.
Weishaupt’s activists had taken over the Freemason movement in
1782, which then became one of the vehicles for theenactment of this
program. Its true origin in ancient Oriental despotism was revealed
on the editorial page of the Washington Post January 5, 1992, when
philosopher Nathan Gardels warned that the ideal area for the new
world order would be China, not the United States.” Gardels points
out that Marxism was a product of Western philosophy,i.e. Hegel, but
that a world order would produce Oriental despotism. He supported
his thesis with quotes from the Japanese Prime Minister, who
cc 1plained that“abstractnotionsof humanrights” should notinterfere
with foreign policy, and from Chineseleaders whodenounced demands
for independent liberty as “garbage”.

President Bush modestly pointed out one of his aides, Gen. Brent
Scowcroft, as the author of the magical phrase, “new world order”.
People magazine, November 25, 1991 said, “Scowcroft’s influence
first became evident last year, several weeks after Iraq’s invasion of
Kuwait, Again while fishing, he and Bush came up with the idea of
“a new world order”, an ambitious phrase meant to suggest a new
United States foreign policy in the post-cold war era.”

Who is Scowcroft? In Washington, he has been known for years
asoneof Henry Kissinger’s unbiquitous lackeys, coming to prominence
when he served Kissinger on the National Security Council. He then
joined the firm of Kissinger Associates, of which he became president.
Kissinger praises him in People’s magazine, saying “He’s very

unobtrusive, but he’s tenacious ashell in fighting for his point of view.
He’s not a yes-man.”

This was an amazing claim from Kissinger, who had never once
heard a “No” from Scowcroft during all the years that he served him.
People magazine also mentioned Scowcroft’s lack of attention to the
business at hand. “Often teased for dozing during long, uneventful
meetings, Scowcroft brushes off such twitting.”” The media was
horrified to learn that President Reagan occasionally dozed during
long, boringofficial presentations, butfinds it excusable that Scowcroft,
who as the present head of their National Security Council, might be
expected to keep his wits about him, is guilty of the same offense. The
excessively friendly media attitude towards Scowcroft is alsoreflected
in Parade magazine which enthused in the issue of December 15,
1991, “Brent Scowcroft, 66, is a highly regarded military strategist
who has never been tarred by the brush of scandal.” Yes men rarely
venture into scandalous situations.




CHAPTER TWO
The Rothschilds

“Let me but issue and control a nation’s money,
and I care not who writes its laws.”
Mayer Amshel Bauer (Rothschild)

Inits issue of Dec. 19,1983, Forbes Magazine noted that “Half of
Germany’s top ten banks are Frankfurt based.” The modern world’s
financial system, an updating of the Babylonian monetary system of
taxes and money creation, was perfected in Frankfurt-on-Main, in the
province of Hesse. Mayer Amschel Bauer(later Rothschild) discovered
thatalthough loans to farmers and small businesses could be profitable,
the real profits lay in making loans to governments. Born in Frankfurt
in 1743, Mayer Amschel married Gutta Schnapper. He served a three
year apprenticeship in Hanover at the Bank of Oppenheim. During
this period, he had occasion to be of service to Lt. Gen. Baron von
Estorff. von Estorff was the principal adviser to Landgrave Frederick
IT of Hesse, the wealthiest man in Europe. Frederick was worth from
70to 100 million florins, much of itinherited from his father, Wilhelm
the Eighth, brother of the King of Sweden. Baron von Estorff advised
the Landgrave that Mayer Amschel showed an uncanny ability to
increase money through his investments. The Landgrave immediately
sent for him.

Atthis time, King George III was trying to putdown the American
Rebellion. His troops were being outfought by the hardy Americans,
whowere accustomed to wilderness battles. Mayer Amschel arranged
for King George to hire 16,800 sturdy young Hessian soldiers from
the Landgrave, a considerable addition to the Hesse’s fortune. This
advantageous relationship came to a halt with the sudden death in
1785 of the Landgrave, who was only twenty-five years old. However,
Mayer Amschel attained absolute influence overhis successor, Elector
Wilhelm I, who, like Mayer Amschel, had also been born in 1743. It
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was said that they were like two shoes, so well did they go together.
It was a pleasant change from Mayer Amschel’s relationship with the
former Landgrave, who had been a very difficult and demanding
person. In fact, the Landgrave’s sudden death had luckily placed
Mayer Amschel in charge of the largest fortune in Europe.

Asheprospered, Mayer Amschel placed alargered shield over his
door of the house in the Judengasse, which he shared with the Schiff
family. He took the name “Rothschild” from his sign. In 1812, when
he died, he left one billion franks to his five sons. The eldest, Anselm,
was placed in charge of the Frankfort bank. He had no children, and
the bank was later closed. The second son, Salomon, was sent to
Vienna, where he soon took over the banking monopoly formerly
shared among five Jewish families, Arnstein, Eskeles, Geymuller,
Stein and Sina. The third son, Nathan, founded the London branch,
after he had profited in some Manchester dealings in textiles and
dyestuffs which caused him to be widely feared and hated. Karl, the
fourth son, wentto Naples, where he becamehead of the occultgroup,
the Alta Vendita. The youngest son, James, founded the French
branch of the House of Rothschild in Paris.

Thus strategically located, the five sons began their lucrative
operations in government finance. Today, their holdings are
concentrated in the Five Arrows Fund of Curacao, and the Five
ArrowsCorp. Toronto, Canada. The nameis taken fromthe Rothschild
sign of an eagle with five arrows clutched in its talons, signifying the
five sons.

The first precept of success in making government loans lies in
“creating a demand”, that is, by taking part in the creation of financial
panics,depressions, famines, wars andrevolutions. The overwhelming
success of the Rothschilds lay in their willingness to do what had to
be done. As Frederic Morton writesin the Preface to“The Rothschilds”,
“For the last one hundred and fifty years, the history of the House of
Rothschild has been to an amazing degree the backstage history of
Western Europe.... Because of their success in making loans not to
individuals but to nations, they reaped huge profits.. . Someone once
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said that the wealth of Rothschild consists of the bankruptcy of
nations.”

In “The Empire of the City”, E.C. Knuth says, “The fact that the
House of Rothschild made its money in the great crashes of history
and the great wars of history, the very periods when others lost their
money, is beyond question.

On July 8,1937, the New York Times noted that Prof. Wilhelm, a
German historian, had said, “The Rothschilds introduced the rule of
money into European politics. The Rothschilds were the servants of
money who undertook the reconstruct the world as an image of money
and its functions. Money and the employment of wealth have become
the law of European life; we no longer have nations, but economic
provinces.”

On June 4,1879, the New York Times noted, “Baron Lionel N. de
Rothschild, head of the world famous banking house of Messrs.
Rothschild & Co. died at the age of 71. He was son of the late Baron
N.M. Rothschild who founded the house in London in 1808 and died
in 1836. His father came to the conclusion that in order to perpetuate
the fame and power of the Rothschilds, which had already become
worldwide, it was necessary that the family be kept together, and
devoted to the common cause. In order to do this, he proposed that
they shouldintermarry, and form no marital unions outside the family.
A council of the heads of the houses was called at Frankfurt in 1826,
and the views of Baron Nathan were approved.”

John Reeves, in his authorized biography, The Rothschilds, the
Financial Rulers of Nations, noted that when the family met in
London in 1857 for the marriage of Lionel’s daughter Leonora to her
cousin Alphonse, son of James Rothschild of Paris, Disraeli (Prime
Minister of England) declared, “Under this roof are the heads of the
family of Rothschild — a name famous in every capital of Europe and
every division of the globe. If you like, we shall divide the United
States into two parts, one for you, James, and one for you, Lionel.
Napoleon will do exactly and all that I shall advise him.”

This was the political origin of the American Civil War. The
Rothschilds feared the rapidly growing and increasingly prosperous
free American Republic, and they privately resolved that it would be
less of a danger to their worldwide interests if it were broken up into
two smaller and weaker nations.

In “The Rothschilds: the Financial Rulers of Nations, “John
Reeves writes, “The first occasion in which Nathan assisted the
English government was in 1819, when he undertook the loan of $60
million; from 1818-1832 Nathan issued eight other loans totalling
$105,400,000; he subsequently issued eighteen Government loans
totalling $700million. Tothe Rothschilds, nothing couldhave occurred
more propitiously than the outbreak of the American revolt and the
French Revolution, as the two enabled them to lay the foundation of
the immense wealth they have since acquired. The House of Rothschild
was' (and is) the ruling power in Europe, for all the political powers
were willing to acknowledge the sway of the great financial Despot,
and, like obedient vassals, pay their tribute without murmur.. Its
influence was so all-powerful that it was a saying, no war could be
undertaken without the assistance of the Rothschilds. They rose to a
position of such power in the political and commercial world that they
became the Dictators of Europe. To the public the archives of the
family, which could throw so much light upon history, are a profound
secret, a sealed book kept well hidden.”

On July 27,1844, Mazzini said, “Rothschild could be King of
France if he so desired.” The Jewish Encyclopedia noted (1909
edition) “In the year 1848 the Paris house (of Rothschild) was
reckoned to be worth 600,000,000 francs as against 352,000,000
francs held by all the other Paris bankers.”

Prof. Wemner Sombart wrote, “The principal loan floaters of the
world, the Rothschilds, were later the first railway kings. The period
of 1820 onwards became the ‘Age of the Rothschilds’ so that at the
middle of the century it was a common dictum: There is only one
powerin Europe and thatis Rothschild.” (Jews and Modern Capitalism).



Hearst’s Chicago Evening American commented, Dec. 3,1923,
“The Rothschilds can start or prevent wars. Their word could make or
break empires.”

Reeves notes, “The fall of Napoleon was the rise of Rothschild.”
Napoleon was later slowly poisoned to death with arsenic by a
Rothschild agent. They had no need of another “return from exile”.

The New York Evening Post noted July 22,1924, “The Kaiser had
to consult Rothschild to find out whether he could declare war.
Another Rothschild carried out the wholeburden of the conflict which
overthrew Napoleon.” The Kaiser’s Chancellor, Bethmann-Hollweg,
whoactually precipitated World Warl, was amember of the Frankfort
banking family, Bethmann, and a cousin of the Rothschilds.

Afterthefall of Napoleon, Salomon persuaded the ruler of Austria
to issue patents of nobility to the five brothers. The Congress of
Vienna was the emergence of the moth from its cocoon. The diktat of
this Congress was a simple one—the aristocracies of Europe must
submit to our will, or they are doomed. The death sentence upon the
noble lines of Europe was pronounced by those who had the will to
carry out their edict. It took another century to perfect the work, not
because the killers were weak, but because they wished to proceed
cautiously, without revealing their full strength. In combat, the
decisive weapon is the one your opponent does not know about.

It was notnecessary to pronounce a death sentence upon theruling
families of America, because there were none. During the 19th
century, a few descendants of colonial entrepreneurs had amassed
wealth, and could afford a life of leisure and travel. They remained
slavishly dependentuponContinentalarbitersinevery matterrequiring
personal taste and judgment. Because they had no guiding philosophy,
and no program, this American “upper class” never made it to the top
of the stairs. They remained “below stairs” as servants of the London
princes of the World Order. Their self-abasement not only manifested
itself in an unusually high rate of suicide, but also in the slower forms
of self-destruction, alcoholism, drug addiction, and homosexuality.
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Homosexuality is not so much a type of sexual drive as it is the
expression of deeper needs, the desire for self-degradation, or the
seeking of a partner whom one can humiliate and degrade. It could
hardly be unexpected that such a “ruling class” would eagerly hail the
twentieth century crusade to enthrone Communism as the vehicle of
the World Order.

In their quest for wealth, the Rothschilds did not overlook either
the small farmer or the stockpiling and wholesaling of grain. They
developed a “farm loan” system which has been the curse of the
farmers for more than a century. R. F. Pettigrew noted in the British
Guardian, “This system of banking (causing the ultimate ruin of all
those who cultivate the soil) was the invention of Lord Overstone,
with the assistance of the Rothschilds, bankers of Europe.”

One of their greatest triumphs was the successful outcome of the
Rothschilds’ protracted war against the Russian Imperial Family. The
family name of the Romanovs was derived from Roma Nova, New
Rome. Itembodied the ancient prophecy that Moscow was to become
“the New Rome.” The family originated with Prince Prus, brother of
Emperor August of Rome, who founded Prussia. In 1614, Michael
became the first Romanov Czar.

After the fall of Napoleon, the Rothschilds turned all their hatred
against the Romanovs. In 1825, they poisoned Alexander I; in 1855,
they poisonedNicholas I. Other assassinations followed, culminating
on the night of Nov. 6,1917, when a dozen Red Guards drove a truck
up to the Imperial Bank Building in Moscow. They loaded the
Imperial jewel collection and $700 million gold, loot totalling more
than abillion dollars. The new regime also confiscated the 150 million
acres in Russia personally owned by the Czar.

Of equal importance were the enormous cash reserves which the
Czarhadinvested abroadin Europeanand Americanbanks. The New
York Times stated that the Czar had $5 million in Guaranty Trust, and
S1million in the National City Bank; other authorities stated it was $5
million ineachbank. Between 1905 and 1910 the Czarhad sent more
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than $400 million to be deposited in six leading New York banks,
Chase, National City, Guaranty Trust, J.P. Morgan, Hanover, and
Manufacturers Trust. These were the principal banks controlled by
the House of Rothschild through their American agents, J.P. Morgan,
and Kuhn, Loeb Co. These were also the six New Y ork banks which
boughtthe controlling stock in the Federal Reserve Bank of New Y ork
in 1914. They have held control of the stock ever since.

The Czar alsohad $115 million in four English banks. He had $35
million in the Bank of England, $25 million in Barings, $25 million
in Barclays, and $30 million in Lloyd’s Bank. In Paris, the Czar had
$100 million in Banque de France, and $80 million in the Rothschild
Bank of Paris. In Berlin,he had $132 millionin the Mendelsohn Bank,
which had long been bankers to Russia. None of these sums has ever
beendisbursed; at compound interest since 1916, they amount tomore
than $50 billion. Two claimants later appeared, a son, Alexis, and a
daughter, Anastasia. Despite a great deal of proof substantlatmg their
claims, Peter Kurth notes in “Anastasia” that “Lord Mountbatten put
up the money for court battles against Anastasm Although he was
Empress Alexandra’s nephew he was the guldmg force behind
Anastasia’s opposition.” The Battenbergs, or Mountbattens, were
also related to the Rothschild family. They did not wish to see the
Czar’s fortune reclaimed and removed from the Rothschild banks.

Kurth alsonotes “Ina 1959 series onthe history of the great British
banks, for example, the Observer of London remarked of Baring
Brothers, ‘The Romanovs were among their most distinguished
clients. It is affirmed that Barings still holds a deposit of more than
forty million pounds that was left them by the Romanovs. Anthony
Sampson editor in chief, said no protests were made. This story is
generally considered to be true.”

In the early 19th century, the Rothschilds began to consolidate
their profits from government loans into various business ventures,
which have done very well. Fortuitous trading on the London Stock
Exchange after Waterloo gave Nathaniel Mayer Rothschild a sizeable
portion of the Consols which formed the bulk of the deposits of the
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Bank of England. Joseph Wechsberg notesin“The Merchant Bankers”,
“There is the Sun Alliance life insurance company, most aristocratic
of all insurance companies, founded by Nathan Rothschild in 1824;
Brinco, the British Newfoundland corp., founded by the British and
FrenchRothschildsin 1952; the Anglo-Americancorp.;Bowater, Rio
Tinto and others.”

Not only does the Bank Rate of the Bank of England affect the
interest rates in other nations; the price of gold also plays a crucial role
in the monetary affairs of nations, even if they are no longer on the
gold standard. The dominant role played by the House of Rothschild
in the Bank of England is augmented by another peculiar duty of the
firm, the daily fixing of the world price of gold. The News Chronicle
of Dec. 12, 1938 describes thisritual: “The story of the gold-fixing has
often been told. How every weekday at 11 a.m. the representatives of
five firms of bullionbrokers and one firm of refiners meet at the office
of Messrs Rothschild (except on Saturday) and there fix the sterling
price of gold. There is, however, a great deal of activity which lies
behind his final act—this centralization of the demand for, and the
supply of gold in one office and the fixing of the price of gold on that
basis. A price of gold s first suggested, probably by the representative
of Messrs Rothschild, who also acts for the Bank of England and the
Exchange Equalization Account.”

The banking houses privileged to meet with the Rothschilds to set
the world price of gold are known as “the Club of Five”. In 1958, they
were: N.M. Rothschild, Samuel Montagu, Mocatta and Goldsmid,
Sharps Pixley, and Johnson, Matthey.

In 1961, the London Accepting Houses operating by approval of
the Governor of the Bank of England were: Barings: Brown, Shipley;
Arbuthnot Latham; Wm. Brandt’s & Sons; Erlangers; Antony Gibbs
& Co.; Guinness Mahon Hawkins; S. Japhet; Kleinwort & Sons;
Lazard Bros.; Samuel Montagu; Morgan Grenfell; N.M. Rothschild;
M. Samuel, J. Henry Schroder; and S.G. Warburg; These chosen firms
rule the financial establishment in “the City” of London.




In 1961, the leading business groups in England were listed by
Wm. M. Clarke as: 1. Morgan Grenfell Ltd. (Lord Bicester) the
Peabody J. P. Morgan firm; 2. Jardine Mathieson; 3. Rothschild-
Samuel-Oppen-heimer, comprising Rio Tinto, British South Africa
Co. Shell Petroleum, Brinco (British Newfoundland Corp.); 4. Lazard
Brothers -Shell, English Electric, Canadian Eagle Oil; 5. Lloyd’s
Bank; 6. Barclay’s Bank; 7. Peninsular & Orient Lines; 8. Cunard; 9.
Midland Group Eagle Star -Higginson (Cavendish-Bentinck); 10.
Prudential; 11. Imperial Chemical Industries; 12. Bowater; 13.
Courtauld’s; 14. Unilever.

Although this list shows the Rothschild group as only one of
fourteen, in fact they hold large positions or influence in the other
groups of this list.

In 1982, the principal directorships held by the London Rothschilds
were: Lord Rothschild - N.M. Rothschild & Sons, Arcan N.V.
Curacao, chmn Rothschilds Continuation, and Rothschild Inc. USA.
Edmund Leopold de Rothschild - N.M. Rothschild & Sons, Alfred
Dunhill Ltd., Rothschild Continuation, Rothschild Trust, Rothman’s
International, chmn Tokyo Pacific Holdings NV; Baron Eric
Rothschild—N.M. Rothschild & Sons; Evelyn de Rothschild—chmn
N.M. Rothschild & Sons, DeBeers Consolidated Mines Ltd. South
Africa, Eagle Star Insurance Co., chmn The Economist Newspaper
Ltd.,IBM UK Ltd., La Banque Privee S.A., Manufacturers Hanover
Ltd., Rothschild Continuation Ltd., chmn United Race Courses Ltd;
Leopoldde Rothschild- N.M. Rothschild& Sons, Alliance Assurance
Co.,BankofEngland, The London Assurance, Rothschild Continuation
Ltd; Rothschild Continuation Holdings AG Switzerland, Sun Alliance
and London Assurance Co., Sun Insurance Office Ltd.

The British firms comprising the major basis of the Rothschild
fortune are: Sun Alliance Assurance, Eagle Star, DeBeers, and Rio
Tinto. Eagle Star’s directors include Duncan Mackinnon, of Hambro
Investment Trust; Earl Cadogan, whose mother was a Hambro; Sir
Robert Clark, chmn Hill Samuel Co.; Marquess Linlithgow (Charles
Hope) whose mother was a Milner — he married Judith Baring;
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Evelyn de Rothschild; and SirIan Stewart of Brown Shipley Co., who
has been parliamentary private secretary to the Chancellor of the
Exchequer since 1979.

DeBeers directors include Harry F. Oppenheimer, Sir Philip
Oppenheimer, A.E. Oppenheimer, N.F. Oppenheimer, Baron Evelyn
de Rothschild, and Sidney Spiro. Spiro is also a director of Rio Tinto,
Hambros Bank, Barclays Bank, and Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce. DeBeers interlocks with Anglo-American Corp. of South
Africa, of which Harry F. Oppenheimer is chairman, and Anglo-
American Gold Investment Co. of which Julian Ogilvie Thompson is
chairman, and Harry F. Oppenheimer director.

DeBeers interlocks with Hambros Bank, whose chmn is Jocelyn
Hambro; directors are R.N. Hambro, C.E. Hambro, Hon. H.W. Astor,
Sir Ian Morrow, chmn UKO Int. and The Laird Group, International
Harvester, Rolls Royce, and the Brush Group; J.M. Clay, director of
the Bank of England; Mark Weinberg, and Sidney Spiro.

Rio Tinto’s chmn is Sir Anthony Tuke; he is also chmn Barclay’s
Bank, and member Trilateral Commission. Directors are Lord
Shackleton, Lord Privy Seal, chmn RTZ Dev. Corp.; Lord Charteris
of Amisfield, grandson of Earl of Wemys, married to daughter of
Viscount Margesson, private secretary to Queen Elizabeth, director of
Claridge’sHotel, and Connaught Hotel; Sir David Orr,chmn Unilever;
and Sidney Spiro, Hambros Bank. The firm now trades as RTZ Corp.
described as “a Rothschild holding company on mining deals which
in July 1989 bought British Petroleum worldwide mining rights for
$3.7 billion, the biggest ever private deal between two British
companies.”

The principal Rothschild firm is Sun Alliance Assurance, which
Nathan Mayer Rothschild founded in 1824, with Sir Alex Baring,
Samuel Gurney, and Sir Moses Montefiore, with an initial capital of
five million pounds. Chmn of Sun Alliance is Lord Aldington (Toby
Low) who is also chmn Westland Aircraft, director of Citibank,
Citicorp, and Ge Ltd; Lord Aberconway,dep chmn; H.V.A. Lambert,
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chmn Barclay’s Bank; Earl of Crawford (Robert A. Lindsay, whose
mother was a Cavendish—he is also chmn National Westminister
Bank, former private secretary to the Secretary of Treasury. Minister
of State for Defense, Minister of State for Foreign and Commercial
Affairs; Lord Astor, whose mother was the daughter of Earl of Minto
heis the formerchairmanof The Times; Sir Charles Ball, of Kleinwort
Benson, also director of Chubb & Sons., Barclay’s Bank, Cadbury
Schweppe; Sir Alan Dalton, director Natl Westminster Bank; Duke of
Devonshire (his mother was a Cecil, one of England’s three ruling
families since the Middle Ages; Sir Derek Holden-Brown, chmn
Allied Breweries, director Hiram Walker; J.N.C. James, trustee
Grosvenor Estates, which owns large sections of London; Henry
Keswick, chmn Matheson & Co.; Lord Kindersley, exec. director of
Lazard Bros., director of Marconi, English Electric, British Match,
Swedish Match; Sir Peter Matthews, chmn Vickers; J.M. Ricchie,
chmn British Enkalon, director of Vickers, Bowater Ltd.; Evelyn de
Rothschild, chmn N.M. Rothschild & Sons.

The Rothschilds have had a large position in Vickers for many
years. Chmn is Sir Peter Matthews, also director Lloyd’s Bank and
Sun Alliance; directors are T. Neville; Baron Braybrooke; Earl of
Warwick (the Salisburys, one of three ruling families in England); Sir
Alastair Frame, chief exec. Rio Tinto Zinc, director of Plessey & Co.
UK, and the Atomic Energy Authority. Chmn of Vickers in 1956 was
Edward Knollys, son of the private secretary to King Edward VII forty
years, & George V 5 years.

For more than acentury,awidespread beliefhas been deliberately
fostered in the United States that the Rothschilds were of little
significance in the American financial scene. With this cover, they
have been able to manipulate political and financial developments in
this country to their own advantage. In 1837, the Rothschilds let their
American representative, W.L. & M.S. Joseph, go bankrupt in the
Crash, while they threw their cash reserves behind a newcomer,
August Belmont, and their secret representative, George Peabody of
London. Bermingham notes in “Our Crowd”, “In the Panic of 1837,
Belmont was able to perform a service which he would repeat in
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subsequent panics, thanks to the hugeness of the Rothschild reservoir
of capital, to start out in America operating his own Federal Reserve
System.”

After 1837, August Belmont (Schonberg) was publicly advertised
inthe financial press as the American representative of the Rothschilds.
When Belmont participated in a financial operation, everyone knew
that the Rothschilds were involved. When Belmont took no part, and
the transaction was handled by J.P. Morgan & Co., and or by Kuhn,
Loeb Co., everyone “knew” that the Rothschilds were not involved.

George Peabody had established his business in England through
his connection with Brown Bros. (now Brown Bros Harriman) and
Brown, Shipley). He had become an unidentified agent for Lord
Rothschild as early as 1835. Although there is no statue of George
Peabody in the Wall Street area, there is one in London, just opposite
the Bank of England. George Peabodybecame “the favorite American”
of Queen Victoria. His old lunchbox occupies a prominent place in the
London office of Morgan Stanley to this day. By 1861, George
Peabody had become the largest trader of American securities in the
world. To put pressure on the Lincoln government, he began unloading
them and driving prices down. At the same time, J.P. Morgan, allied
with Morris Ketchum, was depleting the American gold supply by
shipping it to England. He ran the price from $126 ounce to $171
ounce, reaping a good profit, and putting more financial pressure on
the Lincoln government. This was one of many financial operations
directed by the Rothschilds for their own political and financial goals.
As George Peabody had no son to take over his firm, he took on Junius
Morgan as partner; Junius’ son John Pierpont Morgan, became known
as “the most powerful banker in the world”,although his principal role
was to secretly carry out commissions for the House of Rothschild.
Morgan was a dirct descendant of Alexander Hamilton, who had
chartered our first central bank, the Bank of the United States, at the
behest of Rothschild interests.

The New York Times, Oct. 26,1907, noted in connection with J.P.
Morgan’s actions during the Panic of 1907, “In conversation with the
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New York Times correspondent, Lord Rothschild paid a high tribute
to J.P. Morgan for his efforts in the present financial juncture in New
York. ‘He is worthy of his reputation as a great financier and a man
of wonders. His latest action fills one with admiration and respect for
him.”

This is the only recorded instance when a Rothschild praised any
banker outside of his own family.

On March 28, 1932, the New York Times noted, “London: N.M.
VictorRothschild, twenty-one-year-oldnephew of Baron Rothschild,
is going to the United States soon to take a post with J.P. Morgan &
Co., it was learned tonight. It is usual for progressive British bankers
to send their young men to western states temporarily, one of the most
notable believers in the practice being the Anglo-American banking
house of J.Henry Schroder & Co.”

The Morgan-Rothschild connection explains the otherwise
incomprehensible mystery of why J.P. Morgan, famed as “the most
powerful banker in the world”, left such a modest fortune at his death
in 1913, a mere $11 million after his debts were secured. Although the
present members of the Morgan family seem financially secure, none
of them is counted among the “big rich”.

In “Brandeis, A Free Man’s Life”, Arpheus T. Mason notes,
“Young Adolph Brandeis (Justice Brandeis’ father) arrived in New
York, travelled for awhile in the East and then went on to the Midwest.
YoungBrandeis’ pleasure and facility in travel were greatly enhanced
by the companionship of a young friend of the Wehles then on a
business trip to the United States to secure informationabout American
investments for the House of Rothschild. Thanks to his companion’s
contacts and letters of introduction, Adolph saw places and met
people not accessible to most foreigners.”

Bermingham notes in “Our Crowd”, “In the autumn of 1874,
BaronRothschildsummoned Isaac Seligman to hisoffice—some $55

million of U.S. Bonds were to be offered by three houses, the House
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of Seligrnan, the House of Morgan, and the House of Rothschild.”
This was the first time that the Seligmans had been asked to participate
in an issue with the Rothschilds. They were more than grateful, and
thus another ally of the Rothschilds began to operate in America.

A notable advantage of J.P. Morgan’s work for the House of
Rothschild was the carefully cultivated belief that Morgan, if not
openly “anti-Semitic”, avoided participating in operations with Jewish
banking firms, and that his firm would not hire anyone of Jewish
background. Itwasthe same deception which Nathan Mayer Rothschild
had hired Morgan’s predecessor, George Peabody, to perform in
London. It was a traditional belief on Wall Street that if you wished
to deal with a “gentiles only” firm, you went to J.P. Morgan; if you
wanted a Jewish firm, there were anumberof houses available, but the
most influential, by far, was Kuhn, Loeb Co. In either case, the
customer was never made aware that he wasdealing withan American
representative of the House of Rothschild.

Jacob Schiff, who brought the Kuhn, Loeb firm to its preeminent
role in American finance, was born in the Rothschild house at 148
Judengasse, Frankfort, which the Rothschilds shared with the Schiff
family. In 1867, Abraham Kuhn and Solomon Loeb, two Cincinnati
dry goods merchants, founded the banking house of Kuhn, Loeb. In
1875, Jacob Schiff arrived from Frankfurtto join the firm. He married
Therese, Solomon’s daughter. He also brought a large amount of
Rothschild capital into the firm, enabling it to expand tenfold. In 1 885,
Loeb retired; Jacob Schiff ran the firm from 1885 to 1920, when he
died.

At no time has the House of Rothschild ever indicated publicly
thatithad any interestin the firm of Kuhn, Loeb Co. George R. Conroy
stated in TRUTH magazine, Boston, Dec. 16,1912, “Mr. Schiff is
head of the great private banking house of Kuhn, Loeb & Co., which
represents the Rothschild interests on this side of the Atlantic. He has
been described as a financial strategist and has been for years the
financial minister of the great impersonal power known as Standard
Oil. He was hand-in-glove with the Harrimans, the Goulds and the
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Rockefellers in all their railroad enterprises and has become the
dominant power in the railroad and financial world of America.”

This is one more revelation of the hidden power of the Rothschild
interestsin America. Notonly hasitdirected the Rockefeller enterprises
from the time that National City Bank of Cleveland, a Rothschild
bank, financed theearly expansionof Rockefeller, SouthImprovement
Co., which enabled him to crush his competitors through illegal
railway rebates, but it has also been the power behind the scenes of the
Harriman fortunes (now Brown Brothers Harriman). It explains the
frequent appointments (never elections) of W. Averill Harriman, the
dominant power in the Democratic Party, while his partner’s son,
George Bush, is the Republican president. It explains the secret
writing of the Federal Reserve Act by Paul Warburg of Kuhn, Loeb
& Co., and the even more secret deals which caused it to be enacted
into law by Congress. It explains how the United States could fight
World War I with Paul Warburg in charge of its banking system
throughthe vice chairmanship of the Federal Reserve Board; Bernard
Baruch as dictator of American industry as Chairman of the War
Industries Board; and Eugene Meyer financing the war through his
position as chairman of the War Finance Corporation (printing
government bonds in duplicate); Kuhn; Loeb partner Sir William
Wiseman with Col. Housecorrelated Britishand Americanintelligence
operations; Kuhn, Loeb partner Lewis L. Strauss was acting head of
the U.S. Food Administration under Herbert Hoover. Meanwhile,
Paul’s brother, Max Warburg, headed the German espionage system:;
another brother was German commercial attache in Stockholm,
traditional listening post for warring nations, and Jacob Schiff had two
brothers in Germany who were financing the German war effort. It
was a classic case of a “managed conflict”, with the Rothschilds
manipulating both sides from behind the scenes. At the Versailles
Peace Conference, Bernard Baruch was head of the Reparations
Commission; Max Warburg, on behalf of Germany, accepted the
reparations terms, while Paul Warburg, Thomas Lamont and other
Wall Street bankers advised Wilson and the Dulles brothers on how
“American” interestsshould be handled atthisall-important diplomatic
conference.

The Rothschilds had decided upon the formula of a “managed
conflict” for the First World War because of the difficulty they had
encountered in defeating the Boers from 1899 to 1901. After illegally
annexing the Transvaal in 1881, the British had been turned back with
aresoundingdefeatatMajubaby Paul Kruger. In 1 889, because of the
discovery of vast wealth in gold and diamonds in South Africa, the
Rothschildscame back tolootthe nation with400,000Britishsoldiers
pitted against 30,000 “irregulars”, that is, farmers with rifles, whom
the Boers could put into the field. The Boer War was started by
Rothschild’s agent, Lord Alfred Milner, against the wishes of a
majority of the British people. His plans were aided by another
Rothschild agent, Cecil Rhodes, who later left his entire fortune to the
furtherance of the Rothschild program, through the Rhodes Trust, a by
no means infrequent denouement among Rothschild agents, and the
basis of the entire “foundation” empire today.

The British foughta “no prisoners”, scorched earth war, deswoying
farms, and mercilessly shooting down Boers who tried to surrender.
It was in this war that the institution of “concentration camps™ was
brought to the world, as the British rounded up and imprisoned in
unsanitary, fever-ridden camps anyone thought to be sympathetic to
the Boers, including many women and children, who died by the
thousands. This genocidal policy would next be used by the
Rothschildfinanced Bolsheviksin Russia, who adopted the Boer War
conceptto murder 66 million Russiansbetween 1917 and 1967. There
was never any popular reaction to either of these atrocities, because
of the control of media which makes discussion of these calamities a
taboo subject.

The career of Lord Alfred Milner (1854-1925) began when he was
a protege of Sir Evelyn Baring, the first Earl of Cromer, partner of
Baring Bros., bankers, who had been appointed Director General of
Accounts in Egypt. Baring was then the financial advisor of the
Khedive of Egypt. Since 1864, Milner had been active in the Colonial
Society, founded in London in that year. In 1868, it was renamed the
Royal Colonial Institute, and was heavily financed by Barclays Bank,
and by the Barings, Sassoons and Jardine Mathieson, all of whom
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were active in founding the Hong Kong Shanghai Bank, and who were
heavily interested in the Asiatic drug traffic. The staff economist of
the Royal Colonial Society was Alfred Marshall, founder of the
monetarist theory which Milton Friedman now peddles under the
aegis of the Hoover Institution and other supposedly ‘“rightwing”
think-tanks. Marshall, through the Oxford Group, became the patron
of Wesley Clair Mitchell, who then taught Burns and Friedman.

In 1884, Milner augmented the work of the Royal Colonial
Society with an inner group, the Imperial Federation League; both
groups now function as the Royal Empire Society. Vladimir Halperin,
in “Lord Milner and the Empire”, writes, “It was through Milner and
some of his friends that the Round Table Group came into being. The
Round Table, it should be said, is an authority to this day on all
Commonwealth interests.” He states that Milnerraised a considerable
sum for the work of the Round Table, including 30,000 pounds from
Lord Astor, 10,000 pounds from Lord Rothschild, 10,000 pounds
from the Duke of Bedford, and 10,000 pounds from Lord Iveagh.
Milner launched a magazine called the Empire Review, later called
the Round Table quarterly.

Halperin also notes another contribution of Milner, “He played an
important part in the drafting of the famous Balfour Declaration in
Decemberof 1917. Itisa fact, that, with Balfour, he was its co-author.
As far back, as 1915, Milner had realized the need for a Jewish
National Home, and had never ceased to be warmly in favor of its
creation. Milner, like Lloyd George, Amery, and many others, saw
that the Jewish National Home could also contribute to the security of
the Empire in the Near East.”

The Milner Round Table later became the Royal Institute of
International Affairs-Council on Foreign Relations combine which
exercises unopposed control for the World Order over foreign and
monetary policy in both the United States and Great Britain. Milner
trained a group of ambitious young men who became known as his
“Kindergarten”.Itincluded John Buchan, future Gov. Gen. of Canada,
Geoffrey Dawson, later editor of the Times, and prominent supporter
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of “appeasement” with the “Cliveden Set” (led by Lord Astor, who
owned the Times); Philip Kerr, 11th Marquess, Lord Lothian, the
youngest member of the Kindergarten; he served as private secretary
to Lloyd George from 1916-20, and was given credit as largely
responsible for the Germanprovisions of the Treaty of Versailles. His
Who’s Who goes on to say thathe played animportant partin dealing
with India, all dominions, and the United States. He was Ambassador
to the United States 1935-40, and was a close friend of Waldorf and
Lady Astor; George Joachim Goschen, a Liberal who was hailed as
the greatest Chancellor of the Exchequer, head of the Cunliffe
Goschen banking house with Lord Cunliffe, Governor of the Bank of
England. Goschen was also chancellor of Oxford and the University
of Edinburgh; hisbrother, Baron Sir Edward Goschen was Ambassador
to Berlin when Bethmann-Hollweg told him that the Belgian Treaty
was a mere ‘“‘scrap of paper;” Leopold S. Amery, who had two sons,
Leopold, who was executed as a traitor in 1945, and Julian, who
married Prime Minister Harold MacMillan’s daughter, and served as
leftwing correspondent on the Spanish Front 1938-9, Churchill’s
personal representative to Chiang Kai-Shek, 1945, Round Table
Conference on Malta, 1955, Council of Europe, 195~56. The senior
Leopold Amery is described as “a passionate advocate of British
imperialism”; he was on the staff of the Times, and wrote a 7 vol.
history of the South African War for the Times; served in the Cabinet
from1916-22,MP 1911-45, first Lord of Admiralty, 1922-24, Secretary
of State for India, 194045, and arranged for India to have independence.
He was a trustee of the Rhodes Trust.

The Milner-Rothschild relationship was described in Terence
O’Brien’s biography, “Milner”, p. 97, “Milner went to Paris on some
business with Alphonse de Rothschild.....Business calls in the City
included a formal visit to Rothschilds....... weekend with Lord
Rothschild at Tring, and visit with Edward Cecil, Lord Salisbury at
Hatfield......while spending a weekend with Lord Rothschild at Tring
a Press Lord gave him a sleepless night (no further explanation given)
talks with Rothschild.” Milner attended a Zionist dinner given by
Lord Rothschild, sitting next to Lawrence of Arabia, who interpreted
for him in a talk with King Feisal. On p. 364, O’ Brien notes, “Milner
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lost no time in recreating his links with the City. He went first to Rio
Tinto which reelected him to its Board and before long Rothschild
asked him to be its chairman.” Rio Tinto was one of the key firms in
the Rothschild empire. Herbert Hoover was also appointed a director
of Rio~Tinto; he would soon be asked to head the “Belgian Relief
Commission” which prolonged World War I from 1916 to 1918.

The Milner role in starting the South African War is described in
“British Supremacy in South Africa”. Chap. 1 is headed “Sir Alfred
Milner’s War, explained as follows: “On 19 March Chamberlain
telegraphed tohim, “The principle object of His Majesty’s Government
in South Africa is peace. Nothing but a most flagrant offense would
justify the use of force.”” p. 22, “Milner had come to believe that war
with the Transvaal was both inevitable and desirable....Milner had at
last convinced Chamberlain that British supremacy in South Africa
would be jeopardized unless the power of the Transvaal was broken.”
There is the evidence that Rothschild’s Round Table minion, Milner,
cold-bloodedly precipitated the Boer war for his master’s gain.

John Hays Hammond, chief mining engineer for the House of
Rothschild, also was sent to South Africa to precipitate the war. He
formed the “Uitlanders Reform Committee”, with Lionel Phillips,
head of gold and diamond mining firm Eckstein-the Corner House;
George Farrar of East Rand Property Mines; and Col. Frank Rhodes,
brother of Cecil Rhodes. The Committee was financed by Abe Bailey,
Solly Joel, Barney Barnato, and the Ecksteins, all of whom were big
winners in the partition of the gold and diamond properties after the
war. During this activity, Hammond was arrested by Paul Kruger,
sentenced to death for promoting revolution, and was allqwed to leave
only after paying a $100,000 fine; he was then hired by the
Guggenheims at $500,000 year salary, and in 1921 became chief
lobbyist for the Council on Foreign Relations in Washington.

Like other enterprises with which the Rothschilds have been
connected, the Bank of England has been a center of international
intrigue and espionage since its founding in 1694. Although the
Rothschilds did not become associated with the Bank until 1812,

24

when Nathan Mayer Rothschild increased his fortune 6500 times by
taking advantage of false rumors that somehow swept the London
Stock Exchange, purporting that England had lost at Waterloo. The
Bank of England originated in a revolution, when William III, Prince
of Orange, drove King James II from the throne. Since the Bank of
England Charter was granted by William in 1694, there has never
been another revolt against the Crown. The royal family has been
secure because the source of money, crucial to a revolution, has
remained under control.

King Charles I1had managed to retain a shaky position because of
support from the Duke of Buckingham (George Villiers), and others
whose first names formed the word “CABAL”, introducing a new
term forintrigue. His successor, James I, tried to placate the powerful
lords of England, buteven his longtime supporters, scenting a change
of power, began secret negotiations with the Prince of Orange.
WilhelmI, Prince of Orange, had been married several times, to Anne
of Saxony, Charlotte de Bourbon, and Princess de Coligny. Today,
every ruling house of Europe, as well as those out of power, isa direct
descendant of King William, including Queen Juliana of the
Netherlands, Margaretha, Queen of Denmark, Olaf V of Norway,
Gustaf of Sweden, Constantine of Greece, Prince Rainier of Monaco,
and Jean, Grand Duke of Luxembourg, whose son married the
daughter of C. Douglas Dillon.

Lord Shrewsbury (Charles Talbot) had been given places by both
Charles II and James II; nevertheless, he played a leading role in the
revolution. He took 12,000 pounds to Holland to support William in
1688, returned with him, and was made secretary of state. Sidney
Godolphin, one of James II’s last adherents, joined with the Duke of
Sunderland and the Duchess of Portsmouth in correspondence with
William prior to his invasion of England, and was appointed head of
the treasury by William. Henry Compton, Earl of Northampton, and
Bishop of London, had been removed by James II; he signed the
invitation to William to come to England; he was reinstated in his ssee
in 1688; his son Francis became Lord Privy Seal. John Churchill, first
Duke of Marlborough, had entered into negotiations with the Prince
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of Orange in Oct. 1687, and expressed his readiness to support him in
Aug. 1688. To allay James II's suspicions, Marlborough then signed
arenewed oath of fidelity to him Nov. 10,1688. On Nov. 24,1688, he
joined the forces of William of Orange.

Although William had married Mary, the daughter of James II,
and had a legitimate claim to the throne of England, he could not take
power as long as James Il was on the throne. Therefore, he entered
England with a force of 10,000 foot soldiers and 4000 horse, a small
force with which to conquer a great kingdom. With him were
Churchill, Bentinck, (the first Earl of Portland), Earl of Shrewsbury,
and Lord Polwarth, whose descendant is a prominent member of the
AngloAmerican banking establishment. James II fled to the court of
Louis XIV and was declared abdicated.

This event was subsequently celebrated in English history as the
“Glorious Revolution”. King James II had married a Catholic, Mary
of Modena, in 1673, and launched a campaign to return England to the
Roman hierarchy, after more than one hundred years of Protestant
rule. His two daughters were being brought up as Protestant, but he
then bore a son, who was baptized as a Catholic, ensuing a Catholic
heirtothe throne. It was this situation which precipitated the Glorious
Revolution. In 1688, James had an army of 40,000, all of whose
officers were Roman Catholic. The invader, William, had only
13,000 men. To compound his problems, his ships were blown off
course, and missed their landing target, James was informed that his
troops, most of whom were Protestant, would not obey their Catholic
officers, and that they would not defend him. He then abdicated to
France. A subsequent attempt to make a comeback in Ireland also met
with defeat, which initiated the “Troubles™ which have continued
there to this day.

As King of England, William signed a Declaration of Rights on
February 13, 1689, whichended theking’s power to suspend Parliament
or to dispense with its laws. England was now a constitutional
monarchy, a form which has endured to the present day. This
agreement placed the monarchy on an annual salary, which had to be
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voted on by Parliament. The purse strings werenow firmly in the
hands of the legislators. In 1694, William chartered the Bank of
England. Since that time,. there has never been a revolution, because
no political force in England was able to raise money to finance such
a challenge.

In 1701, Parliament enacted the Act of Settlement, which banned
the Catholic Stuarts from ever making a claim to the throne. Future
monarchs must be members of the Anglican Church, and could not be
married to a Catholic. Under this unified government, England
experienced a great flowering of culture, hence the name, the Glorious
Revolution. With the establishment of the Bank of England, enormous
fortunes were created, and great estates were built throughout the
country. William was succeeded by Queen Anne, who produced
seventeen children, none of whom survived. Her staff plied her with
rich food, so that she became very fat and suffered poor health. When
she died, there were numerousclaimants to the throne. The successful
claimant, the Elector of Hanover, from Germany, bolstered his claim
by the research of the scholar, Gottfried Wilhelm Leibniz (1646-
1716). Leibniz spent twenty years in the documentation of the
Brunswick’s family’s claim, publishing his findings as Codex Juris
Gentium Diplomaticus Hannoverae. Leibniz had been secretary of
the Rosicrucian Society in Nuremberg in 1667. He loyally served the
Brunswick family of Hanover as a genealogist and historian. He
documented that Elizabeth, the Protestant daughter of King James I,
had married Frederick the Fifth, Elector of Palatine. Their daughter,
Sophie, married Ernest Augustus, the first Elector of Hanover.
Although she died before Queen Anne, her son, now Elector of
Hanover, was able to overcome the other claimants because of
Leibniz’ carefully documented reports. Leibniz not only brought the
Hanovers to England, but also Freemasonry. His Rosicrucian
connections, which he shared with his English counterpart, Francis
Bacon, placed a Freemason on the throne of England. Taking the
name of George I, Hanover spoke no English, and indignantly refused
to learn the language of his new domain.
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Marlborough, ancestor of Winston Churchill (whose former
daughterinlaw, Pam Harriman, is the leading power in the Democratic
Party) is described in The Captain General, by Ivor Brown, “The
Commissionerof Public Accounts found that the Duke of Marlborough
had accepted gifts amounting to some 60,000 pounds from Antonio
Machado and Sir Solomon de Medina, contractors for bread and
wagons for the army abroad, and 2 1/2% of all money allotted for
payment of troops, some 175,000 pounds (later revised to 350,000
pounds).” Marlborough claimed it had all been spent for intelligence,
but witnesses testified he could not have spent more than 5000 pounds
for this purpose inall of his campaigns. Donald Chandler’s biography
of Marlborough points out that “The bread contractors such as
Solomon and Moses Medina, Mynheer Hecop, Solomon Abraham,
Vanderkaa and Machado, were for the most part Spanish or Dutch
Jews of varying reliability and venality.” Chandler says that they
consistently gave short weight or added sand to their corn sacks. For
a number of years, Medina, as chief army contractor, contributed an
annual commission of 6000 pounds a year to Marlborough as his
rakeoff on army contracts.

In addition to his English supporters, who were previously loyal
to King James II, William brought with him from Amsterdam the
group of avaricious financiers who were also the suppliers of his
armies. One of his first official acts was the conferring of knighthood
on Solomon de Medina. Machado and Pereira provisioned his armies
in Spain and Holland; Medina supplied Marborough in Flanders;
Joseph Cortissot supplied Lord Galway in Spain, and Abraham Prado
supplied the British army during the Seven Year War.

The most important act of William’s reign was his granting of the
charter of the Bank of England in 1694, although most of his
biographers omit this salient fact. The concept of a central bank which
would have the power of note issue, or issuing money, had already
taken hold in Europe. The Bank of Amsterdam was started in 1609;
its members aided William in his conquest of England. The Bank of
Hamburg was chartered in 1619; the Bank of Sweden began the
practice of issuing notes in 1661. These banks were chartered by
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financiers whose ancestors had been bankers in Venice and Genoa. As
the tide of world power shifted northward in Europe, so did the
financiers. The Warburgs of Hamburg had begun as the Abraham del
Banco family, the largest bankers in Venice.

An interesting technique is revealed by the Charter of the Bank of
England—it was slipped through as part of a tonnage bill, which was
later to become a recognized parliamentary technique. The Charter
provides that “rates and duties upon tonnage of ships are made
security to such persons as shall voluntarily advance the sum of
1,500,000 pounds towards carrying on the war against France.”

Other European banks, such as the Banks of Genoa, Venice and
Amsterdam, were primarily banks of deposit, but the Bank of England
began the practice of coining its own credit into money, the beginning
of the monetarist movement. The Bank of England soon created a
“new class” of moneyed interests in the City, as opposed to the power
of the old barons, whose fortunes derived from their landholdings. Of
the five hundred original stockholders, four hundred and fifty lived in
London. This wasthedawn of the preeminence of the “City”’, now the
world’s leading financial center. For this reason, the Rothschilds
identified their key American banks with the code word “City”.

Early descriptions of the shareholders of the Bank of England
identify them as “a Society of about 1300 persons”. They included the
King and Queen of England, who received shares to the value of
10,000 pounds each; Marlborough, who invested 10,000 pounds - he
alsoinvested large sums from his “commissions” in the East India Co.
in 1697, and later became Governor of the Hudson Bay Company,
which paid a 75% dividend; Lord Shrewsbury, who invested 10,000
pounds; Godolphin, who invested 7000 pounds—he predicted that
the Bank of England would not only finance trade, but would carry the
burden of her wars, which was proven true in the next three hundred
years. Virginia Cowles writes, in “The Great Marlborough”, “England
cmerged from the war as the dominant force, because the Bank of
England’s credit system enabled her to bear the burden of war without
undue strain.”
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Other charter subscribers were William Bentinck, later the first
Earlof Portland; hehad been a pagein William of Orange’s household,
accompanied William to England in 1670 on his initial visit, handled
the delicate negotiations of his marriage with Mary in 1677, and
prepared the details of William’s invasion of England. He was given
the title of Earl of Portland, and became the most trusted agent of
Williams foreign policy. In 1984, we find the 9th Duke,
CavendishBentinck, is chmn of Bayers UK Ltd, and Nuclear Chemie
Mittchorpe GMBH, Germany; he also had a distinguished career in
foreign service, joining the Foreign Office in 1922; he represented
England at the successive Paris, Hague and Locarno conferences, was
chmn Joint Intelligence for the Chiefs of Staff 1939-45, and
Ambassador to Poland during the critical years of 1945-47, when that
country was turned over to the Soviet Union, with England’s
surreptitious support.

Other charter subscribers to the Bank of England were the Duke ‘

of Devonshire (William Cavendish) who built Chatsworth; he also
had signed the invitation to William to assume the throne of England;
he was High Steward at Anne’s Coronation in 1702, and was said to
lead a profligate private life - (the present duke sold seven drawings
in July 1984 for $9.2 million) the 11th Duke married Deborah
FreemanMitford daughter of Baron Redesdale - his present brother-
in-law, Baron Redesdale, is vice president of Chase Manhattan Bank;
the Duke of Leeds, Sir Thomas Osborne, who also signed the
invitation to William - he was lord high treasurer and had arranged the
marriage of Mary - he was later impeached for receiving a large bribe
to procure the charter of the East India Co. in 1691 - because of his
favored position at court the proceedings were never concluded, and
he left one of the largest fortunes in England; Earl of Pembroke,
(Thomas Herbert), who became the first lord of the admiralty, and
later lord privy seal; Earl of Carnarvon, who is also Earl of Powis and
Earl of Bradford; Lord Edward Russell, created Earl of Orford 1697;
he had joined the service of Williamin 1683, was appointed treasurer
of the Navy 1689, first lord of admiralty 1696-17, and lord justice
1697-1714 (SirRobert Walpole, the famed British leader, was created
Earl of Orford in the second creation); William Paterson, usually
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credited with being the founder of the bank of England - he was forced
out within a year; Sir Theodore Janssen, who invested 10,000 pounds;
Dr. Hugh Chamberlen; John Asgill, an eccentric writer and
pampheleteer; Dr. Nicholas Barbon, son of Praisegod Barebones,
who started the first insurance company in Great Britain: John
Holland, a reputed Englishman who also started the Bank of Scotland
in 1695; Michael Godfrey, who died at Namur, Belgium on his way
to Antwerp to establish a branch of the Bank of England - he was the
first deputy governor of the Bank of England, and nephew of Sir
Edward Godfrey, who was murdered by Titus Oakes in 1678; Sir John
Houblon and twenty members of his family were also early
stockholders; Sir John became lord of the admiralty, and Lord Mayor
of London; his brother James was deputy governor of the Bank of
England; Salomon de Medina, later knighted by William III; Sir
William Scawen; Sir Gilbert Heathcote, director of Bank of England
1699-1701, and from 1723-25; he was Sheriff and later Lord Mayor
of London, founded the New East India Co. in 1693; his parsimony
was ridiculed by Alexander Pope in his quatrains; Sir Charles
Montague, first Earl of Halifax, and Chancellor of the Exchequer - the
present Earl is a director of Hambros Bank; Marquess Normandy,
John Sheffield, alsoheld the title of Duke of Buckingham - he is buried
in Westminster Abbey; Thomas Howard, Earl of Arundel, comptroller
of the royal household; Charles Chaplin; and the philosopher, John
Locke.

In his “The Bank of England, A History”, Sir John Clapham notes
that by 1721, a number of Spanish and Portuguese Jews had been
buying stock in the Bank of England — Medina, two Da Costas,
Fonseca, Henriquez, Mendez, Nunes, Roderiquez, Salvador Teixera
de Mattos, Jacob and Theodore Jacobs, Moses and Jacob Abrabanel,
Francis Pereira. Clapham notes that since 1751 there has been very
little trading in Bank of England stock; it has been very closely held
for more than two centuries.

The Bank of England has played a prominent role in American
history - without it, the United States would not exist. The American

colonists considered themselves loyal Englishmento aman, but when
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they began to enjoy unequalled prosperity by printing and circulating
their own Colonial scrip, the stockholders of the Bank of England
went to George III and informed him that their monopoly of
interestbearing notes in the colonies was at stake. He banned the scrip,
withtheresultthatthere was animmediate depression in the commercial
life of the Americas. This was the cause of the Rebellion; as Benjamin
Franklin pointed out, the little tax on tea, amounting to about a dollar
a year per American family, could have been borne, but the colonists
could not survive the banning of their own money.

The Bank of England and the Rothschilds continued to play a
dominant role in the commercial life of the United States, causing
panics and depressions for the Rothschilds whenever their officials
were instructed to do so. When the Second Bank of the United States
expired in 1836, and President Jackson refused to renew it, creating
great posperity in the United States when government funds were
deposited in other banks, the Rothschilds punished the upstarts by
causing the Panic of 1837. As Henry Clews writes, “Twenty-Eight
Years on Wall Street”, p. 157, “The Panic of 1837 was aggravated by
the Bank of England when it in one day threw out all the paper
connected with the United States.”

By refusing to credit American notes and stocks, the Bank of
England createdfinancial panic among the holders of that paper. The
panic enabled Rothschild’s agents, Peabody and Belmont, to reap a
fortune in buying up depreciated stocks during the panic.

The Bank of England has played a prominent role in wars,
revolutions,and espionage, as well as business panics. When Napoleon
escaped fromElbain 1815, the London gold market jumped overnight
from41b.6d to 51b.7. Theleading buyer was Nathan Mayer Rothschild,
who was under orders from the British Treasury to dispatch gold to the
Duke of Wellington, grouping to stop Napoleon. After Waterloo, the
price of gold dropped.

During the twentieth century, the most important name at the
Bank of England was Lord Montague Norman. His grandfather,
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George Warde Norman, had been governor of the Bank of England
from 1821-1872, longer than any other man; his other grandfather,
Lord Collet, was Governor of the Bank of England from 1887-89, and
managing partner of Brown Shipley Co. in London for twenty-five
years. In 1894, Montague Norman was sent to New York to work in
the offices of Brown Bros.; he was befriended by the W.A. Delano
family, and lived withe Markoe family, partners of Brown Bros. In
1907, Norman was elected to the Court of the Bank of England. In
1912, he had a severe nervous breakdown, and was treated by Jung in
Switzerland. He became deputy governor of the Bank of England in
1916, and later served until 1944 as Governor. The Wall Street Journal
wrote of him in 1927, “Mr. M.Collet Norman, the Governor of the
Bank of England, is now head and shoulders above all other British
bankers. No other British banker has ever been as independent and
supreme in the world of British finance as Mr. Norman is today. He
has just been elected Governor for the eighth year in succession.
Before the war, no Governor was allowed to hold office for more than
two years; but Mr. Norman has broken all precedents. He runs his
Bank and his Treasury as well. He appears to have no associations
except his employees. He gives no interviews. He leaves the British
financial world wholly in the thick as to his plans and ideas.”

The idea that one individual ran the Bank of England to suit
himself, with no influences, is too ridiculous to be considered. What
about the Rothschilds? What about the other shareholders? Carroll
Quigley, in “Tragedy and Hope” notes that “M. Norman said, ‘I hold
the hegemony of the currency.’ - He is called the currency dictator of
Europe.” Lionel Fraser of J.Henry Schroder Wagg notes in his
autobiography, “All to the Good”, that he was in charge of Lord
Norman’s personal investments. He also notes of the firm of Helbert
Wagg, former jewelers from Halberstadt and now a London banking
house (later J.Henry Schroder Wagg), “The firm was official brokers
on Stock Exchange to the great and all powerful House of Rothschild.”
Both Wagg and Schroder had been in business in London for 159
years when they merged in 1960. Another writer notes that Lord
Norman frequently consulted with J.P. Morgan before making his
Bank of England decisions. Gordon Richardson, chairman of J.Henry
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Schroder from 1962-72, then became Governor of the Bank of
England from 1972-83, when he was succeeded by Robert Leigh-
Pemberton, chmn of the National Westminister Bank, also director of
Equitable — he married into the Cecil-Burghley family.

The present directors of the Bank of Englandare: G.W.McMabhon,
deputy governor since 1964, economic analyst Treasury 1953-57,
adviser British Embassy washington 1957-60; Sir Adrian Cadbury,
chmn Cadbury Schweppes, dir. IBM UK; Leopold de Rothschild,
N.M. Rothschild & Sons etc; George V. Blunden, exec. dir. Bank of
England since 1947, served with IMF 1955-58; A.D. Lochnis, dir.
J.Henry SchroderWagg; G.A.Drain, member Trilateral Commission,
treasurer European Movement, Franco-British Council, British North

Sir Jasper Hollom, has been on the board since 1936; D.G. Scholey,
chmn S.G. Warburg Co., OrionInsurance, Union Discount of London,
Mercury Securities, which now owns S.G. Warburg Co. Irwin
Holdings; J.M. Clay, dep. chmn Hambros Bank, chmn Johnson and
Firth Brown Ltd; Hambros Life Assurance; Sjr David Steel, chmn
British Petroleum, dir. Kuwait Oil Co., The Wellcome Trust, trustee
The Economist (whose chmn 1?b’vgf§n de Rothschild); Lord Nelson
of Stafford, chmn GE Ltd. chmn Royal Worcester Co., Natl Bank of
Australasia, International Nickel, British Aircraft, English Electric,
Marconi Ltd. chmn World Power Conference, Worshipful Co. of
Goldsmiths, Middle Eastern Assn; Lord Weir, chmn The Weir Group,
chmn Great Northern Investment Trust; E.A.J. George, exec. dir Bank
of England, dir. Gilt-Edged Division Bank of England, IMF 1972-72,
Bank for International Settlements 1966-69; Sir Hector Laing, chmn
UnitedBiscuit, Allied Lyons,Royal Insurance; Sir Alastair Pilkington,
chmn Pilkington Bros. Glass, dir. British Petroleum, British Railways
Board.

The Bank of England also dominates the Bank of Scotland, whose
chmn is Robert Bruce, Lord Balfour; his title Balfour of Burleigh was
created in 1607; he is manager of English Electric and Viking Oil; he
married the daughter of magnate E.S. Manasseh. Directors of Bank of
Scotland include Lord Clydesmuir, also dir. Barclays Bank, and Rt.
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Hon. Lord Polwarth, director of Halliburtons, which interlocks with
the Rothschild First City Bank of Houston and Citibank, Imperial
Chemical Industries, Canadian Pacific,and Brown and Root Wimpey
Highland Fabricators, which interlocks with George Wimpey PLC,
largest construction firm in the British Empire, whose 44 companies
have revenues of 1.2 billion pounds per year. Lord Polwarth’s
daughter married Baron Moran, High Commissioner of Canada, who
previously served as Ambassador to Hungary and to Chad; Baron
Moran’s daughter married Baron Mountevans, manager of
Consolidated Goldfields.

Directors of George Wimpey PLCincluded S.S. Jardine; Viscount
Hood, who is chmn Petrofina UK, and director J.Henry Schroder
Wagg, and Union Miniere; and Sir Joseph Latham, chmn Ariel
International, director Deutsches Kreditbank.

Wimpey Co. interlocks with Schroder Ltd, parent of J.Henry
Schroder Wagg. The Earl of Airlie (David Ogilvy) is chmn of
Schroder; he married Virginia Ryan, grand-daughter of Otto Kahn
and Thomas Fortune Ryan; The Earl is also director of Royal Bank of
Scotland; directors of Schroder include Lord Franks, director of the
Rockefeller Foundation, the Rhodes Trust, and Kennedy Center; he is
a former Ambassador to the United States; G.W. Mallinkrodt; Sir
E.G. Woodruffe of Unlever; and Daniel Janssen of the Bank of
England.

One of the great Rothschild hoaxes was the “disarmament
movement” of the early 1930s. The idea was not to disarm, but to
persuade the nations to junk what arms they had so they could later be
sold new ones. “The merchants of death”, as they were popularly
known in those days, were never more than errand boys for their true
masters, “the bankers of death”, or, as they were also known, “the
Brotherhood of Death”. In 1897, Vickers, in which Rothschilds had
the largest holding, bought Naval Construction and Armament Co.,
and Maxim Nordenfeldt Guns & Ammunition Co. The new Vickers-
Maxim Co. was abletotestits productsin the Spanish-American War,
which was set off by J&W Seligman Co. to obtain the white gold,
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(sugar), of Cuba; the Boer War of 1899-1901, to seize the gold and
diamond fields of the Witwatersrand, and the Russo-Japanese War of
1905, designed to weaken the Czar and make the Communist
Revolution inevitable. These three wars provided the excuse for
tooling up for the mass production of World Wars I & II. In 1897, an
international power trust was formed, consisting of DuPont, Nobel,
Koln, and Rottweiler, which divided the world into four distinct sales
territories.

The chmn of Vickers, Sir Herbert Lawrence, was director of Sun
Assurance Office Ltd; Sun Life Assurance, and chmn the London
committee of the Ottoman Bank; directors included Sir Otto Niemeyer,
director of the Bank of England, and the Anglo International Bank;
S.Loewe, the German arms magnate, Loewe & Co.; Sir Vincent
Caillard President of the Ottoman Debt Council, financial expert on
the Near East; and Sir Basil Zaharoff, the “mystery man of Europe”.

The highwater mark of “the merchants of death” hoax was
reached in the Nye Committee Hearings of 1934, copies of which are
invariably missingin government libraries. Alger Hiss was investigator
and counsel for the Committee. Typical was Chairman Nye’s
questioning of Mr. Carse of the Electric Boat Co. (a subsidiary of
Vickers): “ChmnNYE:In 1917, Mr. Carse, you drafted alettertohelp
Zaharoff avoid paying income tax on your commissions to him of
$766,852. There is Exhibit 24, a letter dated Sept. 21,1917, addressed
to Mr. H.C. Sheridan, Washington, D.C. Who is Mr. Sheridan, Mr.
Carse? CARSE: He owns the Hotel Washington. At that time he was
theagentof Vickers Ltd. inthis country, and he wasalso arepresentative
of Zaharoff. Mr Sheridan handled Mr. Zaharoff’s income tax with
White and Case. CHMN: Did you know that this was false, that this
omission of a million dollars referred to was actually Sir Basil
Zaharoff’s income? CARSE: No, I did not know anything about
Zaharoff’s income. CHMN: But you have told us that a letter by
Zaharoff six weeks earlier that 82,000 francs he received was his own
personal income. CARSE: I do not know what Zaharoff did in his
business. He did not tell me. CHMN: Did Zaharoff succeed in
escaping the payment of income tax to the United States? CARSE: |
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believe there was some settlement made. Sheridan handled it.. Zaharoff
was never a stockholder insofar as I ever knew. The men who handle
very large stock do not put the stock in their own
names.CHMN:Zaharoff wrote to you 19May, 1925, ‘I desire no
thanks for what I have done, because I am bound to attend to the
interest of my firm of Vickers and the Electric Boat Co. in both of
which I am a stockholder. CARSE: I know he told me that, but I was
never able to trace anything.

Sen. Clark then pursued questioning on how the armaments firms
and oil companies promoted wars: “CLARK: So this whole occasion
of arming Peru, and of the revolution in Bolvia on the basis of arming
against Chile was based on erroneous rumor? MR. SPEZAR: That is
my impression. CLARK: Youwanted to interest the large oil companies
in financing an armament program for South America. CARSE: I was
willing to presentany proposition the government might approve with
regard to any oil companies which might be interested.”

The Nye Committee frequently came back toZaharoff’s activities,
referring to him as *“a kind of superspy in high social and influential
circles”. For many years he exercised great influence on Prime
Minister Lloyd George of England. Zaharoff, whobegan his career as
a brothel tout and underworld tough, arranged for Lloyd George to
have an affair with Zaharoff’s wife. Arthur Maundy Gregory, an
associate of Lloyd George, was also a Zaharoff agent. Maundy
Gregory for many years regularly peddled peerages in London clubs;
knighthoods, not hereditary, were 10,000-12,000 Ibs.; baronetcies
went for as high as 40,000 Ib., of which he paid Lloyd George a
standard 5000 Ib. each. Maundy Gregory ws also closely associated
with Sir Basil Thompson in British counter-espionage. Zaharoff, who
was born in 1851 in Constantinople, married one Emily Ann Burrows
of Knightsbridge. Maundy Gregory then introduced Emily Ann to the
insatiable Lloyd George. From that time on, he was at Zaharoff’s
mercy. Although Zaharoff was closely associated with Lloyd George
throughout World War [ until 1922, when their association effectively
ended Lloyd George’s political career, the name Zaharoff appears
nowhere in Lloyd George’s extensive Memoirs. Lloyd George’s
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political career came to an end after Zaharoff persuaded him to help
the Greeks against Turkey in 1920, a disastrous adventure which
brought about Lloyd George’s downfall from political power. George
Donald McCormick, in “The Mask of Merlin”, the definitive work on
Lloyd George, states, “Zaharoff kept him (Lloyd George) closely
informed on the Balkans. During the war, Zaharoff was sent on
various secret missions by Lloyd George. The Big Three, Wilson,
Lloyd George and Clemenceau, met in Zaharoff’s home in Paris. On
one occasion, Zaharoff went to German (in 1917) on Lloyd George’s
personal instructions, disguised in the uniform of a Bulgarian Army
doctor. Clemenceau later said, ‘The information which Zaharoff
secured in Germany for Lloyd George was the most important piece
of intelligence of the whole war.”” Zaharoff was awarded the Order
of British Empire in 1918 for this mission. McCormick also notes,
‘“Zaharoff had interests in Briey furnaces of the Comite des Forges.
Throughout the war no action was taken against Briey or nearby
Thionville, a German area vital to the German army. Orders to
bombard Briey were cancelled on orders of Zaharoff. “M. Barthe
protested this event in a speech to the French Parliament January
24,19109.

McCormick found that Zaharoff had made some interesting
confessions to close associates. He boasted to Rosita Forbes, “I made
wars so that I could sell arms to bothsides.” He offered astute political
advice to Sir Robert Lord Boothby, “Begin on the left in politics, and
then, if necessary, work over to the right. Remember it is sometimes
necessary to kick off the ladder those who have helped you to climb
it.”

In addition to his Vickers and Electric Boat stock, Zaharoff had
large holdings in other armaments manufacturers, Krupp and Skoda.
The Skoda Works of Czechoslavakia were controlled by the powerful
Schneider family of Schneider-Creusot, headed by Eugene Schneider,
whose grand-daughter married the present Duke of Bedford. The Nye
Committee found that Vickers interlocked with Brown Boveri of
Switzerland, Fokker, Banque Ottomane, Mitsui, Schneider, and ten
other armaments firms around the world. Vickers set up a torpedo
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manufacturing firm, Societe Francasies des Torpilles Whitehead,
with the former Whitehead Co., whose owner, James B. Whitehead,
then became English Ambassador to France. Frau Margareta von
Bismarck was a director of Societe Francasies, as was Count Edgar
Hoyos of Fiume.

At its peak in the 1930s, the Vickers network included Harvey
Steel, Chas. Cammell & co. shipbuilding, John Brown & Co., Krupp
and Dillinger of Germany, Terni Co. of Italy, Bethehem Steel and
Electric Boatinthe U.S., Schneider, Chatillon Steel, Nobel Dynamite
Trust, and Chilworth Gunpowder Co. The trustee for the debentures
of the armaments firms was Royal Exchange Assurance Co. of
London, of which E.Roland Harriman of Brown Bros Harriman was
a director.

As First Lord of the Admiralty, Winston Churchill obligingly
changed the fuel of the entire English fleet from coal to oil, as a favor
to the Samuel family which owned Royal Dutch Shell.

The most revealing works on the armaments dealers, the Nye
Committee Hearings, and “Merchants of Death” are now fifty years
old. On p. 167 of “Merchants” we find that “The Societe Miniere de
Penarroya controls the most important lead mines of the world,
accounting for one-eighth of the world’s production. Since 1833 the
C French bankers, the Rothschilds, have controlled these mines, but
in 1909 the Rothschild Bank entered into an alliance with the
Metallgeschaft of Frankfurt, the company in which both the Kaiser
and Krupp were heavily interested. This company remained under
German and French control for about two years of the war. At the
outbreak of hostilities, 1~0,000 tons of lead were shipped from these
mines to Germany, via Switzerland. When shipments to France were
resumed, the price was raised to such an extent that it more than
doubled thc price which the English paid for their lead. Free trade
between Germany and France in important chemicals, for powder,
etc. continued; the Swiss supplied both sides with electric power. All
along their frontier great powerhouses sprang into being, facing
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Germany from Italy, producing iron, bauxite, chemicals and power.
Zeiss products were exported to Britain throughout the war.”

Dr. Ellis Powell told an audience at Queens Hall, London, March
4, 1917; “At the beginning of the war many thousands of German
reservists were allowed toreturn to Germany although our Fleet could
have stopped them. German individuals, firms and companies went
on trading merrily in British names, collecting their debts, and
indirectly, no doubt, financing German militarism. Atthe very moment
when Germans were destroying our property by Zeppelin bombs we
were actually paying them money instead of taking their holdings as
partcompensation fordamage done. InJanuary 1915 came the vicious
decision by Lord Reading (Rufus Isaacs) and the Appeal Court,
according to which the Kaiser and Little William Co. was a good
British company, capable of suing the King’s own subjects in the
King’s own courts....The uninterrupted activity in this country of the
Frankfort Metal Octopus is not an accident...Let me analyze one lurid
case, which has stirred public indignation and anger to its depths. I
mean the impudent survival of the German banks. We have now been
at war nearly three years. Yet their doors are still open. They sentlarge
quantities of bullion to Germany after the war started.”

There was a remarkable amount of goodwill and free trade
continuing during World War I among the warring nations. Of course
the Americans did not wish to be left out of the great outpouring of
goodwill in which forty million people were killed. It was not enough
that the Americans were financing the war through their Federal
Reserve System and the personal income tax, which, as Cordell Hull
so aptly put it in his Memoirs, “had been passed in the nick of time”
before the outbreak of the war; nor was it enough that the Americans
were feeding the “Belgians”, actually the Germans, through the
Belgian Relief Commission, so that the war could be prolonged until
theUnited States became a belligerent. Concerned Americans dedicated
themselves to the proposition that American boys should be killed in
the trenches with the British, the French, the Germans and other
nationalities.

The warmongers set up three principal organizations to force the
United States into World War I—the Council on National Defense,
the Navy League, and the League to Enforce Peace. The Council on
National Defense was authorized by act of Congress August, 1916,
although there was no nation on earth known to be contemplating any
attack on the United States. Pancho Villa had led a small group of
bandits against Columbus, N.M., but this raid was hardly an occasion
for national mobilization. It was a retaliatory strike because of the
actions of New York bankers in Mexico— the Warburgs held the
bonds of the National Railways of Mexico; George F. Peabody and
Eugene Meyer and Cleveland H. Dodge owned the copper mines of
Mexico; Seligman & Co. owned Electric Powerand Light of Mexico.
The Mexican Revolution was an uprising against President Porfirio
Diaz, who had collaborated profitably with the Warburgs and
Rockefellers for years. Percy N. Furber, president of the Oil Fields of
Mexico Ltd. told C.W. Barron, “The Mexican Revolution was really
caused by H.Clay Pierce, who owned 35% of Pierce-Waters Oil Co.;
Standard Oil owned the other 65%. He wanted to get my property. He
demanded of Diaz that he should take off the taxes on oil imports so
thatStandard Oil could bring in products fromthe U.S. Diaz refused.”
Furber said that he put up the money for Francisco Madero to oust
Diaz. Madero was then murdered by Victoriano Huerta, the pawn of
Lord Cowdray, head of British oil interests in Mexico. In the resulting
chaos, Villa and Zapata came to the fore, resulting in the Columbus
raid.

The Council on National Defense was chaired by Daniel Willard,
pres. B&O RR; other members were Bernard Baruch, Julius
Rosenwald, Samuel Gompers, Walter S. Gifford, pres. of AT & T,
alsodirectorCommissiononIndustrial Preparedness; Hollis Godfrey,
pres. of Drexel Institute, married to a Lawrence of Boston; and
Howard Coffin, pres. of Hudson Motor Car Co. Coffin’s secretary,
Grosvenor Clarkson, ran the Council. Godfrey claims in Who’s Who
that the Council was actually created by himself, Howard Coffin and
Elihu Root.




The principals of the Navy League were J.P. Morgan of U.S. Steel,
Charles Schwab of Bethlehem Steel, Col. R.M. Thompson of
International Nickel, and B.F. Tracy, attorney for the Carnegie Steel
Co. The principals of the League to Enforce Peace were Elihu Root,
J.P. Morgan’s lawyer; Lincoln Filene; Oscar Straus; John Hays
Hammond, whohad been sentenced to death for revolutionary activity
in South Africa; Isaac Seligman; Perry Belmont, the official
representative of the Rothschilds, and Jacob Schiff of Kuhn, Loeb &
Co. The watchword of these millionaire bakers was “preparedness”,
and Asst. Sec of the Navy Franklin Delano Roosevelt was already
letting large Navy contracts in 1916, a year before we got into the war.

Col. House wrote to President Wilson from London on May 29,
1914, “Whenever England consents, France and Russia will close in
on Germany and Austria.”

While preparing for war, Woodrow Wilson campaigned in 1916
on the slogan, “He kept us out of war”. H.C. Peterson notes in
“Propaganda for War”, Univ. Oklahoma Press, 1939, “To a large
extent, the 9 million people who voted for Wilson did so because of
the phrase, ‘He kept us out of war.”” Col. House later told Viereck that
Wilson had concluded an agreement with the British in 1916, long
before his campaign, to involve us in the war. Roosevelt repeated the
process in 1939.

When we went into World War [, Wilson appointed his campaign
fundraiser, Bernard Baruch, head of the War Industries Board. Baruch
was later investigated by the Graham Committee. He testified, “I
probably had more power than perhaps any other man did in the war;
doubtless that is true.” He said of his prewar actions, “I asked for an
interview with the President. [ explained to him as earnestly as [ could
that I was deeply concerned about the necessity of the mobilisation of
the industries of the country. The President listened very attentively
and graciously, as he always does, and the next thing I heard, some
months afterward, my attention was brought to this Council of
National Defense.”
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“MR. GRAHAM: Did the President express any opinion about the
advisability of adopting the scheme you proposed? BARUCH: I think
[ did most of the talking. GRAHAM: Did you impress him with your
belief that we were going to get into the war? BARUCH: I probably
did. GRAHAM: That was your opinion at the time? BARUCH: Yes.
I thought we were going to get into the war. I thought a war was
coming long before it did. MR. JEFFRIES: Then the system you did
adopt did not give the Lukens Steel & Iron Co. the amount of profit
that the low-producing companies did? BARUCH: No, but we took
80% away from the others. MR. JEFFRIES: The law did that, didn’t
it? BARUCH: The government did that. GRAHAM: What did you
mean by the use of the word ‘we’? BARUCH: The government did
that Excuse me, but  meant we, the Congress. GRAHAM: Youmeant
that the Congress passed a law covering that. BARUCH: Yes, sir.
GRAHAM: Did you have anything to do with that? BARUCH: Not
athing. GRAHAM: Then [ would notuse the word ‘we’ if [ were you.”

Although Baruch played a crucial role in funding Wilson’s
campaign, in 1916, he had not ignored Wilson’s almost successful
opponent, Charles Evans Hughes. Carter Field points out, in his
biography of Baruch, “My personal view is that Baruch would have
been tremendously important in the Hughes election, if Hughes had
been elected in the close election of 1916, both in the conduct of the
war and in the making of the peace.” Field continues, “Under this
curious cloak of anonymity, Baruch exercised a very unusual type of
political power in those early Wilson days. He was cultivated by most
of the Wilson lights, who speedily found out that he could do more for
them than they could do by directly appealing to Wilson. Naturally,
there was no publicity for all this.”

Field also says, “For one thing, Wilson not only loved Baruch, he
ADMIRED him. Mrs. Wilson makes this specific statement in her
Memoirs.”

Wilson’s relations with others were not always marked by such
deep affection. David Lawrence, in his biography of Wilson, “The

True Story of Woodrow Wilson”, notes that in June, 1907, former
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President Grover Cleveland, a trustee of Princeton, publicly denounced
Wilson’s plans to alter the character of the school, making a “bitter
attack”. Cleveland had come to live in Princeton after he left the
White House, and was deeply attached to the university. He died in the
summer of 1908. That fall, when Wilson, as president of the school,
made his annual opening speech, he made no mention of Cleveland’s
death, nor did he ever schedule a memorial exercise, as was the custom
when a trustee passed away.

The Baruch - War Industries Board is particularly important to the
present work, not only because of the dictatorial power exercised by
Baruch during the war years, but because the WIB members have
continued to govern the United States. From WIB and the American
Commission to Negotiate the Peace came the Brookings Institution,
which set national priorities for fifty years, NRA and the entire
Roosevelt administration, and World War II. Working with Baruch at
the WIB was his asst. chairman, Clarence Dillon of Dillon, Read;
Robert S. Brookings, chmn Price Fixing Committee of WIB, later
founded the Brookings Institution; Felix Frankfurter, chmn of the
WarPolicies Labor Board; HerbertHooverand T.F. Whitmarsh of the
U.S. Food Administration; H.B. Swope, publicity agent for Baruch;
Harrison Williams; Albert Ritchie, later Gov. of Maryland; Gen.
Goethals; and Rear Adm. F.F. Fletcher. Goethals was replaced by
Gen. Pierce, who was then replaced by Gen. Hugh Johnson, who
became Baruch’s righthand man for many years. Field tells us that
“Gen. Hugh Johnson stayed on Baruch’s payroll for two months after
he became head of NRA (during the New Deal. )” Field quotes
Woodrow Wilson as having Baruch at the WIB, “Letthe manufacturer
see the club behind your door.” Baruch told the Graham Committee,
“We fixed prices with the aid of potential Federal compulsion.”

Left outin the Baruch-Wilson mutual esteem society was William
Jennings Bryan, longtime head of the Democratic Party. Bryan not
only opposed our entry into World War II—he dared to criticise the
family which had organized the war, the Rothschilds. Because he
dared to mention the Rothschilds, Bryan was promptly denounced as
“anti-Semitic”. He responded, “Our opponents have sometimes tried
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to make it appear that we were attacking a race when we denounced
the financial policy of the Rothschilds. But we are not; we are as much
opposed to the financial policy of J.P. Morgan as we are to the
financial policy of the Rothschilds.”

Because of the secret planning needed to launch a major war,
control of the communications media was essential. Kent Cooper,
president of the Associated Press, notes in Life, Nov. 13,1944,
“Freedom of Information”, “Before and during the First World War,
the great German news agency Wolff was owned by the European
banking house of Rothschild, which had its central headquarters in
Berlin. A leading member of the firm was also kaiser Wilhem'’s
personal banker (Max Warburg). What actually happened in Imperial
Germany was that the Kaiser used Wolff to bind and excite his people
to such a degree that they were eager for World War I. Twenty years
later under Hitler the pattern was repeated and enormously magnified
by DNB, Wolff’s successors.”

Cooper later noted in his autobiography, “Barriers Down”,
“international bankers under the House of Rothschild acquired an
interest in the three leading European agencies. (Havas, France;
Reuters, England; Wolff, Germany).”

On April 28,1915, Baron Herbert de Reuter, Chief of the Reuters
Agency, shot himself. The cause was the crash of the Reuters Bank,
which had been organized by Baron Julius de reuter, founder of
Reuter’s, to handle foreign remittances withouttheirbeing subjected
to any accounting. He was succeeded by SirRoderick Jones, who says
in his autobiography, “Shortly after I succeeded Baron Herbert de
Reuter in 1915, it so happened that I received an invitation from Mr.
Alfred Rothschild, then head of the British House of Rothschild, to
lunch with him in historic New Court, in the City.” Jones prudently
refrains from telling us what was discussed at this meeting.

Only one member of Congress voted against the U.S. declaration
of war against Germany in World War I, Jeanette Rankin. She was

also the only member of Congress to vote againstourentry into World
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War II. Opponents of Wilson’s action were often beaten and
imprisoned. Eugene Debs was sentenced to a long prison term.
Congressman Charles Lindbergh ran for Governor of Minnesotaon a
platform opposing our participation in the war. The New York Times
regularlyran scathing denunciations of his campaign. On June 9,1918,
itnoted, “Rep. Clarence H. Miller denounced Lindbergh and the Non
Partisan League as seditious. ‘According toMr. Lindbergh the Liberty
Loanisainstrumentdevisedby the money sharks. It seems inexcusable
that any person allowed to be at large in the United States could
entertain or express such a view of this.”” Harrison Salisbury of the
New York Times states, “I have searched out the records and they
show that mobs trailed Charles K. Lindbergh Sr. during his 1918
campaign for the Republican nomination for the Minnesota
governorship. He was arrested on charges of conspiracy along with
the Non Partisan Leaguers; a rally at Madison, Minn. was broken up
with firehoses; he was hanged in effigy in Red Wing, dragged from the
speaker’s platform, threatened with Iynching, and he escaped from
town amid a volley of shots.”

Salisbury neglects to mention that a squad of Federal agents from
the Bureau of Investigation, led by J.Edgar Hoover on his first
important action, attacked Lindbergh and his family, dragged out all
the copies of Lindbergh’s Your Country at War, and burned them on
the lawn; when young Charles rushed forward to stomp out the fire,
Hoover knocked him down.

In the summer of 1917, Woodrow Wilson named Col. House to
head the American War Mission to the Inter-Allied War Cenference,
the first such American mission to a European council. With House
were his son-in-law, Gordon Auchincloss, and Paul Cravath, Kuhn
Loeb’slawyer. Auchincloss wasdirectorof Chase Natl. Bank, Solvay,
Sofina, and Cross & Blackwell.

Meanwhile, Walter Lippman and another group were busily
working on the plans for the League of Nations. Lippmann had
founded the American branch of the Fabian Society in 19035 as the
Intercollegiate Socialist Society, which later became the Students for
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a Democratic Society after a period when it was known as the League
for IndustrialDemocracy;JamesT. Shotwell and otherinternationalists
worked with Lippmann on this organization.

Although the war was going well for those who had promoted it,
hostilities were ended somewhat abruptly by the unforeseen
intervention of an aide to the Czar of Russia, Maj. Gen. Count
CherepSpiridovich, who says, “I had a long discussion with Gen.
McDonoughChiefofthe WarIntelligence Dept. in London; I submitted
on Sept. 1, 1918 a report advising him peace with Bulgaria would
provoke an uprisingin Slavic Austria, panicin Germany and surrender
of her armies; my advice was accepted; two weeks later peace was
signed with Bulgaria, two weeks later Austria was out of the war, two
weeks later Germany surrendered.”

L.L.Straussof Kuhn, Loeb Co. states he was one of four American
delegates who conferred with the Germans at Brussels inMarch 1919
on the final armistice. On Nov. 11,1918, the New York Times
headlined, “REDS GRIP ON GERMANY: Konigsberg, Frankfurt-
on-Main, Strassburg now controlled by Spartacist Soviets”. On Nov.
12, 1918, the New York Times stated, “The revolution in Germany is
today, to all intents and purposes, an accomplished fact.” On the same
day, the New York Timesheadlined, “SplendorReigns Again; Jewels
Ablaze” - The occasion was a galaeveningat the Metropolitan Opera,
with Caruso and Homer singing Samson and Delilah. Attending were
the Otto Kahns with the French Consul-General; the George F. Bakers
and his sister Mrs. Goadby Loew; Cornelius Vanderbilt and his
daughters; the Whitneys, the J.P. Morgans, and the E.T. Stotesburys;
the Fricks; Mrs. Bernard Baruch; her husband was in Europe on
important business; Mrs. Adolf Ladenburg. These celebrants were
also the principal investors in American International Corporation,
which was financing the Bolshevik Revolution in Russia.

The American Commission to Negotiate Peace predictably
included Walter Lippmann, the Dulles brothers, the Warburg brothers
(Paul from the U. S., Max from Germany) L.L. Strauss, Thomas
W.Lamont, as wellas House, Wilsonand Wilson’s Secretary of State,
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Robert Lansing, the Dulles’ uncle. Their genial host was Baron
Edmond de Rothschild. Representing France at the Peace Conference
was Finance Minister Klotz, who, according to Nowell-Baker, had for
years been usefully employed by the Rothschilds to distribute bribes
to the press. The Reparations Commission was established Jan. 25,
1919, with Bernard Baruch from the U.S., Klotz from France, and
Lord Cunliffe, Governor of the Bank of England, representing England.
Carter Field notes, “Nearly every afternoon Baruch had a pleasant
session at the Crillon with three or four of his old cronies from the War
Industries Board.”

Wilson returned to the United States July 8,1919, laden with one
milliondollarsworth of jewelry, gifts from appreciative Europeans as
areward forhis promise to get the U.S. into the League of Nations. Not
a single member of Congress had been with him at the Paris Peace
Conference. His associates were the Fabians of America, Dr. James
T. Shotwell, Eugene Delano, and Jacob Schiff. Herbert Hoover
immediately joined Col. House as the most vociferous advocate of our
joining the League of Nations.

Baruch later testifed before the Graham Committee; “I was
economic advisor with the peace commission. GRAHAM: Did you
frequently advise the President while there? BARUCH: Wheneverhe
asked my advice I gave it.  had something to do with the reparations
clauses. I was the American Commissioner in charge of what they
called the Economic Section. I was a member of the Supreme
Economic Councilin charge of raw materials. GRAHAM: Did you sit
in the council with the gentlemen who were negotiating the treaty?
BARUCH: Yes, sir, some of the time. GRAHAM: All except the
meetings that were participated in by the Big Five. BARUCH: And
frequently those also.”

The Reparations Commission ordered the Germans to issue four
issues of bonds, all to be delivered to the Reparations Commission as
follows: 1. 20 billion gold marks, 5 billion papermarks by May 1,1921
for the army of occupation. 2. War cost of Belgium - 4 billion gold
marksdue May 1,1926. 3. 40 billion gold marks at 21/2% interest from

43

1921-26,toberetiredin 1951.4. a 30-year provisional fund of general
reparations. (Treaty of Versailles, Financial Clauses 248-63).

The bankers immediately began to treat these gigantic sums as
sources of capital, to be monetarised by loans and other negotiable
instruments. Lloyd George told the N.Y. Journal American, June
24,1924; “The international bankers dictated the Dawes reparations
settlement. The Protocol which was signed between the Allies and
Associated Powers and Germany is the triumph of the international
financier. Agreement would never have been reached without the
brusque and brutal intervention of the international bankers. They
swept statesmen, politicians and journalists to one side, and issued
their orders with the imperiousness of absolute monarchs, who knew
that there was no appeal from their ruthless decrees. The settlement is
the joint ukase of King Dollar and King Sterling. Dawes report was
theirs. Theymsplredandfashlonedlt TheDawesReport was fashioned
by the Money Kings. The orders of German financiers to their
political representatives were just as peremptory as those of allied
bankers to their political representatives.”

Although the reparations clauses achieved the desired result of
forcing the Germans to fight a Second World War, the primary result
was the formation of a “front” world government, the League of
Nations, while in the background the conspirators established their
real governing body, the World Order, through the Royal Institute of
International Affairs, and its American subsidiary, the Council on
Foreign Relations.

In 1895, Cecil Rhodes, South African agent of the Rothschilds,
established a secret society whose avowed purposes was as follows:
“In the end Great Britain is to establish a power so overwhelming that
wars must cease and the Mlllenlurgfe realized.” To achleve this goal,
a group with similar aims, the Round Table, set up by Lord Alfred
Milner, into which J.P. Morgan had been recruited in 1899.
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The Council on Foreign Relations Handbook of 1936 states, “On
May 30,1919, several leading members of the delegations to the Paris
Peace Conference met at the Hotel Majestic in Paris to discuss setting
up an international group which would advise their respective
governments on international affairs. The U.S. was represented by
Gen. Tasker H. Bliss (Chief of Staff, U.S. Army), Col. Edward M.
House, Whitney H. Shepardson, Dr. James T. Shotwell, and Prof.
Archibald Coolidge. Great Britain was unofficially represented by
Lord Robert Cecil, Lionel Curtis, Lord Eustace Percy, and Harold
Temperley. It was decided at this meeting to call the proposed
organization the Institute of International Affairs. At a meeting on
June 5,1919, the planners decided it would be best to have seperate
organizations cooperating with each other. Consequently, they
organized the Council on Foreign Relations, with headquarters in
New York, and a sister organization, the Royal Institute of International
Affairs, in London, also known as the Chatham House Study Group,
to advise the British Government. A subsidiary organization, the
Institute of Pacific Relations, was set up to deal exclusively with Far
Eastern Affairs. Otherorganizations were setupinParisand Hamburg,
the Hamburg branch being called the Institut fur Auswartige Politik,
and the Paris branch being known as Centre d’Etudes de Politicque
Etrangere, at 13 Rue de Four, Paris VI.” The Hamburg branch was
established, of course, because of the Warburg family bank there.

Having dominated the Paris Peace Conference, Baron Edmond de
Rothschild saw the establishment of the World Order through these
groups as the crowning achievement of his life. The “founders” of the
RIIA were, one and all, Rothschild men; honorary chairman of the
CFR was Elihu Root, lawyer for Morgan and Kuhn, Loeb Co.;
Alexander Hemphill, a Morgan banker, and Otto Kahn of Kuhn, Loeb
Co.

The founders of the RIIA were Rothschild’s principal South
African agents; Sir Otto Beit, trustee of Rhodes Estate and director of
British South Africa Co.; Percy Alport Molteno, son of the first
Premier of Cape Colony; Sir Abe Bailey, owner of the Transvaal
Mines, who worked closely with Sir Alfred Milner in starting the Boer
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War; John W. Wheeler-Bennett, who became Gen. Eisenhower’s
political adviser at SHAEF London 1944-45; Sir Julien Cahn; and
Lionel Curtis, colonial secretary of the Transvaal, who gave his
address as the Round Table, 175 Picadilly Rd., London. He was later
appointed Beit lecturer on the colonial history of South Africa.

Other founders of RIIA included four members of the Astor
family —Viscount Astor, Hon. F.D.L. Astor, M.L. Astor, and H.J.J.
Astor, the latter being chmn of The Times and director of Hambros
Bank. The first President of RIIA was Lt. Col. R.W. Leonard,
president of the Coniagas Mines. The Lord Patron was Her Majesty
the Queen. All Prime Ministers and Viceroys of the Colonies since
1923 have been Honorary Presidents of RIIA. Stephen King Hall, in
his definitive work, “Chatham House,” says, “The Prince of Wales
graciously accepted the office of Visitor. This appointment secured
that the Institute could never be perverted to party or propaganda
purposes.”

The 1934 listof members of RIIA included Sir Austin Chamberlain,
Prime Minister, Chancellor of the Exchequer, Lord Privy Seal, and
Secretary of State for Foreign Affairs; Harold MacMillan, who
married the daughter of the Duke of Devonshire and later became
Prime Minister, and Lord Eustace Percy, Duke of Northumberland.
The 1942 membership list includes Sir Roderick Jones, head of
Reuters; G.M. Gatheren-Hardy; Sir Andrew McFadyen, chmn North
British Borneo Co. and United Rubber Estates - he served with the
British Treasury 1910-1917, represented the Treasury at the Paris
Peace Conference 1919-20, was Gen. Secretary of the Reparations
Commission, 1922-25; Commissioner of Controlled Revenues Berlin
1924-30, later with S.G. Warburg Co.; Col. Vickers; and Lord Brand,
managing director Lazard Bros., who married Lady Astor’s sister,
Phyllis Langhorne, was dep. chmn British Mission in Washington
1917-18, financial adviser to Lord Robert Cecil, chmn Supreme
Economic Council at the Paris Peace Conference; George Gibson, dir.
Bank of England; John Hambro of Hambros Bank; Lord Derby
(Edward Villiers), Lord of Treasury, Secretary of State for War, 1916-
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1918, who had a 69,000 acre estate in Lancashire,; and Lord Cromer
(Baring).

During its early years, RIIA was principally funded by the
Rothschilds through donations funnelled through Sir Abe Bailey and
Sir Alfred Beit. with about $100,000 year; since then, it has been
funded with many millions of dollars by the Rockefeller Foundation
and the Carnegie Corporation.

In 1936 the RIIA $400,000 budget was also funded by the
following corporate subscribers: N.M. Rothschild & Sons; British
South AfricaCo.; Bank of England; Reuters News Agency; Prudential
Assurance Co.; Sun Insurance Office Ltd; and Vickers-Armstrong
Ltd.; all of which were known as Rothschild enterprises. Other
subscribers were J.Henry Schroder Co., Lazard Freres, Morgan
Grenfell, Erlangers Ltd., and E.D. Sassoon Co.

A number of popular books now in circulation claim that the
Council on Foreign Relations is the secret government of the United
States. Nothing could be more incorrect. The members of the Council
on Foreign Relations have never originated a single item of policy for
the U.S. Government. They merely transmitorders to our government
officials from the RIIA and thc ‘House ot Rothschrld in London. Tt is
true that the CFR comprises aruling elite in the United States, but they
are mere colonial governors absolutely responsible to their overseers
in the World Order. However, every prominent American mentioned
in the present book is a member of the CFR, and therefore it is not
necessary to note it each time a name is mentioned. Not only do they
transmit orders to the White House, the Cabinet, the Federal Reserve
Board of Governors, and other government institutions, but they also
maintain absolute control of the foundations, whose duty it is to
formulate policy or organize it in accaptabla form to be transmitted to
the government. Shoup’s “Imperial Brain Trust”, 1969, notes that the
CFR includes 22 trustees of Brookings Institution, 29 at Rand, 14 at
Hudson, 33 at Middle East Institute, 14 0of 19 trustees of the Rockefeller
Foundation, 10 of 17 at Carnegie, 7 of 16 at Ford Foundation, 6 of 11
at Rockefeller Bros. Fund. This proves that the CFR runs these major
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foundations. In the academic world, CFR members number 58 on the
faculty at Princeton, 69 at the University of Chicago, and 30 at
Harvard. Of the banks which are the principal owners of Federal
Reserve Bank - stock directors of Chase include 7 CFR members, 8 at
P Morgan 7 atIst Natl City (now Citibank), 6 at Chemical Bank,
and 6 atl Brown Bros. Harriman.

The 1968 list of CFR members included John J. McCloy, chmn of
the board; Frank Altschul, secretary and vice-pres.; David Rockefeller
vice-pres.; and directors Robert V. Roosa, Douglas Dillon, and Allen
Dulles. McCloy also served as chmn Ford Féﬁhdation 1953-65,
director of the Rockefeller Foundation, and personal lawyer to the
Rockefeller family interests. His career is typical of a leading official
of the World Order. While a student at Harvard, he became a protege
of Felix Frankfurter. He Jomed the firm of Cravath, Swaine & Moore,
lawyers for Kuhn, Loeb Co. where he remained from 1925-40. In
1940 Frankfurter reccommended him to Henry Stimson as Asst. Sec.
of War, where he remained from 1941-45. He wrote and issued the
mfamous

P—

overrides his loyalty to the U.S.” Senator McCarthy termed this
directive “treasonable”.

McCloy succeeded Eugene Meyer as president of the World Bank
from 1947-49, was appointed High Commissioner of Germany where
he served from 1949-52, was chmn of the board Chase Natl Bank from
1953-61, and Rockefeller’s attorney since then. He is a director of
Union Pacific, Westinghouse, ATT, Dreyfus Sequibb, &
MercedesBenz. He married Ellen Zinsser, who is not otherwise
identified in McCloy’s 1947 Current Biography; inthe 1961 issue, she
isidentified as the niece of Hans Zinsser, abacteriologist. Thisis odd,
because she is also the daughter of John Zinsser, partner of J.P.
Morgan Co., and chmn of the board of Sharp & Dohme chemicals. It
is an interesting footnote to history that the son-in-law of a J .P.
Morgan partner should be appointed U.S. High ¢ Commlssmner of a
vanquished Germany.
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The New York Times noted on Aug. 6,1965, “J.J. McCloy
Proposes Foundation Pattern for European Giving”. He stated at
Salzburg, “I wish that there could be erected in Europe a complex of
foundations whose representatives could exchange thoughts with
those of American foundations and thus form a sort of informal
approach to some of the great problems of the day.” “Informal” is the
cade word.of the World Order. It means “issuing from world
headquarters”. McCloy did not state the obvious, that five men control
all of the major U.S. foundations, and that he wished they could have
the same system in Europe.

The RIIA has worked closely with the London School of
Economics, which was set up as a training school forthe World Order
bureaucrats. The school was established in 1920 with financial aid
from the Rothschilds and Sir Julius Wernher. Sir Ernest Cassel later
gavetheschool472,000pounds. Prof. J.H. Morgan wrotein Quarterly
Review, Jan. 1939, “When I once asked Lord Haldane why he
persuaded his friend Sir Ernest Cassel, grandfather of Lady
Mountbattem, to settle by his will large sums on the London School
of Economics, he replied, ‘Our objectisto make this institutiona place
to raise and train the bureaucracy of the future Socialist State.” Sir
William Beveridge, author of Great Britain’s ruinous Cradle to the
Grave political program, was director of the London School of
Economics from 1920-1937.

The British Empire has prospered on piracy, slavery and the drug
traffic. Drakes Pirates became the Merchants Adventurers Co.
(Sebastian Cabot) which later became the Chartered Co. of East India.
It was reorganized in 1700. It originally paid the Hong of Canton
silver for tea, but discovered they would accept opium instead. This
fortuitous arrangement encountered resistance from some Chinese
leaders, causing England to prosecute ten Opium Wars against China,
from the Opium War of 1840-43 to the Manchurian Conquest of 1931.

In 1715 the British East India Co. opened its first Far East office
in Canton. Crown Policy deliberately fostered opium addiction among

the natives to facilitate British political control. The British Empire
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was then threatened with bankruptcy if it lost the American colonies.
In order to defeat the rebels, the profits of the opium trade with China
were sent to the Elector of Hesse via Mayer Amschel Rothschild to
hire 16,800 Hessian troops. Thus the drug traffic and the Rothschilds
played a pivotal role in American history, although it has beenignored
or deleted from the history books.

David Ricardo, father of the quantity theory of money and the
“rent”, or loot theory, was on the Court of Proprietors of the East India
Co. He had John Stuart Mill appointed as Chief Examiner. The
colonial minister of England during the Opium Wars was Edward
Bulwer Lytton, who wrote the Treaty of Nanking in 1842, bringing
England $21 million in silver and control over the free port of Hong
Kong. B_riql_q gmn allied with the Hong Society, the Triads and
Assassins, torule the Chinese to the present time. Bulwer Lytton’s son
was Viceroy of India during the 1880s at the height of the opium trade,
and sponsored Rudyard Kipling’s writings about the British Raj in
India. The profiteers from the drug trade included William, Earl of
Shelburne, who organized Britain’s first Intelligence Service, whose
agents were drawn from Britain’s leading families. Its chairman was
George Baring, and it employed Adam Smith, Jeremy Bentham, and
Thomas Malthus. The Geneva headquarters was run by the Mallet
Prevost family, whose descendants include Allen Dulles of the CIA.
Basil Lubbock’s work, The Opium Clippers, 1933, lists the principal
owners of British vessels engaged in the opium trade, with color
illustrations of their flags. Most of them were ex-slavers. No. 1 was
Hon. East India Co. (known to the Chinese as Hon John Co.); 2.
Jardine Matheison; 3. Dent & Co.; 4. Pybus Bros.; 5. Russel & Co.;
6. Cama Bros.; 7. Duchess of Atholl; 8. Earl of Balcarras; 9. George
IV; 10. Prince Regent; 11. Marquis of Camden; 12. Lady Melville.

Basil Lubbock’s work, The Opium Clippers, 1933, lists the
principal owners of British vessels engaged in the opium trade, with
color illustrations of their flags. Most of them were ex-slavers. No.

1 was Hon. East India Co. (known to the Chinese as Hon John Co.);
2. Jardine Matheison; 3. Dent & Co.; 4. Pybus Bros.; 5. Russel & Co.;
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6. Cama Bros.; 7. Duchess of Atholl; 8. Earl of Balcarras; 9. George
IV; 10. Prince Regeant; 1 1. Marquis of Camden; 12. Lady Melville.

On Feb. 1,1927, the New York Times noted the passing of Sir
Robert Jardine, “the son and heir of the late Sir Robert Jardine, and
succeeded his father as the head of Jardine Mathieson & Co. ‘Hong
Kong which foralong time held almosta monopoly in the r 1mp0rtat10n
of Indlan opiuminto China. ” Sir Robert had inherited $20 million and
20,000 acres in Scotland. Dr. William Jardine had settled in Canton
in 1819.

The present Duke of Atholl owns 202,000 acres at Blair Castle,
and isthe only person in England authorized by the Crown to maintain
a private army. Lady Melville’s ancestor, George, the first Earl,
welcomed William of Orange to the throne in 1688 and was appointed
LordrkPriyx_vSeal.

In Paris, Banque Rothschild directors include Elie de Rothschild,
director of New Court Securities, Banque Leumi de Israel, Five
Arrows Fund N.V. Curacao; Alain de Rothschild, Five Arrows Fund
Curacao, Banque Lambert de Bruxelles; Guy de Rothschild - Rio
Tinto Zinc, New Court Securities, NY.; Sir James Goldsmith; Hubert
Faure, Ambassador to Colombia, pres. Schneider Madrid and ten Otls
companies; BemarddeVﬂlemeJane pres. Imetal, dlrector\'Coppe_rvyeld
Sir James Goldsmith is also chmn Generale Occidentale which owns
Grand Union and Colonial food stores in the U.S., Cavenham USA
and Banque Occ1dentale its directors include David de Rothschild
(son of Guy), who is also director of Compagnie du Nord and Societe
de Nickel.

Through the Belgian branch of the Rothschild family, we can trace
the influence of the Rothschilds in Africa during the past century.
Baron Leon Lambert financed King Leopold’s Belgian empire; the
Congo Syndicate included Baron Empain (l’compaghie d’Orient) F.
Philippson & Co., and Banque Outremer. This syndicate was allied
with Banque de Paris, the Anglo- Italian Group, and the Peking
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had financed Stanley’s explorations. It included an area the size of
Poland, and produced fabulous returns from Congo rubber, ivory and

slaves. Later the Union Miniere acquired vast copper mines, the

Compagnie de Katanga. One of their most ruthless agents was Emile
Francqui, who later became Hoover’s partner in China and in the
Belgian Relief Commission; his name survives at Congo’s Port
Francqui. The Congo interests are now controlled by the Lamberts
through Societe Generale de Banque, which merged the Societe
Generale de Belgique, the oldest bank in Brussels, founded in 1822,
and Banque d’ Anver, founded 1827; its secretary is Baron Fauconval,
a director of the Rockefeller Foundation. Societe Generale acquired
Union Miniere in Dec. 1981; in 1972 it had acquired Compagnie
Outremer, formerly Banque Outremer, andinDec. 1964, had acquired
25% of SOFINA, Societe Financier de Transport & Enterprises
Industrielles, the largest holding company in Europe. These firms are
controlledby the Rothschildbank, Banque Bruxelles Lambert, founded
in 1840 by Baron Lambert. The present Baron is director of Soceite
Generale de Banque, and president of Compagnie Generale
d’Enterprises Electricque which owns fifty power companies.

Banque Lambert de Bruxelles is also the Lambert of the Wall
Street firm of Drexel | Burnham Lambert, owning 19% of it. As the
Belglan branch of the Hou se of Rothschlld the Lamberts
tremendous influence on Amerlcan ﬁnanc1al markets when they
ploneered in the w1despread use of hlgh interest paying, hlgh risk
bonds, called Junk bonds”, to take over and buy out may of the
Fortune 500 companies in the United States Insider trading became
an increasing scandal, as many billions of dollars were made in quick
profits by Drexel Burnham Lambert employees such as Michael
Milken, who earned $500 million a year in his trading of junk bonds.
He is now serving a prisonterm. These operations created the climate
for a major recession which now plagues the nation.

Gerard Eskenazi is director of Compagnie Generale; he is also
managingdirector of Electrorail S.A., aholdingcompany for Schneider
S.A., European Trading and African Corp., and Canadian Investment
Trust. The president of Electrorail is Baron Empain. Eskenazi is also
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director of Compagnie International des Wagons Lits (Thomas Cook
travel agency). Baron Edouard Empain and his son Baron Francois
Empain are also directors of Compagnie Generale.

Another Belgian holding company, Delhaizes Frere et Cie Leon,
established 1867, now owns Food Giant and Food Town Stores in the
U.S., renamed Food Lion.

Through Banque Bruxelles and its interlocking companies, the
Rothschildseffectively control Belgium. They alsointerlock with the
Thurn und Taxis interests in Germany. Prince Johannes Erbprinz
Thurn und Taxis is said to be the richest man in Europe, controlling
Bayerische Vereinsbank, fourth largest bank in Germany, which has
four subsidiaries in Frankfurt, including Bankhaus Gebruder
Bethmann. Bethmann-Hollweg of this family had been Chancellor
under Kaiser Wilhelm, and had set off World War I. He was a cousin
of the Rothschilds. Bayerische Vereinsbank also owns controlling
interest in Banque de Paris et dea Payes, and Banque de I’Europeene
Paris. Thurn und Taxis is a direct descendant of William of Orange,
who chartered the Bank of England his mother, the Princess of
Braganza of the former ruling house of Portugal, has three direct
family connections with the present House of Windsor; Prince Thurn
und Taxis also has four connections with the House of Windsor.

The Thurn und Taxis family has enjoyed eight hundred years of
prominence in Europe. Originally Tasso of Bergamo, they later
emigrated to Brussels. They supervised the postal service and
intelligence of the Most Serene Republic of Venice, and later fulfilled
the same post in the Hapsburg Empire. The present Prince has huge
estates in Brazil; he is the financial adviser of the Rolling Stones; and
his palace of St. Emmeransis largerthan Buckingham Palace; it costs
2.5 million DM a year to maintain. The Regensburg branch of the
family was allied with the Fuggers and the Wessers. They now finance
the Pan European Union which is headed by the Hapsburg heir,
Archduke Otto, and the Mont Pelerin Society, a subsidiary of Pan
Europe.
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The House of Hesse, which played such a crucial role in the
founding of the Rothschild fortune, and in the founding of America,
seldom appears in the news. On Nov. 17,1937, six members of the
family were killed in the crash of a Sabena airliner at the fog-shrouded
Ostend airport. The head of the family, Grand Duke Ernst Ludwig
(whohadtried toend World WarI by a desperate mission into Russia
to confer with the Czar) had died on Oct. 9, causing the postponing of
Prince Ludwig’s marriage to Margaret Campbell Geddes in London
for seven weeks. Grand Duke George, the new head of the family, his
wife Princess Cecilia of Greece and Denmark, two sons and the
Dowager Duchess, as well as the newly born son of Princess Cecilia,
were all killed. The child’s unexpected arrival apparently caused the
tragedy, as the pilot tried to land at Ostend, an unscheduled stop.
Prince Ludwig, social attache at the German Embassy in London,
went ahead with the wedding on the following day; his best man was
his cousin Prince Louis Mountbatten. Two princes of Hesse had
married two daughters of Queen Victoria; Beatrice had married
Prince Henry of Battenberg; grandfather of the present husband of
Queen Elizabeth.

Prince Ludwig’s father-in-law, Sir Auckland Campbell Geddes,
also had a Rothschild connection; he was chmn of Rio Tinto. He
served as Minister of National Service, 1917-19, British Ambassador
to the U.S., 1920-24. His brother, Sir Eric Geddes, was a member of
the Imperial War Cabinet and First Lord of the Admiralty 1917-18,
Minister of National Transport 1919-21, and later chmn Imperial
Airways and Dunlop Rubber. His son, Sir Anthony Geddes, married
into the Matthey family, becamse director of the Bank of England, dep
chmn Midland Bank, director Shell Transport & Trading, and is now
chmn Dunlop Holdings. Sir Auckland’s son, the 2d Baron, was with
Shell Oi11931-46, BritishMerchant Shipping Missionin Washington,
1942-44, Minister of War Transport, 1944-45, and is now director of
Peninsular & Orient Steamship Lines.

OnlJune 7,1946, the New York Times headlined a front page story
from Frankfort-on-Main; the army was seeking $1,500,000 in stolen

jewels, later revised to $3 million value. The jewels, belonging to the
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House of Hesse, had been hidden in their cellar of their castle in 1944.
They belonged to Princess Margaretha, sister of Kaiser Wilhelm. A
party of U.S. Army officers had held a party at the Hesse castle to
celebrate the anniversary of D-Day. During the party, they discovered
1600 bottles of wine buried in the cellar; beneath the wine they found
the jewels. Ten of the celebrants drank the wine and divided up the
jewels. Maj. Gen. J.M. Bevans, who was reprimanded, later returned
his part of the loot. Wac. Captain kathleen Durant and her hustand,
Col. J. Durant were tried after two quarts of diamonds were dug up in
the backyard of their Falls Church home. Maj. David Watson also was
sentenced; he had been previously awarded the Bronze Medal
personally by Gen. Eisenhower for his supply work, and also received
the Russian Medal for Battle Merit from Marshal Zhukov.

The House of Hesse is also known for the Curse of Hesse, their
introduction of the family disease of haemophilia into many of the
ruling houses of Europe, particularly the Spanish Royal Family and
the Romanov family in Russia.

Old Mayer Amschel’s heritage has survived intact, according to
the Washington Post, Dec. 20,1984, which notes that Frankfurt-am-
Main is the financial capital of Germany, headquarters of the five
dominant German banks, with 175 foreign banks established there. It
also is headquarters for the Central Bank, and the country’s largest
stock exchange. Like Manhattan, it is also a center of vice and
corruption, with sex shops, drugs, and frequent riots because of the
presence of 11,00.0 American occupation troops.

Penetration of the United States is shown by a fullpage ad in the
Wall Street Journal Dec. 21, 1984, a solicitation to purchase all the
outstanding shares of Scovill, Inc. by First City Properties, Inc. with
the deal managed by Rothschild, Inc. One Rockefeller Plaza, New
York. “First City” is the Rothschild code for banks originating under
their influence from the “City of London” financial district. First City
Properties, Beverly Hills, Calif., is headed by Samuel Belzberg, who
also heads First City Financial Corp. Vancouver, First City Trust,
Edmonton, and First City Development Ltd. He is a director of Dead
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Sea Canal Co. The Belzbergs started in Canada with a used furniture
store (rag and bone men), and are now influential wheeler dealers on
the American stock market.

RothschildsInc.,established atthe Rockefelleraddress,is successor
to Banque Rothschild of Paris. Its co-chairmen are Guy de Rothschild
and Evelyn de Rothschild. Directors are Lord Rothschild, head of
N.M. Rothschilds & Sons, London; David de Rothschild, Nathaniel
de Rothschild, Eric de Rothschild; Thomas L. Piper III, sr. vp Dillon
Read and manager of the Rothschild’s New Court Securities; its
managing director is Wilbur L. Ross Jr., who is also director of
Peabody International, and N.M. Rothschild’s & Sons International.
Other directors of Rothschild International include John Loudon,
former chairman of Shell Qil, director of Ford Motor Co., the Ford
Foundation, Orion Bank and chairman of Atlantic Institute. He is a
Grand Officer of the Order of Orange-Nassau, a group formed to
commemorate the chartering of the Bank of England by William of
Orangein 1694. Anotherdirector of Rothschild Inc. is G. Peter Fleck,
born in Amsterdam, chairman New Court Securities, formerly with
Erlangers, and the Banque de Pays de L’Europe Central of Paris, cited
by Higham as a key bank during Nazi occupation of France. Fleck is
also officer of the Order of Orange-Nassau.

Banque de Pays de L’Europe of Paris, (Paribas) was recently
bought by Merrill Lynch. Paribas bought 50% of Dillon Read Ltd. in
a consortium with Bruxelles Lambert (the Belgian Rothschilds), the
Power Group and the Laurentian group of Canada, the Tata Group of
India,EldersIXL holdingcompany of Australia, Swiss Bank Cantrade,
and two British groups, Investors in Industry, a Bank of England
group with nine English and Scottish banks, and the British postal
pension fund.

Power Corp. of Canadadirectorsincluded G. Eskenazi, of Belgian
Rothschild firms, and William Simon, former Secretary of the Treaaury
ofthe U.S. The “Canadian connection”, the Belzbergs and Bronfmans,
demonstrates the growing power of the Rothschilds in billion dollar
mergers and takeovers of U.S. industry, including DuPont. These
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mergers recall the same kind of activity taking place in 1929, just
before the stock market debacle, and represent the battening down of
the hatches before the storm.

Power Corp. interlocks with the leading newspaper chain of
Canada, the Hollinger Group, whichrecently boughtthe mostimportant
newspaper in Israel, the Jerusalem Post, the national newspaper of
record, which became the leading hawk for Gen. Ariel Sharon’s
aggressive acts, and which now advocates anew and stronger alliance
between Mossad, Israeli Intelligence, and the KGB, supposedly to
combat “antiSemitism” and to discourage Germany’s industrial
productivity. Hollinger’s also bought animportant English paper, the
London Dail Intelligencer. At the 68th annual banquet of the
Hollinger Group, held in London, William F. Buckley, editor of the
National Review, the leading neoconservative and CIA mouthpiece,
effusively praised the chairman of Hollinger’s, Conrad Black, drivelling
abouthis “encyclopaedic knowledge, his absolute sense of orientation,
and his modest manners.” Former Prime Minister Margaret Thatcher
deliveredthe principal address, after which Black rose to mention “the
great debt I among so many owe her.”

Other directors of Hollinger’s are Henry Kissinger, of whom more
later; liquor tycoon Peter Bronfman, chairman of Brascan Ltd., a
Canadian enterprise of the Rothschilds which began in May 1945 as
the British Newfoundland Corp. It was rechartered by William
Stephenson, the famed assassin and spymaster known as “Intrepid’”’,
who renamed it British American Canadian Co; he then changed the
name to World Commerce Corp. operating out of Panama, until it
received its present name of Brascan. Also on the board of Brascan
is Edgar Bronfman, president of the World Jewish Congress, and
chairman of Seagrams liquor in New York. Also serving on the board
of Hollinger Group isLord Carrington, former Foreign Minister of
Great Britain, a cousin of the Rothschilds who co-founded Kissinger
Associates with Henry Kissinger, later was chairman of NATO in
Brussels, and is now a director of Christie’s, the art auction house.

Conrad Black was the protege of Edward Plunket Taylor, wartime
spymaster with William Stephenson. Hollinger owns eighty
newspapers and one hundred and fifteen weeklies in Canada, United
States, Israel and England. The Rothschilds urged Black to purchase
the Jerusalem Post, which was financed through the Gee Corp. of
Vancouver, a financial cover for Li Ka-Shing, vice chairman of the
Hong Kong Shanghai Bank, which has historically been known as the
drug barons’ bank. Black then added Evelyn de Rothschild, of N.M.
Rothschild’s & Sons, London, to the board, with Henry Jardine and
Sir James Goldsmith, another relative of the Rothschilds. The
Hollinger Group originally was created by Churchill during World
War Il through Edward P. Taylor; it merged with a firm called Argus,
which controlled Canadian Breweries, the worlds largest brewer, the
operation was part of Churchill’s using war funds to set up vast
corporate conglomerates as the War Supplies Corp., a “nonprofit
company”. It later made one billion dollars profit during World War
II. Also serving on the board of Hollinger Group in financier
Frederick S. Eaton, Allan Gotlieb, former Canadian Ambassador to
the United States until his wife’s imbroglio with a secretary; and Paul
Reichmann, of thebillion dollarreal estate holding firm, Olympia and
York.

In addition to Hollinger Group, the largest owner of newspapers
in Canada and the United States is Thomson International. Lord
Kenneth Thompson was recently listed by Fortune as having a fortune
of six billion dollars. These two chains control the thought process of
most Canadians and Americans.
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CHAPTER THREE
SOVIET RUSSIA

“The religion of Marxism is the falsification of knowledge...
whence comes this fierce hatred of intellectuals for the least
barbaric societies of human history, and this rage to destroy the
only civilizations to date that have emphatically conferred a
dominant rule on intelligence?”

Jean Francis Revel, “The Flight from Truth;
the Reign of Deceit in the Age of Information”

Soviet Russia was allowed to emerge from the destruction of
World War II as one of the victors, solely because she was needed as
the next "evil empire" against which the civilized West could launch
a new Crusade. Because Russia was bankrupt, had lost 40 million of
her population in the war, plus another 66 million murdered by the
Bolsheviki since 1917, and was unable to feed herself, once again the
World Order was obliged to step in with enormous subsidies of food
and material from the U.S., in order to maintain an "enemy power".
The Belgian Relief Commission of 1916 became the Marshall Plan of
1948. Once again, the loads of supplies were shipped into Europe,
ostensibly for our Allies, but destined to maintain the Soviet bloc.

Although Jacob Schiff's personal agent, George Kennan, had
regularly toured Russia during thelatter part of the nineteenth century,
bringing in money and arms for the Communist revolutionaries (his
grandson said that Schiff had spent $20 million to bring about the
Bolshevik Revolution) more concerted aid was called for to support
an entire regime. Kennan also aided Schiff in financing the Japanese
in the Russo-Japanese War of 1905; the Japanese decorated Kennan
with the Gold War Medal and the Order of the Sacred Treasure. In
1915, the American International Corporation was formed in New
York. Its principal goal was the coordination of aid, particularly
financial assistance, to the Bolsheviks which had previously been
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provided by Schiff and other bankers on an informal basis. The new
firm was funded by J.P. Morgan, the Rockefellers, and the National
City Bank. Chairman of the Board was Frank Vanderlip, former
president of National City, and member of the Jekyll Island group
which wrote the Federal Reserve Act in 1910; directors were Pierre
DuPont, Otto Kahn of Kuhn, Loeb Co., George Herbert Walker,
grandfather of President George H. Bush, William Woodward, director
of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; Robert S. Lovett, righthand
man of the Harriman-Kuhn, Loeb Union Pacific Railroad; Percy
Rockefeller, John D. Ryan, J.A. Stillman, son of James Stillman
principal organizer of the National City Bank; A.H. Wiggin, and
Beekman Winthrop. The 1928 list of AIC directors included Percy
Rockefeller, Pierre DuPont, Elisha Walker of Kuhn, Loeb Co., and
Frank Altschul of Lazard Freres. In their program of aiding the
Communists, AIC worked closely with Guaranty Trust of New York
(now Morgan Guaranty Trust). Guaranty Trust's directors in 1903
included George F. Baker, founder of the First National Bank; August
Belmont, representative of the Rothschilds; E.H. Harriman, founder
of Union Pacific Railroad; former vice president of the U.S., Levi
Morton, who was a director of U.S. Steel and the Union Pacific; Henry
H. Rogers, partner of John D. Rockefeller in Standard Oil, also a
director of Union Pacific; H. McK. Twombly, who married the
daughter of William Vanderbilt, and was now the director of fifty
banks and industries; Frederick W. Vanderbilt, and Harry Payne
Whitney.

No one would seriously believe that bankers of this magnitude
would finance an "anti-capitalist” revolution for the Communists, yet
this is exactly what happened. These same men financed Woodrow
Wilson's political campaigns, and it was these same men to whom
Wilson referred in his opening address to the Paris Peace Conference,
when he said, "There is moreover a voice calling for these definitions
of principles and purposes whichis, it seems to me, more thrilling and
more compelling than any of the moving voices with which the
troubled air of the world is filled. It is the voice of the Russian people.
There are men in the United States of the finest temper who are in
sympathy with Bolshevism because it appears to them to offer that
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regime of opportunity to the individual which they desire to bring
about.” (The Great Conspiracy Against Russia, Seghers and Kahn.)
The men of "the finest temper”, to whom Wilson referred, the
Morgans and the Rockefellers, did not really desire opportunity for
the individual; what they desired was the hfelong imposition of
slavery under the World Order and this is the goal which they
continue to strive to achieve, ona world wide basis.

These Americans "of the finest temper" chose Lenin to do their
workbecause he had outlined the plan they wantedin "The Threatening
Catastrophe” in September, 1917, 1. nationalisation of the banks.
Ownership of capital which is manipulated by the banks is notlost or
changed when the banks are nationalised and fused into one state
bank, so that it is possible to reach a stage where the state knows
whither and how, from where and at what time millions and billions
are flowing. Only control over bank operations providing they are
merged into one state bank will allow, simultaneously with other
measures which can easily be put into effect the actual levying of
income tax without concealment of ‘property and income. The state for
the first time would be in a position to survey all the monetary
operations, then to control them, then to regulate economic life.
FINALLY, to obtain millions and billions for large state operations,
without paying the capitalist gentlemen skyhigh commissions for
their services. It would facilitate the nationalisation of syndicates,
abolition of commercial secrets, the nationalisation of the insurance
business, facilitate the control of and the compulsory organization of
labor into unions, and the regulation of consumption. The
nationalisation of banks would make circulation of checks compulsory
by law for all the rich, and introduce the confiscation of property for
concealing mcomesLThe five points of the desired program then, are
nationalisation of the banks, nationalisation of the syndicates, the
abilition of commercial secrets, and the compulsory organization of
the population into consumer associations." '}

It was the publication of this program which catapulted Lenin into
the leadership of Russia via the Bolshevik Revolution. In 1917, Frank
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Vanderlip publicly referred to Lenin as "the modern version of
George Washington."

The Lenin program is not only the program of Soviet Russia—it
is the program of Roosevelt's New Deal, Truman's Socialism, the
postwar Labor Government in England, and the guiding principle of
subsequent American Administrations. The Labor Government of
England proved Lenin's dictum that the ownership of capital is not
affected by the nationalisation of the banks, when they nationalised
the Bank of England. The Lenin program is the en_tr_re_program of the
U.S. Internal Revenue Service, “the actual levying of income tax
without concealment of property or_income", "the confiscation
property for conceahng incomes". The Lenin program is the program
of the big rich precisely because it abolishes private property, and puts
itunder the control of the state. The state is controlled by the big rich,
the World Order.

Thedefinitive authority of the Lenin program captured the attention
of the financiers. Here was the opportunity to subdue and control all
future competition with the power of a totalitarian state, to stifle future
development, and to hold the entire population of the world in thrall
to their greed. This program took Lenin back to Moscow to seize the
government by force and to rule by terrorism. In "Germany and the
Russian Revolution”, we find Telegram No. 952 D 26135, State Sec.
tominin Copenhagen: Your Embassy is authorlzed to pay one e million
roubles to Helphand The correspondmg sum should be drawn from
the Legatlon assets o

Minister Copenhagen 23 Jan. 1916—Dr. Helphand; The sum of a
millionroublesalready reached Perograd, and devoted to the purposes
for which it was intended."” On May 8,1916, Berlin requested 130,000
M. for Russian propaganda. Under Secretary State to the Minister in
Bern, telegram No. 348; "It was considered advantageous to Germany
to brmg out the members of Lenin's party, the Bolsheviks, who are
about forty in number. The specialtrain will be under m111tary escort
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Vernadsky says, in his "Life of Lenin", "Inthe autumnof 1915, the
German Russian Social Democrat Parvus Helphand (Israel
Lazarevitch) who had formerly been active in the Revolution of 1905,
announced the paper published by him in Berlin, 'The Bell', his
mission to 'serve as an intellectual link between the armed Germans
and the revolutionary Russian proletariat.. During the war
Helphand wasengaged in furnishing supplies to the Germany army in
huge quantities, and so considerable amounts of money passed
through his hands....A railway car in which were Lenin, Martov, and
other exiles was attached to the train leaving for Germany from
Switzerland on April §, 1917. On April 13, Lenin embarked on the
steamer sailingfromSassnotzto Sweden. Sothetripthrough Germany
took at least four days."

The Leninists quickly exhausted the funds advanced by the
Germans when they reached Russia, and once again the Bolshevik bid
for absolute power seemed in doubt. To whom should Lenin turn but
his powerful friend in the White House? 7 Wilson promptly sent Elihu
Root, Kuhn Loeb lawyer and former Secretary of State, to Russia with
$20 mﬂhon from his Special War Fund, to be given to the Bolsheviks.
This was revealed in Congress10nal Héarings on Russian Bonds, HJ
8714.U5, which shows the financial statement of Woodrow Wilson's
expenditure of the $100 million voted him by Congress as a Special
War Fund. The statement, showing the expenditure of $20 million in
Russia by Root's Special War Mission to Russia, is also recorded in
the Congressional Record, Sept.2,1919, as given by Wilson's secretary,
Joseph Tumulty.

Not to be outdone in generosity, J.P. Morgan & Co. also rushed
financialassistance tothebeleagueredLemntt:rrorlsts Col. Raymond
Robins headed a Red Cross Mission to Russia. Henry P. Davison, J.P.
Morgan's righthand man (also a member of the Jekyll Island team
which secretly wrote the Federal Reserve Act in 1910), had raised
$370 million in cash for the Red Cross during World War I, of which
several millions were brought to the Russians by Robins team. Aiding
him in this charitable work were Frank Vanderlip, chairman of
American International Corp., and William Boyce Thompson, another

o3

director of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. Major Harold H.
Swift, head of the meat packing family, accompanied Robins on this
mission of mercy, or should we say business? Swift used the occasion
to garner a $1@ million meat order for his brother-in-law, Edward
Morris, of Morris Co. On Jan. 22,1920, the Soviets ordered another
$50 million of meat from Morris Co.

Wall Street lawyer Thomas D. Thacher was also a key man of the
Robins mission of mercy. The involvement of the J.P. Morgan firm
with the Bolshevik Revolution is revealed in Harold Nicholson's
biography of Dwight Morrow (Morrow was the father-in-law of
Charles Lindbergh Jr.) as follows, "His (Morrow's) interest in Russia
dated from March 1917 when Thomas D. Thacher, his law partner,
had been a member of the American Red Cross Mission during the
revolution. It was strengthened by his friendship with Alex Gumberg,
who had come to New York as representative of the All-Russian
Textile Syndicate. 'I have felt," he wrote in May 1927, 'that the time
would come when something would have to be done for Russia.' He
was himself active in furthering official relations between Soviet
emissaries and the State Dept., and he provided M. Litvinoff with a
warm letter of recommendation to Sir Arthur Salter in Geneva. Nor
was this all. When in Paris he gave a dinner party at Foyot's to which
he invited M. Rakovsky and other Soviet representatives."

Morrow's actions might be understandable in a professor of
economics at Polytechnic U., but they are incredible from a partner of
the world's most prominent banking firm. Alex Gumberg was no
mewling social worker but a hardcore propagandist, who returned to
the U.S. in 1918 as Trotsky's literary agent, and promptly placed two
Trotskymanuscripts with publishers. Gumberg alsobecame consultant
to Chase National Bank, and Simpson Thacher and Bartlett. He had
been business manager of the Soviet paper Novy Mir during the first
months of revolution in Russia; when Raymond Robins' Red Cross
Missionarrived in Russia, Gumberg served asinterpreterand advisor
to the Mission, working closely with Thacher. The present senior
partner of Simpson Thacher and Bartlett is Cyrus Vance, who served
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as Carter's Secretary of State, and is now a director of the Rockefeller
Foundation.

The international financiers, advised by Gumberg, now launched
a worldwide propaganda campaign to sell the Bolsheviks asidealists,
selfless humanitarians, and the modern disciples of Christ, who
wished only to spread brotherhood and universal love throughout the
world. The tune rang strangely against the backdrop of the machine
guns steadily chattering in Russiaas the "disciples of love" massacred
millions of women and children, but none of their devout admirers in
the United States heard this as a sour note.

Fromthe outset, the "humanitarians" showed an excessive concern
for the material wealth which they had seized from its rightful owners.
The New York Times noted on Jan. 30,1918, a despatch from
Petrograd, "The people'scommissaries have decreed a State Monopoly.
of gold. Churches, museums and other public institutions are required
to place their gold articles at the disposal of the State. Gold articles
belonging to private persons must be handed over to the State.
Informants will receive one-third of the value of the articles."

e g e e e e e

Lenin said, "The Soviet Union must carefully save its gold. When
living with the wolves, howl like the wolves."

One of the first orders issued by the new regime was, "The banking
business is declared a state monopoly." Signed; Lenin, Krylenko,
Podvolsky, Gorbunov.

Marx's philosophy of history claims that the world operates solely
through the economic organization of society, based on the production
and exchang_q of goods However, this is the world view of the
parasite, who is concerned only with obtaining his sustenance from
the host. The materialist reduction of life to the obtaining of food at
someone else's expense eliminates first, man's spiritual life, second,
all ideas, because the materialist idea explicitly excludes all other
ideas, and third, the long term view, the concept of investing over a
period of time for a return which will not be available for years or
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Eggbgp_sggyﬁer. The parasitic view is limited to the next meal, or to
creating a situation in which he cannot be dislodged before obtaining
his next meal. This Marxist short term view has become the standard
doctrine in American graduate schools of business, particularly
Harvard, which was financed by George F. Baker and J.P. Morgan.
The result is that American industry, limited by the short term view,
has steadily declined for twentgf ﬁ\}e years. The hlgh interest rates
1mposed by theinternational bankersalso forceindustry toconcentrate

on short term gains merely to pay interest on their loans.

Marx said, "The first function of gold is to give the commercial
world amaterial by which to express value, thatis, to express the value
of all other goods, as homynous variables, that are qualitatively
identical and quantitatively comparable." Karl Marx Soc. v.23, p.104.

Marx's economic views were entirely compatible with the views
of the banking establishment in the City of London and particularly
the House of Rothschild. It isno accident that Karl Marx is buried, not
in Moscow, but in London, nor is it an accident that the triumph and
bloodbath of the Bolsheviks in Russia gave the Rothschilds and their
associates one billion dollars in cash Wthh the luckless Czar had
deposited in their European and New York banks Few people know
that Marx had close relations with the British aristocracy, through his
marriage to Jenny von Westphalen. She was related to the Scottish
Dukesof Argyll, whohad long beenrevolusonaries; and the Campbells,
who set up the baptist splinter group, the Campbellites.

Jenny von Westphalen's ancestor, Anna Campbell, Countess of
Balcarras and Argyll, was governess to the Prince of Orange from
1657-59, the future King William who later granted the charter of the
Bank of England; Archibald Campbell, first Duke of Argyll,
accompanied William on his voyage to England in 1688 to seize the
throne. The present Earl of Balcarras is related to Viscount Cowdray,
Weetman John Churchill Pearson, whose mother was the daughter of
Lord Spencer Churchill; his sister married the Duke of Atholl, and he
married the daughter of the Earl of Bradford. The Argyll-Balcarras
family is represented by the Lindsay and Campbell families; the
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present Earl of Crawford, Robert A. Lindsay is the 29th Earl, and also
the 12th Earl of Balcarras. He is also chairman of National Westminster
Bank, director of Rothschild's Sun Alliance Assurance. His mother
was a Cavendish. He was formerly private secretary to the Secretary
of State, and later served as Minister of State for Defense and Minister
of State for Foreign and Commercial Affairs.

Despite alater reputation for "anti-Communism", Herbert Hoover
was not only the most tireless proponent of the League of Nations in
partnership with Col. House; he also was the first American to step in
with large scale assistance to prevent a massive uprising against the
faltering Bolshevikregime. Hooversaved the Bolsheviks by organizing
a massive program to rush food to the beleaguered Communists.
Hoover enlisted one of his old colleagues from the World War Relief
Agency, Maj. Gen. William N. Haskell, who had been head of
American Relief Mission to Romania, and later directed all relief in
the Caucasus and Russia. On Sept. 23, 1921, Haskall embarked on his
new mission of mercy, to feed the Bolsheviks so that they would have
the strength to continue their mass murders of the landowners and
businessmen. Haskell continued this relief work until 1923, when it
was determined that the Bolshevik regime was no longer in danger.
For this effort, Herbert Hoover won massive opposition in his later
political career as an “anti-Communist”. Things indeed are not
always what they seem under the rule of the World Order. The Hoover
effort had provided seven hundred tons of food and other supplies at
a cost of $78 million. $20 million was approprlated by Congress for
the program; $40 million came from publlc charities; $8 m11110n worth
of medical supplies was donated by the U S. Army, /; and the Russians
themselves paid $8 million from their gold bupplles
from the late Czar). After Gen. Haskell's departure, Stalin arrested
anyone who had worked with them on this program. He could not
afford to allow anyone to mention the help that his regime had
received from a capitalist country. On Nov. 28,1917, his associate,
Col. House had cabled Wilson a few days after ihe Bolshewks qelzed
power, urging the extreme importance of suppressing all American
newspaper crmclsm of the Bolshev1ks "It is exceedingly important
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that such criticism be suppressed.” The telegram was placed in a
confidential file, and only came to light six years later.

In "The Unknown War with Russia", Robert J. Maddox noted in
1977, "Wilsongreeted the MarchRevolutionin Russia as amajor step
toward achieving the kind of postwar world he envisioned. He made
sure the U.S. was the first torecognize the Provisional Government."
Maddox points out that Wilson insisted that No. 6 of his famous
fourteen points at Versailles was that "Russia should continue under
institutions of her own choosing", thus guaranteeing the future of the
Bolshevik regime. His closest political aide, Col. House, sent his own
secretary, Kenneth Durant, to Russia to become a secretary in the
Soviet Bureau in 1920!

William Laurence Sanders, chairman of Ingersoll Rand, and
deputy chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, wrote to
Wilson, Oct. 17, 1918, "I am in sympathy with the Soviet form of
government as the best suited for the Russian people." George Foster
Peabody, also deputy chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York since 1914, and noted "philanthropist" who orgamzed the
General Education Board for the Rockefellers, stated that he supported
the Bolshewk form of state monopoly. Thus we had three of the most
promment ‘officials of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York on
record as supporting Bolshevism, Sanders, Peabody and William
Boyce Thompson Thompson then announced he was giving one
million dollars to promote Bolshevik propaganda in the United
States!Because the Federal Reserve Bank of New York wascontrolled
by five New York banks who owned 53% of its stock, and because
these Tive banks were directly controlled by N.M. Rothschild & Sons
of London, we can only conclude that these three men were merely
stating the preferences of their employer. William Boyce Thompson
led one of the strangest migrations in history, when fifteen prominent
Wall Street attorneys and financiers journeyed to Russia to save the
tottering Bolshevik regime. J.P. Morgan cabled Thompson one
million dollars for this mission from the National City Bank branch
in Petrdgrad which, significantly, was the only bank never molested
by the Bolshevik government. The Washington Post, Feb. 2, 1918,
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stated, “William Boyce Thompson, who was in Petrograd until
November, has made a personal contribution of one million dollars to
the Bolsheviks for the purpose of spreading their doctrine in Germany
and Austria.” the Thompson mission included Henry P. Davison,
head of the American Red Cross, and one of the Jekyll Island
conspirators in 1910 who secretly drafted the Federal Reserve Act;
Thomas Thatcher; and Harold Swift, all of whom were founders of the
Council on Foreign Relations. The National City Bank had already
loaned Russia $50 million, and Guaranty Trust, whose directors were
the leading financiers in New York, now became the financial
correspondent for Soviet interests in America. In January 1922,
Secretary of Commerce Herbert Hoover introduced on behalf of
Guaranty Trust a resolution permitting relations with "the new State
Bank at Moscow". Secretary of State Charles Evans Hughes strongly
opposed this resolution, but Hoover succeeded in getting it approved.
A German banker, Max May, now vice pres. of Guaranty Trust,
became head of the foreign dept. of the Ruskombank in 1923, the first
Soviet international bank. Who's Who states that Max May came to
the U.S. 1883, naturalized 1888, vice pres. Guaranty Trust 1904-18,
director and member of board Russian Commercial Bank 1922-25.
J.P.Morgan and Guaranty Trust acted as the fiscal agents of the Soviet
Government in the U.S.; the first shipments of "Soviet" gold, which
was actually the Czar's gold, were deposited in Guaranty Trust.

In a typical move to disguise their operations, Otto Kahn and
several officials of Guaranty Trustthen founded an "anti-Communist"
group, United Americans, which circulated virulent anti-Communist
and anti-Jewish propaganda. Like most such organizations, it was
designed to discredit and render impotent anyone opposed to
Communism who became involved in its work.

On Feb. 1, 1919, Edward L. Doheny, the oil tycoon, told C.W.
Barron, founder of the Wall Street Journal, "Pres. Eliot of Harvard is
teaching Bolshev1sm The worst Bolshev1ks in the U.S. are not only
and the wives of cap1tal1sts. Frank C. Vanderhp is a Bolshevik.
Socialism is the poison that destroys democracy. Socialism holds out
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the hope that a man can quit work and be better off. Bolshevismis the
true fruit of Socialism."

The world headquarters of the Bolshevik movement was now at
120 Broadway on Wall Street. The Equitable Life Bldg. at 120
Broadway had been built by a corporation organized by Gen. T.
Coleman DuPont. During the early 1920s, 120 Broadway not only
housed Equitable Life, but also the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York, whosedirectors were enthusiastically supporting the Bolsheviks;
the American International Corporation, which had been organized to
aid the Soviet Union; Weinberg and Posner, which received a $3
million order for machinery from the Soviet Union in 1919, and
whose vice president was Ludwig Martens, first Soviet Ambassador
tothe U.S.; John McGregor Grant, whose operations were financed by
Olaf Aschberg of Nya Banken, Stockholm, who had transmitted large
sums furnished by the Warburgs for the Bolshevik Revolution; the
Londonagentof Nya Banken was the British Bank of North Commerce,
whose chairman was Earl Grey, a close associate of Cecil Rhodes—
Grant had been blacklisted by the U.S. Government for his support of
Germany during World War I; and on the top floor of 120 Broadway
was the exclusive Bankers Club. These were the organizers of the
World Order. Their instrument of power was gold. The Great Soviet
Encyclopedia noted, "Under socialist economic conditions, gold is
also a universal equivalent, used as a measure of value and a scale of
prices. The gold content of the Soviet ruble was established at
0987412 gramsas perJan. 1,1961.In the world socialist market gold
is used as the universal money."

Many Americans are puzzled by the relentless devotion of the
Rockefeller Foundation to financing Communist organizations in
many parts of the world. This dedication to Communism can be traced
back to a crucial moment in the Bolsheviks' march to power. In 1917,
Mackenzie King had established a lifelong relationship with John D.
Rockefeller, Jr. whom he metinJune, 1914. They had beenborn in the
same year, 1874, and seemed to agree on everything. Soon, King was
working closely with Frederick T. Gates and Ivy Lee to further the
Rockefeller "philantlropies", which seemed to view Communism as
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the ideal vehicle to bring about world brotherhood. King wrote to this
friend Violet Markham, "John D. Rockefeller Jr., the truest follower
of Christ, has one purpose—to serve his fellow man." King resolved
that his one purpose was to serve Rockefeller; he testified for him at
the trial investigating the Colorado Iron and Fuel Co. massacre before
the Walsh Committee (the Rockefellers later tried to have Walsh
framed and expelled from the Senate, but failed due to the obstinancy
of Burton J. Wheeler; J.Edgar Hoover played a crucial role in setting
up the frame).

( The Rockefellers helped Mackenzie King obtain government
contracts for the Canadian Army during World Warl, which set King
up forlater blackmail (the "Panama" hold over the vassals). King sold
hundreds of tons of rotten meat to be sent to the Canadian Army in
Europe; boots of "leather”, which were mostly pasteboard and which
disintegrated immediately in the watersoaked trenches; rifles that
jammedwhen they were fired; and collar type life preservers (previously
condemned) which broke the soldiers' necks when they jumped into
the water. }

While Leon Trotsky was in New York in 1917, he received word
toreturn to Russia at once to help bring off the Bolshevik seizure of
power. The Rockefellers gave him $10,000 in cash for his journey,
procured a spec1al passport for him from President Woodrow Wilson,
and sent Lincoln Steffens to safeguard him on the journey. When
Trotsky's ship stopped in Halifax, the Canadian Secret Service,
warned that he was on board, arrested him on April 3,1917 and
interned him in Nova Scotia. The patriotic agents knew that Trotsky
was_on his way to Russia to take Russia out of the war against
Germany, which would free many German divisions to attack the
Canadian troops on the Western Front. Prlme Minister Lloyd George
indignantly cabled demands from London that” Trotsky be released,
but the secret service ignored him. By means never explained,
Mackenzie King then stepped into the breach and obtained Trotsky's
freedom. Trotsky continued on his way to Russia, and became Lenin's
chlef deEuty intheextermination of Russian citizens; he also organized
the Red Army with the able help of Wall Street lawyer Thomas D.
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Thacher. The agents who had arrested Trotsky were dismissed from
the service; their careers were ended. As areward for his intervention,
the Rockefellers appointed Mackenzie King head of the Rockefeller
Foundation dept. of Industrial Research at a salary of $30,000 a year
(the average wage in the U.S. at that time was $500 year). Frank P.
Walsh testified before a U.S. Commission that the Rockefeller
Foundation was a cloak for the Rockefeller plan to lead organized
labor into slavery.

King also became a director of the Carnegie Corporation. A Lady
Laurier left him a large mansion in Ottawa, and in 1921 a group of
wellwishers, led by Peter Larkin, refurbished and staffed it for him at
a cost of $255,000. King then appointed Larkin High Commissioner
of Canada in London. In 1940, the Canadian Parliament voted King,
then Prime Minister of Canada "absolute and dictatorial powers for
the duration”. On King's 74th birthday in 1948, John D. Rockefeller
Jr. gave him $100,000. The Rockefeller Foundation then put up
$300,000 to pay for the writing of King's Memoirs. In his final years,
King, still on the take, was exposed as a principal in the $30 million
Beauharnais Power Co.swindleduring the building of the St. Lawrence
Seaway. King had accepted $700,000 from Beauharnais for the
Liberal Party, and among other enticements had received a trip to
Bermuda.

The Rockefellers figured in many pro-Soviet deals during the
1920. Because of the struggle for power which developed between
Stalin and Trotsky, the Rockefellers intervened in October, 1926, and
backed Stalin, ousting Trotsky. Yearslater,they would again intervene
when the Kremlin was racked by disagreements; David Rockefeller
summarily fired Kruschev. John D. Rockefeller instructed his press
agent, Ivy Lee in 1925 to promote Commumsm in the U.S. and to
sparkplug a public relations drive which culminated in 1933 with the
U.S. government recognition of Soviet Russia. In 1927 Standard Oil
of New Jersey built a refinery in Russia, afterhaving been promised
50% of the Caucasus oil production. The Rockefeller firm, Vacuum
Oil, signed an agreement with the Soviet Naptha Syndicate to sell
Russian oil in Europe, and made a $75 million loan to Russia. John
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Moody had stated in 1911, "the Standard Oil Co. wasreally a bank of
the most gigantic character—a bank withinan industry...lending vast
sums of money to needy borrowers just as other great banks were
doing... the company was known as the Standard Oil Bank. As
Rockefeller was no banker, this meant that the Standard Oil was being
directed by professional bankers." The Standard Oil operation has
always been directed by the most professional bankers in the world,
the Rothschilds; consequently, the Rothschilds through their agents,
KuhnLoebCo. have maintained close supervision of the "Rockefeller”
fortune.

! In 1935, Stalin expropriated many foreign investments in Russia,
but the Standard Oil properties were nottouched. The Five Year Plans
(1928-32,1933-37,and 1938-42) were allfinancedby theinternational
banking houses. During the 1920s, the principal firms doing business
with Russia were Vacuum Oil, International Harvester, Guaranty
Trust and New York Life, all firms controlled by the Morgan-
Rockefeller mterests

Arthur Upham Pope's biography of Litvinoff notes that in March,
1921, a trade agreement was signed with Great Britain providing that
gold sent in payment for machines bought by Russia would not be
confiscatedtowardsolddebtsor claims. This insured that Czarist gold
sent to England would not be seized by his cousins, the British Royal
Family.OnJuly7,1922,Litvinoffrevealedthatthe Russian delegation
at the Hague Conference was negotiating with an important group of
financiers which included Otto H. Kahn of Kuhn Loeb Co. A week
later, Kahn arrived at The Hague. He stated, "The conference with the
Russians will bring useful results and will lead to a closer approach to
unity of views and policies onthe part of England, France and the U.S.
in respect to the Russian situation.” When Otto Kahn's wife visited
Russia in 1936, she was treated like visiting royalty.

In 1922, the Chase National Bank had established the American-
Russian Chamber of Commerceto promote trade withand government
recognitionof Russia. Its chairman was Reeve Schley, a vice president
of Chase; he was a director of many corporations including Howe
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Sound, Electric Boat, the Yale Corp., chairman of Sundstrand and
Underwood; he had served as director of the U.S. Fuel Administration
from 1917-1919. His son,Reeve Schley Jr. wasa Captainin the O.S.S.
under Gen. Donovanin World WarII. Both Chase and Equitable Trust
led in granting credits to the Soviet Union during the 1920s. In 1934,
Roosevelt established the Export Import Bank to finance increased
trade with the Soviet Union. During World ‘War II, Chase was
AMTORG'S principal bank in handling the many billions of dollars
of Lend Lease transactions for Russia. Roosevelt went all out in
supporting the Soviets, perhaps because all three of his personal
assistants, Alger Hiss, Lauchlin Currie and Harry Dexter White, were
identifiedas Sovietagents. Hiss' mentor was Dean Acheson, formerly
of J.P. Morgan Co. Asst Secretary of State A.A. Berle Jr. testified
before the House UnAmerican Activities Committee Aug. 30, 1948
that "Acheson was the head of the pro-Russian group in the State
Department."” Acheson later became senior partner of Covmgton and
Burling, obtammg the position for the firm as Washington legal
representative for nine Communist governments. On April 29,1943,
the Board of Economic Warfare granted a special license to Chematar
Corp. of New York to fill an order from the Soviet Purchasing
Commission for 200 Ib. uranium oxide, 220 Ib. uranium nitrate, and
25 Ib of uranlum metal, commodities virtually unknown at that time,

thus launchmg ‘the Soviet atomic program.

On Jan. 29, 1944, Special Ambassador W. Averill Harriman in
Moscow informed the State Dept. that "we" must turn over to the
Russians the currency printing plates which had been engraved for the
U.S. Treasury by Forbes Co. of Boston. The State Dept. delayed
action on this request for several weeks. On March 22, Harry Dexter
White met with Gromyko at the Soviet Embassy and assured him the
plates would be delivered. Both Harriman and White made daily
demands until the plates were turned over to the Soviet Union April
|14, 1944. The Soviet Union then printed $300 million in currency

which was redeemed by the American taxpayers.

After the "Cold War" began, the financiers continued their efforts
to aid the Soviets. In 1967, the New York Times announced thata new
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consortium had been formed to promote trade with Russia, composed
of Cyrus Eaton's Tower Corp., Rockefeller's International Basic
Economy Corp., and N.M. Rothschild & Sons of London. Eaton had
begun his career as a $2 a day factotum for John D. Rockefeller, who
later financed his purchase of Canadian Gas & Electric Corp. Eaton
stated that Rockefeller soon interested him in Russian affairs. In an
interview with Mike Wallace, Eaton claimed that under Communism,
the people of the Soviet Union were entirely contented. "They were
happy. I was amazed at their happiness and dedication to the system."
Eaton was one of the first defenders of the Stalin-Hitler Pact in 1939.

The Rothschilds have rarely been identified with Communist
causes, preferring to remain in the background. Only one member,
N.M. Victor Rothschild, who served an apprenticeship with J.P.
Morgan Co., had become involved with the Apostles Club at
Cambridge, described by Michael Straight as composed mostly of
Communists who were also homosexual. Its well known members
were Guy Burgess and Donald MacLean, Anthony Blunt, Keeper of
the Queen's Pictures, and the double, or triple agent Kim Philby.
During World War II Victor Rothschild, who was with M 15, lent his
London flat at No. 5 Bentinck St. to Burgess, while his mother, Mrs.
Charles Rothschild, hired Burgess as her investment counselor. Blunt
left the staff of the Warburg Institute to work with MI5; he introduced
Victor Rothschild to his aunt, Teresa Mayor, who later became Lady
Rothschild. Blunt has been recently described as having had an
"affectionate" relationship with the Queen.

The Rockefeller family is sometimes called the first family of the

Soviet Union. When Nelson Rockefeller was nominated for vice _

president in 1967, Pravda indignantly denounced his critics, saying
that charges against Rockefeller were designed only to discredit him,
and that the accusations came from ultra right wing organizations.

Senator Frank Church, attending the 1971 Dartmouth Conference at |

Kiev, was amazed to find that "David Rockefeller was treated like we
would treat royalty in this country. The Russian people appear to

evince an adoration of Rockefeller that is puzzling." When David |

Rockefeller's plane lands in Russia, crowds line up to greet him at the
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airport, and line the streets of Moscow as his limousine passes, hailing
him with cries of RAHK FAWLER". George Gilderremarked that no
one knows how to revere, blandish and exalt a Rockefeller half as well
as the Marxists.

After World War II, Dean Acheson frantically lobbied for an
additional $300millionloan to the Soviet Union. Ed Burling, who was
Frederic A. Delano's brother-in-law, had founded the firm of Covington
and Burling of which Acheson was partner, with Donald Hiss, brother
of Alger. When Acheson's lobbying failed to develop the Russian aid,
the Council on Foreign Relations drafted the Marshall Plan as an
alternative measure. Their publication, "Foreign Affairs", then
published the "containment plan” as writtenby "X" (George Kennan.
The policy of containment, which has been the official foreign policy
of the U.S. toward the Soviet Union since 1947, guarantees not only
SovietRussia'sborders, buther continued enslavement of the "Captive
nations" which she holds by military force. Henry Luce, who always
provided a forum for the international propagandists, reprinted the
entire text of the July, 1947 Foreign Affairs article in Life magazine,
July 28,1947. Its key sentence was "The main element of any U.S.
policy towards the Soviet Union must be the long-term, patient but
firm and vigilant containment of Russian expansive tendencies".
Luce's Time magazine dubbed Kennan "America's senior policy-
maker". He later became a fellow of the Institute of Advanced Study
of Princeton. Kennan was the nephew and namesake of the George
Kennan who operated as a Marxist agent for Jacob Schiffin Russia for
many years before the Bolshevik Revolution, and was finally expelled
by the Czarist Government. Kennan's pen-name "X" was a favorite
identification of Socialist operatives. In 1902, the Socialist "X" Club
had been founded in New York by John Dewey, whose Socialist
program has dominated American educatlon durmg ‘the twentieth
century. The other founders of the X" Club were James T. Shotwell,
founder of the League of Nations, United Nations etc.; Morris
Hillquit, Communist candidate for Mayor of New York, Charles
idward Russell, and Rufus Weeks, vice president and managing
director of New York Life, which was controlled by J.P. Morgan.
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When Nikolai Kruschev, dictator of the Soviet Union, came to
New York Sept. 17,1959, he was invited to dinner at W. Averill
Harriman's Home. Thirty people attended, who controlled aggregate
wealth of $40billion; they included Russian born David Sarnoff, head
of RCA, Philip Mosely of the Council on Foreign Relations; Herbert
H.LehmanofLehman Bros.; DeanRusk of the Rockefeller Foundation;
George A. Woods, First Boston Corp.; Thomas K. Finletter of
Coudert Bros., former Secretary of the Air Force; John K. Galbraith,
economist; Frank Pace of General Dynamics.

In Sept. 1960, Kruschev was entertained at Hyde Park at a dinner
given in his honor by Eleanor Roosevelt. Present at this select
gathering was Victor Hammer, who had fenced the Romanov jewels
in the U.S. He sold many Faberge items to Lillian Pratt, wife of the
General Motors tycoon; the collection is now in the Virginia Museum
in Richmond, Va.

In 1973, the U.S.-USSR Trade and Economic Council, consisting
of leading U.S. heads of corporations, was formed to promote "trade"
read (gifts) to the Soviet Union. In 1976, G.M. Miller of Textron was
named head of the Council. Shortly afterwards, he was appointed
chairman of the Federal Reserve Board of Governors by Carter. The
Bolshevik Revolution, which was nurtured through its most trying
days by three directors of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York,
William Boyce Thompson, George Foster Peabody, and William
Woodward, continues tobe supported by the Federal Reserve System.
The Federal Reserve System maintains close ties with the Gosbank,
the Soviet Central Bank, which controls the Communist Party of the
USSR. Gosbank employs 5000 economists, and is known as a
"passive", rather than an "active" bank of issue, meaning that it
follows orders from other sources, as does the Federal Reserve Board
of Governors. The Gosbank-Federal Reserve System "cooperation”
inSoviet financial lattersis handled through the Bank for International
Settlements in Switzerland.

In 1949, the present flood of "Eurodollars" originated as European
deposits of Communist dollar hoards in the Soviet Eurobank of Paris,
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Banque Commerciale pour Europe du Nord. The financiers then
realized they created anew and even more untraceable source of paper
money which had no backing. Anthony Sampson writes that "The
more cosmopolitan banks with foreign experts and directors, such as
Warburgs, Montagus, Rothschilds and Kleinworts, had alsodiscovered
a huge new source of profits in the market for Eurodollars." These
profits now amount to some two trillion dollars, all of which are
obligations of the American taxpayer. This Ponzi operation was made
possible by the exclusive "Central Bankers Club", the Bank for
International Settlements, which had been established by HJalmar
Schacht, financier r of the Nazi movement, Emile Francqui, guiding
gep}gs”of Hoovers Belglan Rc;llef Commission, and John Foster
Dulles, heir to the title "most da ddngé?()ﬁs man in America". It was set
up in May 1930 by the Hague Treaty to handle German reparations
payments, which, of course, were never paid. BIS now controls one
tenth of the world's gold, which it rents out at a profit. Its assets have
increased by an astronomical 1200% in the past twenty years. U.S.

shares of BIS are held by Citibank. bsh %‘\ Whuwekowad Schuls ineeds

The Wall Street Journal noted editorially on Mar. 10, 1986,
“Hasn’t it struck most Western policy makers as odd that the Soviet
Union, with a total annual hard currency income of about $32 billion
from all sources (including arms sales) can sustain a global empire?”’
The Journal noted that the Soviet Union hasbeen a major player in the
interbank market for many years, and that six Soviet-owned banks in
the West have been the major beneficiaries of this global flow of
interbank funds. “The largest Soviet-owned banks in the West
include Banque commericale pour I’ Europe du Nord, or Eurobank in
Pairs, Moscow Narodny Bank of London, Ost-West Handelsbank in
Frankfurt, and others in Luxembourg, Zurich and Vienna. Western
deposits in Soviet-owned banks approximate $5 billion.”

What is going onhere? Western nations deposit billions of dollars
in Soviet banks. Where is the rivalry between Communist and
capitalist? The answer is that it is just where the fabled Soviet Empire
has been, in Never-Never Land.
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AmericanInternational Corporationcontinued toexercise abehind
the scenes role in U.S. Sovietdealings until World War II, when W.A.
Harriman's presence in Moscow to direct Stalin's handling of the war
usurped its duties. Standard and Poors shows in 1982 an American
International Group, an insurance holding company with $3.4 billion
in assets, whose attorneys are Sullivan & Cromwell. It was formed
from the Cornelius V. Starr insurance network which was part of the
CIA's Asiatic operations. Its directors include Harry Kearns, chmn
Eisenhower-Nixon presidentialcampaign, now chmn American Asian
Bank, served as president Export Import Bank 1969-73; William L.
Hemphill, pres. United Guaranty,director of Cone Mills (the Hemphill
family has been allied with J.P. Morgan for many years); Douglas
MacArthur II, diplomat; John I. Howell, chmn J.Henry Schroder
Bank, and Schroders Ltd of London; Edwin A. Granville Mentin of
England, who was chairman of American International from 1946-
1979, now director of the Starr Foundation; and J.Milburn Smith,
director of Lloyd's of London.

Prominent American businessmen and political leaders such as
W. Averill Harriman do not bother to conceal their pro-Soviet
activities. Russian Ambassador Dobrynin casually referred to Henry
Kissinger's double role, saying, "I am the laughing third man, sitting
still. Kissingeris negotiating for us too." Brezhnev, dictator of Russia,
was asked why the Soviet Union did not take a role in Middle East
negotiations. He replied, "We don't need representation. Kissinger is
our man in the Middle East.” With this kind of influence, it seems odd
that the Communists do not precipitate a coup, and seize absolute
powerinthe U.S.,astheydidinRussiain 1917. There are 200,000,000
answers to this question, not 200,000,000 Americans, but 200,000,000
guns held privately by American citizens. A confidential Ford
Foundation study showed that only 5 to 10% of Americans would
actively resist a Communist seizure of power. This was the good
news. The bad news was that only 1% of our citizens, armed and
opposing the takeover, would defeat it. Since 1948, Americans have
asked this writer when the Communists will seize power in the U.S.
The answer is that they will seize power after they have confiscated
the 200,000,000 guns. Guns are forbidden in the Soviet Union. Only
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the highestofficials are allowed to possess them. Criminals understand
only one law - the law of force. The criminal syndicalists who seek to
enslave the entire world cannot be defeated by humility or compassion,
but only by the most determined and the harshest measures. To
examine the American situation in perspective, there are only five
hundred men, primarily in the major foundations, who are actively
engaged in transmitting international banker-Socialist orders to our
government. Beneath them are tenthousand politicians, businessmen,
media personalities, and academicians who, with the aid of religious
operatives, implementthe orders from London. Thisisamuch smaller
number than the members of the Communist Party of the USSR which
rules the Soviet Union.

To protect these traitors, the U.S. government has imported 25
million aliens into the United States, whichincludes 5000 intensively
trained terrorists, and 100,000 hardened criminals. This force is
intended to neutralize the opposition of the American people to
Communism. The government encourages crime, because it is the
nationwide criminal force, not the police force, which keeps the
population subdued. Americans must devote all their energies to
defending themselves against the professional criminals, protecting
their homes and families, leaving them no opportunity to organize
against the criminal syndicalists of the World Order. This clever plan
of subsidizing the criminal element was the sole achievement of the
Law Enforcement Administration, afoundation-organized plan which
originated at the University of Chicago.

The federal government uses its armed police, the IRS, the FBI,
the BATF and the CIA solely to terrorize its American subjects into
compliance with the program of the World Order. Most American
citizens have had to come to the painful realization that the FBI is not
concerned withfighting Communism, butonly withbattling American
anti-Communists. They now realize that the IRS functions as an
armed group of terrorists, not tocollect funds, of which the government
has no need, but solely to extort money by force from American
citizens, as part of the program of the World Order. The intent is to
render them impoverished and terrorized, so that they will be rendered
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impotent and unable to organize to resist the World Order. It is the
program of 1984.

Even if they planned otherwise, the five masters of the World
Order have now created a situation which must lead to world war,
world economic collapse, or both. The thirty-year buildup of the
Soviet Union as the next opponent in an ongoing world conflict was
noted by Srully Blotnick in Forbes magazine, Nov. 7, 1983: "A
wealthy New York lawyer whose portfolio contained substantial
holdings of McDonnell Douglas, Raytheon and General Dynamics,
commented, It bothers me even to think what would happen if the
Russians decided to take us up on our 5% a year solution to the arms
race. Once we started dismantling our stategic weapons, the defense
stocks will make the hi tech group look stable by comparison. The
60% loss I took on my Fortune computer system could be a hint of
things to come."

The World Order has no religious, political or economic program
except World Slavery. Only by subduing all potential opposition can
the parasite guarantee his position of lodging on the host. The World
Order sets up countless groups to promote any type of idea, and then
sets up other groups to fanatically oppose them, but the masters have
no dedication to anything except slavery. As R.E. McMaster wrote in
The Reaper, "The goal of international communism is not to destroy
Western international debt capitalism. The goal of international
communismis toenslavemankind at the behest of Western international
debt capitalism." Thisis all you canever know about the present world
situation, and it is all you need to know.

In 1985, in the initial printing of The World Order, I posited a
worst-case theory for the U.S. economy almost entirely dependent on
the “Soviet threat”, a Russian revolution would mean the collapse of
the U.S. economy. In 1992, we have seen the Soviet Empire collapse,
and the U.S. economy is in shambles. Of course the Bush league
officials are frantically trying to convince Americans that there is no
connection between the two events. In fact, the Soviet Empire is the
empire that never was. There was a Russian Empire, under the

86

Romanovs, but after the biggest heistin history, when the richest man
in the world, Czar Nicholas, was robbed, and he and his family
murdered by thugs who called themselves “Communists”, a
tremendous propaganda campaign, aided and abetted by the kept
press of the world, has sought to convince us that Communism exists,
and that the Soviet Empire exists. I have detailed the financial and
other support give to the “Soviets” by Americans, and most of all, the
American taxpayer, on anongoing basis since 1917 to the present day.
President Bush is now beating the bushes for hundreds of billions of
additional aid to Russia. This is nothing new. He is carrying on the
traditionestablished by his grandfather and namesake, George Herbert
Walker, when he became a director of American International Corp.,
a Wall Street firm set up to finance the Bolshevik Revolution. What
really happened in Russiain 19177 Through the furtive acts of British
Secret Intelligence Service agents in Moscow, the Romanov
government was overthrown, and a provincial government installed.
In 1917, Russia joined the United States as a colony of the Bank of
England. The Czar’s fortune was used, among other things, to
purchase the stock of the Federal Reserve Banks for $144,000,000.
Today, the rightful owners of that stock are the heirs of the Romanovs.
George Orwell envisioned the world of 1984, in which two rival
powers maintained perpetual hostility and martial law but never went
to was against each other. 1984 continued in effect until one player,
the United States, weakened and could no longer afford to subsidize
its rival. What happened to the world Communist threat was that the
American taxpayer, looted and betrayed by the minions of the World
Order, could no longer afford to pay for Communism in Russia.

The charade came to close to collapse during the Burgess-
MacLean episode, when these British agents “defected” to Russia.
They were followed by their handler, Kim Philby, who becam a
Lieutenant General in the KGB. This episode almost exposed the
behind the stage scenery, in which the British SIS, Mossad, the KGB
and the CIA, inhabited a fairy land of their own, and in which harsh
reality was never permitted to intrude. Why did these financiers
indulge in this charade? For a very simple economic reason. Since
1917, the enormous wealth and potential productivity of the Russian
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people has been withheld from the world. A great rival has been
handcuffed and condemned to prison. The problem which the
conspirators of the world now face is—how can they continue to hold
Russia down?

One reason that this farce ran so long on the Great White Way was
the diligence of the CIA in promoting a false image of Russia. We now
know that the Russian economy was never more than one-tenth of the
annual figures furnished to our officials by the CIA. Financial writers
such as Henry Rowen and Charles Wolf, who argued that Soviet
production was less than one-third of that of the United States, were
shouted down by the CIA statisticians. When Russia showed signs of
collapse, World Order leaders were rushed to Moscow to shore up the
ruins. President Bush himself made repeated trips to Russia for the
Trilateral Commission, to preserve the Soviet dictatorship. At Kiev,
on Aug. 1, 1991, Bush exhorted the Ukranians to be good Soviet
citizens, “because the Soviet Union was reforming itself.” Eighteen
days later, it collapsed. So much for the wishes of the Trilateral
Commission. George Bush’s passion for Gorbachev cannot obscure
the historical fact that the “evil empire” never existed from 1917 to
1990 which survived on gifts from Washington which were exacted
from the American taxpayer. When the United States went into a
recession, Soviet Russia collapsed.

President Bush made so many trips to Russia to save the Soviet
KGB regime that he faces serious problems in winning re-election in
his own country. For many months, Bush dedicated himself to
maintaining Gorbachev in power as the KGB protege of the World
Order. While Bush sneered at Boris Yeltsin, and publicly snubbed
him, he profusely praised Gorbachev, noting in his address to the
nation, Dec. 26, 1991, “I'd like to express my gratitude to Mikhail
Gorbachev for years of sustained commitment to world peace and for
his intellect, vision and courage.” Bush had been quoted in USA
Today on Oct. 30, 1991, as reassuring Gorbachev, who daily faced
ouster in Russia, that “You’re still the master.” The Russian people
ignored Bush’s trilateral recommendation, and chose Yeltsin.
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Yeltsin himself quickly came under siegeby aspiring agents of the
World Order. Aging and discredited Trotskyites crawled out of the
woodwork, shrieking that they were still important figures. The
Washington Post named some of his wouldbe American agents as
Allen Weinstein, who describes himself as “Yeltsin’s man in
Washington”; a number of refugees from the Hoover Institution in
Palo also; and a street car operator from Washington, D.C. named O.
Roy Chalk.
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CHAPTER FOUR
Franklin D. Roosevelt

The Crash of 1929 and the resulting depression have been
exhaustively covered in a previous work (Secrets of the Federal
Reserve, 1983). Roosevelt waselected presidentin 1932 in acampaign
which ignored Hoover’s Rothschild connections and his World War
I record. Instead, Roosevelt blamed Hoover for a depression which
had been set up by the Bank of England. Hoover states in his Memoirs.

“In replying to Roosevelt’s statement that I was responsible for
the orgy of speculation, I considered for some time whether I should
expose theresponsibility of the Federal Reserve Boardby its deliberate
inflation policies from 1925-28 under European influence, and my
opposition to these policies.”

Hoover remained silent, and was ushered out of office. He later
termed Gerard Swope’s “economic planning” for the New Deal as
“the precisepatternof Fascism”. “The New Dealers”.by an Unofficial
Observer, Literary Guild 1934, noted that the New Deal included
W.A. Harriman, administrator in charge of heavy industry, and his
sister, Mary Rumsey, who backed Newsweek with Vincent Astor, and
the New Deal weekly, Today. “Observer” also noted that Col. House
was the elder statesman behind the New Deal, and that House had only
backed two Presidential candidates, Wilson and FDR. Roosevelt
continued the Wilson policies (actually the House policies outlined in
“Philip Dru, Administrator”), with the same personnel, and ended as
Wilson did, by involving America in another World War. Observer
states that Col. House’s New York apartment was only two blocks
from the Roosevelt home on E. 65th St. in New York, and that House
was seen there almost every day in 1932. He also visited Rooseveltin
New England and on the Roosevelt yacht.

%

The Council on Foreign Relations had purchased a headquarters
building at 45 E. 65th St., next door to Franklin’s mansion. With
Roosevelt’s election in 1933, the idle rich of the World Order
swarmed into Washington to amuse themselves with government
programs. Ray Tucker reported in Collier’s magazin, “Washington
was transformed from a placid, leisurely Southern town, with frozen
faces and customs, into a gay, breezy, sophisticated and metropolitan
center.” Tucker’s use of “gay” proved very prophetic. Arthur Krock
of the New York Times wrote, “They are a merry group, the New
Dealers. They like singing and dancing and a fair amount of
drinking.” A few years later, Washington had the highest per capita
amount of alcohol consumption in the United States. With the World
Order crowd came their allies, the Communist. Harold Ware, son of
EllaReeveBloor, the veteran Communistagitator, came to Wahington
to organize the infamous Harold Ware cell among government
employees. he had spent several years in the Soviet Union, and had
returned to the U.S. with personal assignments from Lenin. The cell
met in his sister’s music studio on Connecticut Ave. As asign of the
times, the Dept. of Agriculture issued an official ruling that “A man
inthe employ of the Government has just as muchright to be amember
of the Communist Party as he has to be a member of the Democratic
or Republican Party.”

To consolidate Roosevelt’s power, his backers used the typical
World Order scheme—they set up his “opposition”. In August, 1934,
the principal architects and financiers of his New Deal formed the
Liberty League,immediately characterized as an “extreme rightwing”’
organization. Pierre and Irenee DuPont put up $325,000 for it. The
League was also financed by J. P. Morgan, the Rockefellers, J.
Howard Pew, and William J. Knudsen (who was later appointed by
FDR to an imporant position!). The backers of Liberty League, who
were busily denouncing Roosevelt & his staff as “Communist”, which
many of them were, werealsothe organizers of American International
Corporation, which had been formed to prevent the economy of the
Soviet Union from collapsing. Liberty League successfully corralled
the opponents of FDR and branded themas “rightwingnuts”. Roosevelt
was given the opportunity to rant against his opposition as “economic
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royalists™, “the Old Guard”, and “princes of privilege”. Gerald L. K.
Smith was then brought into the picture, in order to smear Roosevelt’s
opposition as “anti-Semitic”. The ploy operated from 1934 to the
1936 elections, when it effectively destroyed Landon’s campaign. No
effective political opposition was organized against Roosevelt for the
rest of his lifetime in office. It was one of the most successful political
hoaxes in American history. Roosevelt then married his son to an
heiress of the DuPont dynasty. At the very time that Eugene DuPont,
cousin of Pierre, was one of the most active members of the Liberty
League, F. D. Roosevelt Jr. was courting his daughter, Ethel! They
were married June 28,1937, in what Time Magazine called the
“Wedding of the Year”, presided over by Dr. Endicott Peabody. The
couple made the cover of Time magazine, the only newlyweds ever
to do so.

These measures were necessary because FDR’s backers were
planning to involve the U.S. in the Second World War. Any popular
political opposition to Roosevelt might have swept him out of office
in 1940, just when he was needed to bring off the Pearl Harbor attack.
Onthe morning of Pearl Harbor, Gen. Marshall, his Chief of Staff, met
secretly with Maxim Litvinoff (married to Ivy Low of England), to
assure the Russians that everything was going according to plan.
Marshall later testified before Congress that he “couldn’t remember”
where he was on Pearl Harbor Day.

The “managed conflict” was well on its way. Jacques Rueff points
out that Schacht did not invent Hitler’s monetary policy; it was
imposed on Germany “by American and British creditors to finance
war preparations and finally unleash war itself (The Monetary Sins of
the West). Rueff also points out that the Standstill Agreement of 1931
allowing Germany a moratorium on wardebts through the 1930s was
aamicable pact between the London, New York and German branches
of the Warburg and Schroder houses. Max Warburgremained Schacht’s
deputy at the Reichsbank until 1938; Kurt von Schroder then became
his deputy. (Schacht’s father had been Berlin agent for the Equitable
Life Insurance Co. of New York.) The industrialist levies for Hitler
(the Circle of Friends) were paid into the Schroder Bank.
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Throughout the 1930s, Hitler was duped into persevering in his
desire for friendship with England, an alliance originally proposed
jointly by Theodore Roosevelt and the Kaiser in 1898 between the
three Nordic powers, England, Germany and the United States. The
Schroders assured Hitler than their Anglo-German Fellowship in
England was a hundred times more influential than it actually was.
With such figures as the Astors and the Chamberlains supporting
rapport with Germany, Hitler was persuaded that war with England
was impossible. In 1933 he had announced his discovery that Marx,
Lenin and Stalin had all said that before international Communism
could triumph, England and her Empire must be destroyed. “I am
willing to help defend the British Empire by force if called upon, “ he
declared. In 1936, Hitler arranged for meetings to take place between
English and German diplomats, but the desired result was never
attained, as the British had only one goal, to lull Hitler into a sense of
false security until they could declare war against him.

Tolure Hitlerinto World War II, it was necessary to guarantee him
adequate supplies of such necessities as ball bearings and oil. Jacob
Wallenberg of the Swedish Enskilda Bank, which controlled the giant
SKFballbearing plant, furnished ball bearings to the Nazis throughout
the war. The antiaircraft guns sending flak against American air crews
turned on SKF ball bearings. Its American plant, SKF of Philadelphia,
was repeatedly put on the Proclaimed List, and each time, Dean
Acheson removed it.

President William S. Farish of Standard Oil refueled Nazi ships
and submarines through stations in Spain and Latin America. When
Queen Elizabeth recently came tothe U.S., the only family she visited
was the Farishes. Throughout the war, the British paid royalty to
EthylStandard Corp. on the gasoline used by German bombers who
were destroying London. The money was placed in Farben bank
accounts until after the war. I. G. Farben was organized by the
Warburgs in 1925 as a merger between six giant German chemical
companies, Badische Anilin, Bayer, Agfa, Hoechst, Welierter-Meer,
and GriesheimElektron. Max Warburg was director of I. G. Farben,
Germany, and I. G. Chemie, Switzerland. American I. G. Farben was
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controlled by his brother, Paul, architect of the Federal Reserve
System, Walter Teagle of Standard Oil, and Charles Mitchell of
National City Bank. Just before World War II broke out, Ethyl-
Standard shipped 500 tons of ethyl lead to the Reich Air Ministry
through I. G. Farben, with payment secured by letter of Brown Bros.
Harriman dated Sept. 21, 1938.

Throughout World War I, the Paris branches of J. P. Morgan and
Chase National Bank continued to do business as usual. At the end of
the war, occupation authorities repeatedly issued orders to dismantle
I. G. Farben plants, but were countermanded by Gen. William Draper
of Dillon Read, which had financed German rearmament in the 1920s.

Winston Churchill remarked of this “managed conflict” in 1945,
just before it ended, “There never was a war more easy to stop.”
(quoted in Washington Post June 11, 1984). The only real difficulty
had been encountered in getting it started. Churchill succeeded in
prolonging the war for at least a year by defeating Gen. Wedemeyer’s
plan for a Channel crossing in 1943, and by embarking on his ruinous
North African-Sicilian swing, a replay of his disastrous Gallipoli
campaign of the First World War. Life revealed April 9,1951 that
Eisenhower had radioed Stalin through the U.S. Military Mission in
Moscow of his plan to stop at the Elbe and allow the Russians to take
Berlin. The message had been written by Ike’s political advisor, John
WheelerBennett of RIIA, received by W. Averill Harriman, and
delivered to Stalin. In Washington, Gen. Marshall assured President
Truman that we were “obligated” to allow the Russians to take Berlin.
Senator Joseph McCarthy later called Marshall “a living lie”.

The conquered German people were now systematically looted
and ruthlessly governed by the occupying powers. Henry Kissinger,
John J. McCloy (son-in-law of a J. P. Morgan partner), Benjamin
Buttenweiser, partner of Kuhn, Loeb & Co. (his wife was Alger Hiss’s
lawyer at his trial for perjury), and other Rothschild operatives
descended like locusts upon the prostrate nation. Aid to Soviet Russia
continued under the guise of the Marshall Plan, a rerun of Hoover’s
Belgian Relief Commission in World War 1. The Marshall Plan
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originated as a special study by David Rockefeller for the Council on
Foreign Relations, “Reconstruction of Western Europe” completed in
1947. It was retitled the “Marshall Plan” and advertised as a great
contribution to‘“democracy in Europe”. (Imperial Brain Trust-Shoup).
W. Averell Harriman was installed in the Rothschild’s Paris mansion,
Hotel Talleyrand, as head of the Marshall Plan.

The victorious Rothschilds consolidated their control of world
monetary systems by the Bretton Woods pact, a replica of the charter
of the Bank of England. It provided immunity from the judicial
process, its archives were inviolable and not subject to court or

~Congressional inspection; no taxation could be levied on any security

dividend or interest of the Fund; all officers and personnel were
immune from legal processes. The pact systematlcally looted Western
Europe and the United States. On April 3,1984, AP reported that
“British” investments in the U.S. were now $115 billion, and the
British held $28 billion in U.S. bank assets. At least one U.S. Senator
is a member of the British aristocracy, Malcolm Wallop, (R. Wyo.)
son of Hon. Oliver Wallop, whose brother is Earl of Portsmouth
(created 1743). Sen. Wallop’s sister, Lady Porchester, married Lord
Porchester, son of the Earl of Carnarvon. Lord Porchester is the
Queen’s Master of Horse, and her Racing Manager.

Lord Carrington, for many years British Foreign Minister, is now
Henry Kissinger’s partner in Kissinger Associates, and was recently
appointed head of NATO. He is chmn of GE chmn Australian New
Zealand Bank, director of Rio Tinto, Barclay’s Bank, Cadbury
Schweppes, Amalgamated Metal, British Metal, and Hambros Bank.
His mother was the daughter of Viscount Colville, who was financial
secretary of the treasury 1936-38. Richard Davis notes in “The
English Rothschilds” that Lionel Rothschild was a frequent visitor at
Lord Carrington’s house in Whitehall. In fact, Lord Carrington was
related to the Rothschildfamily by marriage. The first Lord Carrington
was Archibald Primrose. His son became ViscountRosebery. The Sth
Earl Rosebery married Hannah Rothschild, daughter of Mayer, in
1878. She was given away by Disraeli.
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World War II delivered the peoples of the world into the hands of
the World Order, with the predictable result that they have been
systematically despoiled, terrorized, oppressed and massacred in
further “managed conflicts”, not the least of which was the Vietnam
War, in which American boys with little or no combat training were
sent into battle against the highly trained guerilla troops of Ho Chi
Minh and General Giap, communist troops whose leaders had been
intensively trained by the special OSS Deer team.

The Rothschilds rule the U.S. through their foundations, the
Council on Foreign Relations, and the Federal Reserve System, with
no serious challenges to their power. Expensive “political campaigns”
are routinely conducted, with carefully screened candidates who are

- pledged to the program of the World Order. Should they deviate from
the program, they would have an “accident”, be framed on a sex
charge, or indicted on some financial irregularity. Senator Moynihan
stated in his book, “Loyalties”, “A British friend, wise in the ways of
the world, put it thus: “They are now on page 16 of the Plan.”
Moynihan prudently did not ask what page 17 would bring.

The American citizen works hard and pays taxes, blissfully
unaware that at any moment the secret rulers, operating through the
Federal Reserve Board, can make a monetary ruling which will place
him in onerous debt or bankrupt him. Gary Allen writes in American
Opinion, Oct. 7, 1979, “Whatever the future holds, you can betit will
be unstable with wide swings in the value of the dollar and precious
metals. As long as Volcker’s sponsors know in advance what his
policies will be, they will make big money.” This accurate prediction
was followed by 20% interest and 25% inflation.

Businessweek,Feb. 20,1984, stated, “The worst market for traders
isastable one....Investment banks now have a greater than ever vested
interest in market instability. They can rack up enormous profits by
guessing right about rapid, wide swings in profits, prices and interest
rates.” It is obvious that they can rack up “enormous profits” if they
know in advance what the monetary decisions will be. Anyone who

seriously believes thatno oneknows inadvance whatFederal Reserve |
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decisions will be is too naive to be allowed out on his own; anybody
who believes that there is no one who can tell the Federal Reserve
Board what its policies are to be is even more out of touch with reality.
Many people believed that Lord Montagu Norman ran the Bank of
England as aone-man showforthirty years, showing that some people
will believe anything. A. Craig Copetas writes in Harper’s, Jan. 1984,
“How the Barbarians Do Business” about the 2,000 dealers of the
[London Metal Exchange, that viewing these people objectively, “you
are left with a simple scrap merchant—a rag and bone man, as the
British call their junk dealers.” It is the rag and bone men who are
running the economies of the world up and down likea window shade,
and profiting handsomely on every move of the markets.

Carter Field notes in his biography of Baruch, “Baruch got out of
and buy tax- -exempts at such a favorable time?” Field offers no
answer. Norman Dodd, who was then with Bankers Trust, states that
Henry Morgenthau came into Bankers Trust a few days before the
Crash, and ordered the officers to close out all securities of his trusts,
$6O mllhon in three - days. The officers tried to remonstrate with him,
pointing out that if he would sell them over a period of weeks, he
would make much greater profits, perhaps five million dollars more

than if they were disposed of on such short notice. Morgenthau

you! Do as I say"’ Black Friday occurred within the week.

On May 30,1936, Newsweek wrote about a Roosevelt appointee
to the Federal Reserve Board, Ralph W. Morrison, “He sold his Texas
utility stock to Insull for ten million dollars, and in 1929 called a
meeting and ordered his banks to close out all security
I. As aresult, they rode through the depression with ﬂymg colors.”

The insiders come through “with flying colors”, while millions of
victims are ruined, destroyed by ferces which they refuse to believe
exist. Heartbreak, losses of homes and businesses, breakdowns,
suicides, destruction of families, these are the results of World Order
economic policies initiated and carried out by “the rag and bone men”.
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Through its monetary command of the Federal Reserve Board, the
World Order determines the outcome of American elections. A news
commentator recently pointed out that Paul Volcker would determine
whether Reagan would be re-elected. In 1980, the Federal Reserve
Board deliberately defeated Carter and elected Reagan. Otto Eckstein
noted in U.S. News, Sept. 5,1983, that thf: prime rate reached 21.5%
in late 1980, creating a recession in an election year. Eckstein, head
of Data Resources in Lexmgton ‘Mass. (he later died suddenly) said,
“The Federal Reserve had never before made such a move.”

One critic pointed out that Volcker has boosted interest rates,
which hurts U.S. stocks, making short term U.S. money instruments
more desirable than long-term, and bringing about the very instability
of foreign capital flows which he claims to fear. Gordon Thether
writes in The London Financial Times, “In all history, there can be
fewer instances of a man having inflicted greater damage on the
interests of his fellow human beings than Volcker has done with
‘benign neglect’ and its all too many malignant manifestations—not
the first of which is the ill-conceived gold demonetization campaign
Washington has been engaged in since the late 60s. Interest rates rise
when gold does not back currency.”

Through the London Gold Pool, the Federal Reserve System and '

the U.S. Treasury disposed of Amerlcan gd‘ld at the , giveway price of i

$35 an ounce, one tenth of its current value, robbmg the American

publlc of billions of dollars. On July 24,1969, Volcker authorized

SDR paper gold, Special Drawing Rights, to replace gold in foreign
exchange. He then triumphantly remarked to his fellow bankers in

Paris, “Well, we got this thing launched.” Secretary of the Treasury
Connally then took the Nixon Administration off gold, devaluing the
dollar in August, 1971.

On July 17,1984, Jack Anderson described the Federal Open
Market Committee in the Washington Post as “a mysterious council
of 127, “the enigmatic group” with “excessive secrecy” who, says
Anderson, “influence what rates you will pay, how much money will
be available for business to borrow and whether inflation once again
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will eatup your earnings and reduce the value of yourbank accounts.”
Despite the far-reaching importance of “Volcker’s” decisions, his
testimony before Congress is shrouded in gobbledygook; this writer
has gone through hundreds of pages of his testimony without finding
a single quotable phrase about his economic intentions. On July
9,1984, Jack Andersonsaid of Volcker’s meetings with high Treasury
officials, “One of them, asked if he could recall anything Volcker had
said during the high-level meetings, thought a moment and replied, ‘I
can’t remember anything he said that I understood’.”

Sen. Moynihan noted in the New Republic, Dec. 31,1983, “The
Fed does not control the precise money supply and cannot precisely
determine interest rates. But it can set the direction and range for both,
and this it did. Anyone who tried to dissent was soundly rapped. Its

two dozen or so central bankers decided to bust the economy, and bust
it they did.”

Paul Craig Roberts writes in Businessweek, Feb. 27, 1984,
“Whatever Volcker’s intentions, the empirical data show that there
has been adecelerationin money growth since last spring and that the
Fed has been using open market operations to keep interest rates
up....What concerns the financial markets is the eclipse of Reagan’s
pohcles by Volcker’s....the most llkely result will be higher taxes and
higher deficits.”

Nevertheless, the press and the Democrats attack Reagan as
responsible for the deficit, over which he has no control, and which
Volcker creates.

The New York Times stated that whoever won the election in
Nov. 1984, it has already been decided that taxes will beincreased by
$100 billion. Here again, why have an election of elected officials who
have no influence in economic affairs? Brunner recently interviewed
Walter Wriston, retired head of Citibank, who said, “I have been
through the Fed’s actions for the past fifteen years in detail - the Fed
has exercised a malign influence on the economy of this country. Its
interference in the financial markets of America over the last decade
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has resulted in 1; Persistently excessive money growth, inflation
which undermined the financial strength of U.S. corporations owing

to the combined inflation and excessive rates of taxation, and record
debt.”

Forbes pointed out June 20,1983 in a story about “Tony”’Solomon,
“Solomon may be the most important man in the Federal Reserve
System after the chairman, and what he says and does has an effect
upon us all.”

Perhaps you have never heard of “Tony” Solomon. Certainly you
have never voted him into any office, yet what he says and does has
an effect upon us all. He is the chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York, a post formerly held by Paul Volcker. This bank
represents the New York money market in the Federal Reserve
System. Fiftythree per cent of its stock is held by five New Y ork banks
whose controlling influence is the London House of Rothschild. The
chairman of the FRBNY sits permanently on the FOMC at the right
hand of the chairman of the Board of Governors. Sec. 12A of the 1913
Federal Reserve Act provided that five representatives of the 12
Federal Reserve Banks should rotate on the FOMC. This was quietly
amended in August 1943, while World War II was raging, to read,
“one elected annually by the board of directors of the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York” replacing the provision that “one should be
elected annually by the boards of directors of the Federal Reserve
Banks of Boston and New York”. FRBNY is now the only Federal
Reserve Bank with a permanent seat on the FOMC. The American
public was never informed of this change.
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CHAPTER FIVE
The Business in America

JohnMoody,author of many standard reference workson American
finance, stated in McClure’s Magazine, Aug., 1911, “The Seven
Men,”

“Seven men in Wall Street now control a great share of the
fundamental industry and resources of the United States. Three of the
seven men, J.P. Morgan, James Stillman, and George F. Baker, head
of the First National Bank of New York, belong to the so-called
Morgan group; four of them, John D. and William Rockefeller, James
Stillman, head of the National City Bank, and Jacob H. Schiff of the
pricate banking firm of Kuhn, Loeb Co., to the so-called Standard Oil
National City Bank group...the central machine of capital extends its
control over the U.S.. The process is not only economically logical;
it is now practically automatic.”

What was true in 1911 is even more true in 1984; the seven men
are now, as then, merely American agents for London interests. In
1919, Moody wrote in “Masters of Capital”, “All of the great bankers
began as dry goods traders, including Junius S. Morgan. Beebe
Morgan was a dry goods house. J.M. Beebe Co. of Boston made
Junius S. Morgan a partner. Junius Morgan was later invited to join
George Peabody & Co. of London, which handled most of the House
of Rothschild’s trading in American stocks. Junius Morgan’s son, J.P.
Morgan, later changed the name of the firm to J.P. Morgan & Co., but
it continued to one of three representatives of the House of Rothschild
in the U.S., the others being Kuhn, Loeb & Co. and August Belmont.

The Morgan group and the National City Bank group held a secret
meeting at Jekyl Island, Ga. the week of Nov.22,1910to consolidate
their financial power. Present were Sen. Nelson Aldrich (his daughter
married John D. Rockefeller Jr.), his private secretary, Shelton, A.
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Piatt Andrew, Asst. Sec. of the Treasury, Frank Vanderlip, president
National City Bank, Henry P. Davison, J.P. Morgan’s righthand man,
Charles D. Norton, pres. First National Bank of New York, Benjamin
Strong of Liberty Natl. Bank (he later married the daughter of the
president of Bankers Trust, became president of Bankers Trust, and
chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York) and Paul
Warburg, a German immigrant who had joined Kuhn, Loeb & Co.

Although these men were the most influential financiers in the
U.S., they were present at Jekyl Island merely as the emissaries of
Baron Alfred Rothschild, who had commissioncd them to prepare
legislation establishing a central bank in the U.S., modelled on the
European fractional reserve central banking organizations of the
Reichsbank, the Bank of England, and the Bank of France, all of
which were controlled by the House of Rothschild.

To enact the Federal Reserve Act into the law of the land, the
bankers elected Woodrow Wilson president of the U.S. in 1912 by
splitting the Republican Party, defeating the popular William Howard
Taft by financing Theodore Roosevelt’s malicious Bull Moose third
party candidacy. Wilson’s academic career at Princeton had been
financed by gifts from Cleveland H. Dodge, director of National City
Bank, and Moses Taylor Pyne, grandson and heir of the founder of
National City Bank. Wilson then signed an agreement not to go to any
other college. The Federal Reserve Act was legislated through Congress
as the Glass-Owen bill, backed by two Democrats, Congressman
Carter Glass of Virginia, and Sen. Robert Owen of Oklahoma. Owen
was persuaded to back the bill by Samuel Untermyer, who had
cultivated him while acting as counsel for the Pujo Money Trust
investigation. Untermyer flattered Owen by entertaining him at
Greystone, his palatial Hudson Riverestate. Untermyer claimed to be
a “progressivc Democrat”, although he lived in feudal splendor,
employing 167 men to tend his expanse of orchids and greenhouses.
At Greystone, Owen dined with Paul Warburg, Bernard Baruch, and
other financiers who had been instructed to get the Federal Reserve
Act passcd. Owen, a former Indian agent who knew little about
finance, was easily persuaded by Paul Warburg’s doctrinaire
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pronunciamentos about “our antiquated banking system”, which
must be brought up to par with the more modern banking system of
Europe.

After the Federal Reserve Act had been passed by Congrcss and
signed into law by President Woodrow Wilson, six New York banks
controlled by the Morgan-Standard Oil group bought controlling
interest of the Federal Reserve Bank of Ncw York, which they have
held ever since. The May 19, 1914 organization chart of the Federal
Reservc Bank of New York shows that of the 203,053 shares issued,
National City Bank took 30,000 shares; the Morgan-Baker First
National Bank took 15,000 shares. These two banks merged into the
present Citibank in 1955, giving them one-fourth of the shares in the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York. The $134 billion Citicorp is now
the largest bank in the U.S. The National Bank of Commerce of which
Paul Warburg was a large shareholder, took 21,000 sharcs; Hanovcr
Bank (now Manufacturers Hanover, of which Lord Rothschild is a
director,) took 10,200 shares; Chase National Bank took 6000 shares;
Chemical Bank took 6000 shares. These six banks in 1914 owned
40% of the stock of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. The
Federal Reserve System printout of shareholders July 26, 1983
showed that they now own 53%, as follows: Citibank 15%; Chase
Manbhattan 14%; Morgan Guaranty Trust9%; Manufacturers Hanover
7%; Chemical Bank 8%. Citicorp Citibank is No. 1 in size in the U.S.
No. 3isChase Manhattan with$82billionassets; No. 4 is Manufacturers
Hanover, $64 billion; No. S is J.P. Morgan, $58 billion; No. 6
Chemical Bank. No. 11 is First Chicago, formerly First National Bank
of Chicago, controlled by the Baker-Morgan interests. House Rept.
159362, p. 183~ notes, “Next to Baker and Son, Morgan & Co. is the
largest stockholder of First National (of New York), owning 14,500
shares; Baker and Morgan together own 40,000 of the 100,000 shares
of First National Bank.”

The New York Times, Sept. 3, 1914, at the time of the Federal
Reserve stock was being sold, showed the principal stockholders of
thesebanksasfollows:National City Bank—250,000 shares of which
James Stillman owned 47,498; J.P. Morgan & Co., 14,500; W.
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Rockefeller 10,000; M.T. Pyne 8267; Percy Pyne 8267; J.D.
Rockefeller 1750; J.S. Rockefeller 100; W.A. Rockefeller 10; J.P.
Morgan Jr. 1000. National Bank of Commerce, 250,000 shares—
George F. Baker 10,000; J.P. Morgan Co. 7800; Mary W. Harriman,
(widow E.H.) 5650; Paul Warburg 3000; Jacob Schiff 1000; J.P.
Morgan Jr. 1100..Chase Natl. Bank—George F. Baker 13,408.
Hanover Natl. Bank—James Stillman 4000; William Rockefeller
1540.

During aperiod when thousands of U.S. banks have gone bankrupt
since 1914, these banks, protected by their interest in the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York, have grown steadily. A Senate Report,
“Interlocking Directorates among the Major U.S. Corporations, a
staff study of the Senate Committee on Governmental Affairs, June
15, 1978, shows that five of these aforementioned banks held a total
of 470 interlocking directorates in the 130 major corporations of the
U.S., an average of 3.6 directors per major U.S. Corporation. This
massivereportis worthy of anyone’s detailed study: we can only give
the totals here:

CITICORP 97 directorates

J.P. MORGAN CO. 99 directorates

CHEMICAL BANK 96directorates

CHASE MANHATTAN 89 directorates
MANUFACTURERS HANOVER 89 directorates
Total 470

This centralized control over American industry by five New
York banks controlled from London suggests that instead of 130
major U.S. corporations, we may have only one, which initselfis an
outpost of the London Connection.

In the early 19th century, the House of Rothschild established a
number of affiliates in the U.S. which carried the code identification
of City banks, or City companies, identifying them as originating in
the financial centre, the City of London. The City Bank was established
in New York in 1812, in the same room in which the Bank of the
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United States had operated until its charter expired. Later called the
National City Bank, its principal for fifty years was Moses Taylor,
whose father had been a confidential agent for JohnJacob Astor and
British intelligence. Like the Morgan-Peabody operation, Moses
Taylor doubled his fortune in the Panic of 1837 by purchasing stock
in the depressed market with capital advanced by N.M. Rothschild of
London. During the Panic of 1857, while many of its competitors
failed, City Bank prospered. Moses Taylor purchased the outstanding
stock of Delaware Lackawanna Railroad for $5 a share during the
panic. Seven years later, it was worth $240 a share. He was now worth
$50 million. His son-in-law, Percy Pyne, had come from London to
work at City Bank, and married Taylor’sdaughter. When Taylor died
in 1882, he left $70 million. His son-in-law, now paralyzed, became
president of the now National City Bank. John D. Rockefeller’s
brother William invested in the bank, and persuaded Pyne to step
aside in 1891 in favor of James Stillman, Rockefeller’s associate, to
become president. William’s son William married Stillman’s daughter
Elsie; his other son Percy married Stillman’s daughter Isabelle. James
Stillman also had a London connection - his father, Don Carlos, had
been a Rothschild agent in Brownsville, Texas and a successful
blockade runner during the Civil War.

The National City Bank acquired several subsidiaries in New
York, the National City Co., Iater renamed the City Co., and City
Bank Farmers Trust Co.

The dominance of the Morgan-Kuhn Loeb financial power in
New York is shown by a Dow Jones report in the New York Times
Feb. 11, 1928 thatof total offeringsof bondsin 1927, J.P. Morgan was
first with $502,590,000; National City Co. was second with
$435,616,000; Kuhn Loeb was third with $423,988,080. On July
3,1929, the New York Times noted that Charles A. Peabody had
joined the boards of National City Co. and City Bank Farmers Trust.
On Aug. 4, 1932, the New York Timesstated that National City Bank
wouldissueitsowncurrency against U.S. bonds carrying thecirculatory
power under thenew Federal Home LoanBank Actwhichempowered
National City Bank to issue up to $124 million in currency. The
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National City Bank had now become a “bank of issue”, a function
formerlyreservedtocentral banks. OnJune 8,1933, James H. Perkins,
chmn National City Bank, announced the National City Co., would
change its name to City Co. of New York. On Nov. 21,1933, the
National City Bank listed 31 affiliates including City Bank Farmers
Trust, City Co. of New York, City Co. of Massachusetts, 44 Wall St.
Co. and Cuban Sugar Plantations Inc.

On March 3,1934, the New York Times announced that National
City Bank would sell the National Bank of Haiti, a wholly owned
subsidiary, on April 29,1934. The Times also noted that National City
Bank had organized United AircraftFeb. 2,1934, and thatits subsidiary,
City Bank Farmers Trust had celebrated its 1 12th anniversary on Feb.
28, 1929.

On June 27,1934, the City Co. of New York was designated
German bond scrip agent in the U.S. On May 22, 1933, City Co. of
N.Y. announced its merger with Brown Bros. Harriman, with Joseph
Ripley as chairman of the board. The company went through several
name changes as Brown Harriman Co., Harriman Ripley, and is now
Brown Bros. Harriman once more.

On March 4, 1934, Gen. Billy Mitchell, addressing the Foreign
Policy Association, stated that National City Bank and its affiliates
control aviation in this country. Allen W. Dulles, introduced as a
“specialist in international affairs” announced the profits of
international munitions makers were unconscionable.

On March 2, 1955, N ational City Bank announced it would
purchase the stock of First National Bank for $165 million, $550 a
share (in the 1929 boom, First National sold for $8600 share). Some
market analysts believed the stock should have brought $750 a share
in the 1955 sale, suggesting that the Baker family was no longer able
to protect its interests. The resulting Citibank became the largest bank
inthe U.S., with a controlling interest in the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York. National City Bank had been in Hong Kong for eighty
years; it has a $90 million Citibank Centre there. In 1983, 4% of its
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annual profits came from_the Hong Kong operation, which is the
center of the world’s drug trade.

Besides its controlling interest in the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York, the Rothschilds had developedimportant financial interests
in other parts of the United States. The House Banking and Currency
Committee Report May, 1976, “International Banking”, p. 60,
identified the Rothschild Five Arrows Group and its present five
branches: N.M. Rothschild & Sons Ltd. London; Banque Rothschild,
France; Bangque Lambert, Belgium; New Court Securities, N.Y.;
Pierson, Holdring & Co., Amsterdam. These five were combined in
asingle bank, Rothschild Intercontinental Bank Ltd. The House Staff
Report discloses that Rothschild Intercontinental Bank Ltd. has three
principal American subsidiaries: National City Bank of Cleveland;
First City National Bank of Houston (First City Bancorp); and Seattle
First National Bank. These Rothschild subsidiaries were ranked in
1983 as follows: First City Bancorp Houston, 23rd insizein U.S., $17
billion assets; National City Corp. of Cleveland, 48th largestin U.S.,
$6.5 billion assets. National City Corporation of Cleveland has
exercised a dominant role in Midwestern industry and politics for
many years; First City Bancorp dominates Texas oil and heavy
industry as well as Texas politics.

In 1900, Cleveland was the home of Marcus Alonzo Hanna
(known as Mark), the legendary political boss of the Republican
Party. He twice nominated andelected an Ohio Congressman, William
McKinley, to the Presidency of the U.S. He initiated the checkoff
system by which banks and corporations were required to make
regular political contributions. Hanna founded two companies; M. A.
Hanna Co., and Hanna Mining Co., which acquired large steel and
ironholdings.In 1953, President Eisenhower named George Humphrey
Secretary of the Treasury. Humphrey, president of M.A. Hanna Co.,
was also chmn National Steel Co. (recently acquired by Nippon
Kokan, a Japanese concern); director of Sun Life Assurance Co.
{Rothschild), Industrial Rayon Corp., the world’s largest manufacturer
of auto tire cord (L.L. Strauss of Kuhn, Loeb Co. controlled the firm;
Harry Byrd Jr. was also a director. Humphrey was also a director of
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the National City Bank of Cleveland. Otherdirectors of thisbank were
C.T. Foster, chmn Standard Oil of Ohio; J.A. Greene, chmn Ohio
Telephone Co.; L.L. White, chmn Chicago & St. Louis Rwy.; R.A.
Weaver, chmn Ferro Corp.;J.B. Ward, President Addressograph Co.;
H.B. Kline, President Industrial Rayon Corp.; and William McAfee,
director Standard Oil of Ohio. National City Bank of Cleveland now
has $6.5 billion assets, 8,171 employees, and seventeen companies. It
recently purchased the $500 million revenues bank, BANCOHIO.

In 1978, George Humphrey’s son, Gilbert W., was chmn Hanna
Mining Co., director National City Bank of Cleveland, Sun Life
Assurance, National Steel, Massey Ferguson, General Reinsurance,
and St. John del Rey Mining Co. M.A. Hanna Co. the holding
company, wasliquidatedin 1965,and its $700 millionassetsdistributed
to its stockholders.

The National City Bank of Cleveland’s influence was not limited
to the Hanna and Humphrey families. As the Ohio Connection of the
House of Rothschild, it guided the careers of two of the nation’s best
known families, the Tafts and the Rockefellers. The bank financed the
Taft family’s activitiesin politics and business, the Taft Broadcasting
Co. and other firms. John D. Rockefeller’s success began when he
obtained the backing of the National City Bank of Cleveland to
finance his takeover of his competitors in the oil business. Because
J.P. Morgan and Kuhn, Loeb Co. controlled 95% of all railway
mllcage in the U.S. in the latter half of the 19th century, they offered
Rockefeller special rebates on shipping oil through his holding
company, South Improvement Co. This enabled him to undersell and
ruin his competitors. One of them was a Mr. Tarbell, whose daughter,
Ida Tarbell, la’ter wrote the first expose of Standard Oil and was
termed a “muckraker” by Theodore Roosevelt, aterm which promptly
went into the language. The entire Rockefeller empire was financed
by the Rothschilds.

When Lincoln Steffens became a Wall Street reporter, he
interviewed both J.P. Morgan and John D. Rockefeller on several

occasions. He soon realized that these gentlemen, powerful though |
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they were, were mere front men. He noted that “No one ever seems to
ask the question ‘who is behind the Morgans and the Rockefellers?"”’
No one else ever asked the question, nor did anyone answer it !
Steffens knew the money for their operations was coming from
someone else, but never managed to trace it.

In February 1930, one of the few articles on the Rothschilds ever
toappearinanAmericanmagazineappearedin Fortune, whichstated,
“On only one important point did the Rothschilds guess wrong. They
neverwouldhave anythingtodowiththe U.S. of America.Imagination
falters at what the Rothschilds might be today if they had spent on the
infant industries of this country one-half the sums they poured into
Imperial Austria.”

The Fortune writer did not know then and probably never knew
thatthe Rothschilds have alwayscontrolled the Morgan and Rockefeller
operations, as well as the foundations set up by these front men to
control the people of the United States.

During the past quarter of a century, many writers have published
alarming exposes of the Rockefellers and their control of the U.S.
through the Council on Foreign Relations. In 1950, the New York
Times carried a small notice on an inside page that L.L. Strauss, a
partner of Kuhn, Loeb Co., had been appointed financial advisor to the
Rockefeller brothers. In short, all their investments must be approved
by apartner of Kuhn, Loeb Co. Ithas always been thus, beginning with
Jacob Schiff. Strauss held the position from 1950 to 1953, when it
passed to J. Richardson Dilworth. Dilworth, who married Elizabeth
Cushing, was a partner of Kuhn, Loeb Co. from 1946 to 1958, when
he became director of Finances for the entire Rockefeller family,
presiding over all their accounts on the 56th floor of Rockefeller
Center. He held the position until 1981. He is now Chairman of the
Board of RockefellerCenter,director of International Basic Economy

Corp., Chrysler, R.H. Macy, Colonial Williamsburg and Rockefeller
University.
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The National City Bank of Cleveland continues to dominate
Midwestern industry and politics. For many years, its primary law
firm has been Jones, Day, Reavis and Pogue of Cleveland. 1 he
Washington Post announced Dec. 19,1983 that this law firm was
spending $9 million for office space in Washington to house a staff
of sixty lawyers, making this Cleveland law firm one of the most
potent lobbying groups in Washington.

Hanna Mining Co., despite relatively modest revenues of $333
million exercises an important role, as shown by its board of directors,
including such distinguished names as Herbert Hoover Jr. (Under
Secretary of State under Eisenhower & Dulles); Stephen D. Bechtel,
chmn of Bechtel Group and director of J.P. Morgan Co.; R.L. Ireland
of Brown Bros. Harriman; George F. Bennett, treasurer of Harvard
University, and Nathan W. Pearson, financial manager of the Mellon
family.

Despite the Hollywood image of redfaced Texas oil millionaires
driving new Cadillacs, the Texan oil industry has for years been
dominated by the London Rothschilds through the billion dollar First
City National Bank of Houston, and its fifty-seven subsidiary Texas
banks. Chairman of First City is James Anderson Elkins Jr., who is a
director of Hill Samuel Co. of London, one of the seventeen merchant
banks chartered by the Bank of England. His father was chairman of
First City, and founded the Texas law firm of Vinson and Elkins, the
primary law firm of First City Bank. This firm dominated national
politics through its most well known partner, John B. Connally, who
achieved a reputation as “kingmaker” in Texas politics. He began as
administrative assistant to Congressman Lyndon B. Johnson in 1949,
thenbecame attorney for the oil millionaire Sid Richardson, and Perry
Bass, 1952-61, Secretary of the Navy 1961, Governor of Texas 1963-
69; Secretary of the Treasury 1971-72. He was wounded in the
Kennedy assassination in Dallas. He is now trustee of the Andrew
Mellon Foundation, serves on the President’s Forelgn Intelligence
Advisory Board, and the Advisory Committee on Reforming the
International Monetary System. He advised Nixon on devaluing the

dollar and going off the gold standard in 1971. He is now director of
Superior Oil, and Falconbridge Nickel Mines Ltd.

James Anderson Elkins is also director of Freeport Minerals,
whose directors include some of the leading names in American
business. Chmn of Freeport is Benno H. Schmidt, managing director
of J.H. Whitney Co. Schmidt, who married into the wealthy
Fleischmann family—(New Yorker magazine etc.) graduated from
Harvard Lawin 1941, became general counsellorof the War Production
Baord in Washington 1941-42, and headed the Foreign Liquidation
Commission 1945-46, which disposed of billions of dollars worth of
property. He is also director of CBS, and Schlumberger, the huge oil
field service firm who began business in 1928 when it was awarded
its first contract by the Soviet Union—it is said to have important
AngloSwiss intelligence connections. Other directors of Freeport
Minerals are William McChesney Martin Jr., Chairman of the Federal
Reserve Board 1951-1970, now director of J.P. Morgan U.S. Steel, Eli
Lilly, General Foods, Royal Dutch Shell, IBM, American Express,
Riggs National Bank, and Scandinavian Securities (the Wallenberg
firm); Donald S. Perkins, of Morgan Guaranty Trust, Time magazine;
John B. Madden, partner Brown Bros. Harriman; Godfrey S.
Rockefeller; Norborne Berkeley Jr., director Uniroyal, and Anglo-
Energy Ltd.

Other directors of First City Bancorporation include Anne
Armstrong, U.S. Ambassador to Britain 1976-77, co-chmn Reagan-
Bush Campaign 1980, director of General Foods, General Motors,
trustee Hoover Institution, Guggenheim Foundation, Atlantic Council,
Council on Foreign Relations, Halliburton Co.; George R. Brown,
directorof Halliburton—he founded the huge contracting firm, Brown
& Root, which financed Lyndon B. Johnson’s political campaigns,
subseguentlz receiving billion dollar contracts to construct naval

bases and airfields in Vietnam, which are now being used by the
Soviet Navy and Air Force. Brown married into the Pratt family,
founded Texas Eastern an oil firm, and is director of ITT, TWA, and
the Brown Foundation. The Brown-Johnson association began in

1940, when Johnson secured a lucrativecontract for Brown & Root




to build a large naval base at Corpus Christi, Texas; it was said then
that any course chosen by Johnson would be paved by money from
Brown & Root. J.Evetts Haley pointed out that Brown & Root
prospered on government contracts afterJohnson helped them and
rapidly became a worldwide operation. In 1940, the Internal Revenue
Service found that large contributions given to Johnson by Brown &
Root and its subsidiary, Victoria Gravel Co., as much as $100,000
each, were taken by Brown & Root as tax deductions. Haley states,
“Brown & Root were in control of Texas politics; that L.B. Johnson
was in control of IRS; that records had been burmed at IRS to get
Brown off the hook in 1954. Johnson and Connally then picked up a
government plant for a small sum which became a giant wartime
contractor, the Sid Richardson Carbon plant at Odessa, Tex., in which
Mrs. Lyndon B. Johnson had a one-fourthinterest.” In 1955, Johnson
suffered a major heart attack on his way to George Brown’s palatial
Middleburg Va. estate.

As mentioned, Brown is a director of Halliburton, whose primary
law firmis also Vinson & Elkins. In 1981, Halliburton had $8.3 billion
revenues, 110,398 employees, and daily monitors most U.S. oil wells.
In addition to George Brown and Anne Armstrong, directors of
Halliburton include Lord Polwarth of Scotland, who is Governor of
the Bank of Scotland, director of CanadianPacific, Sun Life Assurance
Ltd. and Brown & Root UK which interlocks with George Wimpey
Ltd., thelargest construction firmin England, through Brown & Root
Wimpey Highland Fabricators. Lord Polwarth, Henry HepburneScott,
is adescendant of James Hepburn, Earl of Bothwell, who was married
to Mary, Queen of Scots. The first Baron Polwarth ( 1641-1724) was
Sir Patrick Hume, first Earl of Marchmont, and William of Orange’s
closest advisor. He accompanied William in 1688 on his voyage to
take possession of the throne of England, and became his privy
councillor, in which office he advised William to grant the charter of
the Bank of England. He became a peer of Scotland 1689, Lord
Chancellor of Scotland 1696-1702, and Earl of Marchmont 1697. He
passed the Act of Succession on to the House of Hanover, and was
reappointed by King George I.
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John Pickens Harbin, president of Halliburton, is a director of
Citicorp. Another director of Halliburton is William E. Simon,
Secretary of the Treasury 1973-77. He is a director of Citicorp,
Citibank, and United Technoligies. As director of Citibank, he
interlocks with Lord Aldington of London (Toby Low), who is also
directorof Citibank and chairman of Sun Life Assurance, the keystone
of the Rothschild fortune. Lord Aldington is chairman of Grindlay’s
Bank, London, director of General Electric Ltd., Lloyd’s Bank,
United Power Ltd., and National Discount Corp.

During a national “oil crisis” government of ficials complained
they could not obtain any records from oil companies on production
and reserves, yet Halliburton received this information on a daily
basis.

As director of United Technologies, William Simon again
interlocks with Citibank, the only corporation which has four officers
on the board of directors of Citibank—Harry Gray, chmn of United
Technologies, Simon, WilliamlI. Spencer, whois president of Citibank,
and Darwin Eatna Smith, chmn of Kimberly Clark.

Other directors of United Technologies are Robert F. Dee, chmn
& CEO of the Smith Kline drug firm; T.Mitchell Ford, general
counsel CIA 1952-55, now chmn f the $1.8 billion Emhart Corp., and
director of Travelers Insurance; Richard S. Smith, exec. vice-pres.
National Steel, was with First National Bank New York 1952-62, and
treasurer of M.A. Hanna Co. 1962-63, and director of Hartford Fire
Insurance, and Hartford Accident & Indemnity; Charles W. Duncan,
Jr., dep. Sec. Defense, 1977-79, Sec. Dept of Energy 1979-81, chmn
Coca Cola International, chmn Coca Cola Europe, director Humble
Oil Co.; Melvin C. Holm, pres & CEO Carrier Corp., director N.Y.
Telephone, Mutual of New York SKF Industries; Antonia Chandler
Hayes, wife of Abram Hayes, who was law clerk to Felix Frankfurter,
later joined Covington & Burling, Washington 1952-55, wrote the
Democratic Natl. Platform 1960, legal adviser Sec. of State 1961-64,
director of foreign policy Democratic Natl. Committee 1972;
Jacqueline Wexler, pres. Webster College 1965-69, pres. Hunter
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College since 1969, leader of the feminist movement; and Robert L.
Sproull, with the Dept. Defense 1963-65, pres. Univ. of Rochester
since 1970, lecturer at NATO, director of Xerox, General Motors,
pres. Telluride Assn.

Other directors of First City Bancorporationare John Diesel, pres.
of Tenneco, which interlocks with the George Bush oil firm, Zapata
Oil Corp., whose chmnJohn Mackin is adirector of Tenneco; Randall
Meyer, pres. Exxon; M.A. Wright, former chmn Exxon 1966-76, now
chmn Cameron Iron Works.

Other directors of Halliburton Corp. include James W. Glanville,
former ptnr. Lehman Bros. and Lazard Freres, was with Humble Oil
1945-59, Lehman Bros. 1959-78, had been with Lazard Freres since
1978, and is director of International Mining & Chemical Co. Other
directors of Lazard Freresincludeits senior partner, Michel DavidWeill,
head of the Paris house of Lazard Freres; Donald C. Cook, SEC
financial examiner 1935-45, director Office of Alien Property
Custodianfor Dept. of Justice, 1946-47,commissioner SEC 1949-53,
and is now director of ABC, Amerada Hess, chmn of the board
American Electric Power and director of General Dynamics, the
defense oriented firm; Felix Rohatyn, born in Austria, came to U.S.

1942, married Jeannette Streit, daughter of Clarence Streit, head of |

Union. Now with England; Rohatyn joined Lazard Freres in 1948, is

director of Schlumberger, MCA, American Motors, Owens Illinois, |

Engelhardt Mining & Chemical, Pfizer, ITT, and Rockefeller Bros.

Fund; he is chmn Municipal Assistance Corp., which bailed New |
York City out of its approaching bankruptcy; Frank C. Zarb, asst. to

President of the U.S. 1974-77, administrator Federal Energy

Administration 1974-77, now director of Philbro Corp., Engelhard

Mining & Chemical, and the Energy Fund.

The Houston-Clevelandaxisinterlocks withmany political figures, &
including W.Michael Blumenthal, Secretary of the Treasury 1977- J&
79, who interlocks with the axis through Chemical Bank, Equitable §
Life and the Rockefeller Foundation; Robert B. Anderson, Secretary |
of Treasury 1957-61, partner of the law firm of Stroock Stroock &
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Lavan which administers the Warburg family finances, andinterlocks
with this group through Equitable Life, ITT and PanAm; G.William
Miller, chmn Federal Reserve Board of Governors 1978-79, Secretary
of the Treasury 1979-81, interlocks with this group through Textron
and First City Bancorporation, was chmn of U.S.-U.S.S.R. Trade &
Economic Council, now director of Federated Dept. Stores whose
directors include three directors of Chase Manhattan Bank and
interlocks with Citibank and Kuhn, Loeb Co.

The political power of this Rothschild-controlled axis was
demonstrated by the ease with which they financed the campaigns of
two governors of supposedly conservative Southern states, John D.
Rockefeller IV. in West Virginia, and Charles Robb, son-in-law of
Lyndon B. Johnson, in Virginia, heir to the Connally-Brown &
RootFirst City Bancorp political clout.

The May 1976 staff rept. of the House Banking & Currency
Committee noted another Rothschild affiliate (p.60), “The Rothschild
banks areaffiliated with Manufacturers Hanover of London (inwhich
they hold 20% interest, amerchant bank. and Manufacturers Hanover
Trustof N.Y.” Manufacturers Hanover recently bou ghtthe giant CIT
Financial Corp. for $1.6 billion in October, 1983.

Despite his reputed wealth, theelder J.P. Morgan did not leave one
of the great American fortunes when he died in 1913; it was first
estimated at $75 million, then 50, and finally disclosed there were
only $19 million of securitites in the entireestate, of which $7 million
was owed to the art dealer Duveen. J.P. Morgan Jr. (known to a very
few intimates as Jack) was embarrassed to find he had to sell off many
of his father’s art treasures to pay the debts of the estate. Most of the
huge sums handled by J.P. Morgan went directly to the Rothschilds.
In 1905, the New York Times noted inits obituary of Baron Alphonse
de Rothschild that he possessed some $60 million in American
sccurities, although the Rothschilds, according to most financial
authorities, had never been active in American finance.
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Lincoln Steffens noted, “Senator Aldrich is a great man to me; not
personally, but as leader of the Senate. He, Aldrich, bows to J.P.
Morgan. The other day J.P. Morgan came to Washington, and he and
I and Aldrich had a conference. And I noticed how he, Morgan,
addressed himself to me, not to Aldrich. Morgan talked to me, while
[ talked to Aldrich, who talked to Morgan.”

Morgan’s partner, George W. Perkins, worked furiously to obtain
Theodore Roosevelt’s nomination as McKinley’s running mate.
During Roosevelt’s presidency, his closest advisor was George W.
Perkins. Despite Roosevelt’s nickname of “trustbuster”, he protected
Morgan’s interests throughout his term of office. His successor,
William Howard Taft, was opposed to Morgan, and introduced anti-
trust legislation to control two Morgan trusts, International Harvester
and U.S. Steel. Perkins then created the Progressive Party in 1912 to
split the party and defeat Taft.

J.P. Morgan’s apex of power was attained in the Panic of 1907,
when he assumed control of Wall Street. Oakleigh Thorne, president
of the Trust Co. of America, a victim of the “panic”, testified before

a Congressional Committee that his bank had been subjected to only

moderate withdrawls, that he had not applied for help, and that it was

Morgan’s ‘sore point’ statement alone that had caused the run on his |
bank....”that Morgan interests took advantage of the unsettled ]
conditions during the autumn of 1907 to precipitate the panic, guiding
it shrewdly as it progressed so that it would kill off rival banks and ‘
consolidate the preeminence of the banks within the Morgan orbit.” §

Morgan’s financial power came from control of the enormous
cash flow of the nation’s biggest life insurance companies. He gained |
control of Mutual Life, New York Life, Metropolitan Life, and with §

George F. Baker and James Stillman, bought controlling interest in

Equitable from Thomas Fortune Ryan, who had acquired it from the }
Hyde family. Hyde originally set Equitable up while acting as a front |

for Jacob Schiff and James Speyer.
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On June 7,1933, Nation noted “J.P. Morgan is generally regarded
as the most prominent banker in the world.” Paul Y. Anderson
mentioned in this article that testimony before the Senate Banking
Committee showed that Morgan and his partners, including Thomas
W. Lamont and E.T. Stotesbury, paid no federal income tax in 1931-
32; the partners paid a total of $48,000 in 1930. Anderson remarked,
“Is there any mystery as to why the Marines were despatched against
Haiti, San Domingo, and Nicaragua when those countries defaulted,
or threatened to default, on the debt payments to American banks? It
has been shown that the Morgan firm had a certain selected list of
‘clients’ to whom it sold stock at figures substantially under market
prices. In the case of the Allegheny Corp. these fair-haired boys got
the stock at 20, when the market was 35.” Anderson pointed out that
these fortunate few could have sold the stock immediately for almost
double what they had paid. Among the recipients of these Morgan
tfavors he listed Senator McAdoo, Justice Owen Roberts, Secretary
Woodin, Owen D. Young, and John J. Raskob.

In Nation, June 21,1933, Anderson continued, “When Ft. Sumter
was fired on, gold began to leave the country. The man who later said
‘Don’t sell America short’ then took a flyer on the short side of
America. He borrowed 2 million in gold coins and shipped it to
London. This was really a blow behind the lines. Then he went to the
‘gold room’ to watch the effect. There was a scramble for gold to pay
committments abroad and this patriotic American with 2 million in
cagles in London sold at his own price.”

In March, 1929, perhaps in preparation for the coming storm, two
Morgan banks merged, the National Bank of Commerce, which,
accordingtotheNew York Timeshad “important foreignconnections”,
and Guaranty Trust, forminga $2 billion institution. On Feb. 26,1929,
the New York Times noted, “The Guaranty Trust has long been
known asone of the ‘Morgan group’. The National Bank of Commerce
has also been identified with Morgan interests.”

J.P. Morgan’s longtime associate, George Fisher Baker, was one
of the founders of First National Bank, purchasing 30 sharesin 1863
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for $3000. He also was cashier, and later became president. Sheridan
A.Logan’s book, “George F. Baker and his Bank™, privately printed,
1981, noted that “a European syndicate headed by N.M. Rothschild
was represented in New York by August Belmont and First National
Bank to refund the Government debt. Baker wrote a letter Aug. 29,
1876, ‘I have to advise you that our negotiations with the Treasury
Dept. resulted in a contract between Messrs. N.M. Rothschild & Sons
and others and the Secretary of the Treasury for the purpose of forty
million dollars of U.S. 41/2 per cents of 1891, with an option on the
remainder, $260 million. In this contract the bank participated to the
extent of 10%, $4 million.”

Logan also states that “In 1901 Baker sold to J.P. Morgan $23
millionstockinCentralRailroad of New Jersey. Themutualconfidence
and respect which developed between Mr. Baker and Mr. Morgan
cemented their increasingly close relationship and the First National
Bank became more and more the unswerving ally and valuable source
of mobile funds for the work of J.P. Morgan & Co.”

In 1901, Baker increased the stock of First National Bank from
$500,000 to $10 million by a 1900% stock dividend. He organized
First Security Co., a holding company, with this dividend. During the
1929 boom, Baker’s personal fortune reached the $500 million mark.
His son, George Jr. pleaded with him to pay of the $29 million owed
on stocks in First Security’s $80 million portfolio. Baker, then 89
years old, had not been informed of the planned credit contraction,
possibly because the insiders feared he might gossip about it. He
continued to refuse to sell any stocks; the crash of 1929 reduced his
fortune to $200 million. When he died in 1931, the estate was
appraised at $73 million; his son, George Jr. inherited $30million. His
health had been shattered by the strain of working with his father
during the desparate days of 1929, and he died of a heart attack in
Honolulu, aged59. His son, George F. III was found shotat Horseshoe
Plantation, Fla. in 1977. George III’s son, Grenville, was found shot
at Tallahassee, Fla. in 1949, at age 33. George Jr.’s daughter, Edith
Brevoort Baker, married Jacob Schiff’s grandson; John Mortimer
Schiff, in 1934, uniting two of America’s largest fortunes. George
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Baker I's daughter Florence had married Howard Bligh St. George in
1891, memberofoneof England’s oldestfamilies. Theirgranddaugher
Priscilla married Angier Biddle Duke in 1937, and second, Allen A.
Ryan Jr. in 1941, a relative of the Delanos.

In 1935, Gen. Smedley D. Butler wrote in the Nov. issue of
Common Sernse of his Marine career,

“I helped make Mexico and especially Tampico safe for
‘American oil interests in 1914. I helped make Haiti and Cuba
a decent place for the National City Bank boys to collect
revenues in....I helped purify Nicaragua for the international
banking house of Brown Bros. in 1909-12. In China in 1927
[ helped see to it that Standard Oil went its way unmolested.
In 1899 J.P. Morgan floated the first important foreign loan on
behalf of the Mexican Government. In 1901 he lent $50
million to the British Government to fight the Boer War. But
it was mainly into the countries of Spanish America that
American capital found its way.”

Butler continued his revelations in the Dec. 1935 issue, “In 1910,
six months after the Nicaraguan Revolution which ousted President
Zelaya, his successor, Dr. Madris, grew cold towards the Nicaraguan
investments of Brown Bros. and Seligman Co. Another revolution
immediately ‘occurred’.”

Butler mentions the Latin American activities of Brown Bros.,
now Brown Bros. Harriman, a firm little known to most Americans.
In 1801, alinenauctioneerfrom Belfast, Alexander Brown, established
a banking house, Alexander Brown & Co. in the slavetrading port of
Baltimore. It is now the oldest banking house in the U.S. Its English
branch, Brown Shipley, also became influential, its most wellknown
member being Lord Montague Norman, Governor of the Bank of
kngland for many years, 1907-44, longer than any other man in
history. Current Biography 1940, noted, “There is an informal
understanding that a director of Brown Shipley should be ontheboard
of the Bank of England and Norman was elected to it in 1907.”
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In expanding Rothschild investments in U.S. railroads, Kuhn,
Loeb Co. found a useful agent in E.H. Harriman. A young man on the
make, Harriman married the daughter of the president of a small New
York railroad, and soon looked for more worlds to conquer. George
Redmond writes in “Financial Giants of America” “He (Harriman)
early won the confidence of Kuhn, Loeb Co. and established relations
which later became mostadvantageous to both.” Kuhn, Loeb financed
the Union Pacific takeover by Harriman. H.J. Eckenrode notes in
“E.H. Harriman”, “In his takeover of UP, Harriman had behind him
tremendous financial force—not only Kuhn, Loeb Co. with funds
from Frankfurt and Berlin, but the National City Bank, ‘the greatest

1y

source of cash in the country’.

Harriman employed Judge Robert Scott Lovett as general counsel
for Union Pacific. When Harriman and Otto Kahn were summoned by
the ICC in 1897, Lovett advised them to refuse to answer all questions
about their stock operations. In 1908, the Supreme Court upheld their
refusal to talk. The records of this case, SC No. 133 US v. UPRy, later

disappeared from the Library of Congress. In 1911, the Equitable Life
Insurance building, which contained all the records of the UP RR, &
burned, destroying all UP papers to that date. Lovett’s son, Robert |
Abercrombie Lovett married Adele Brown, daughter of a partner of |
Brown Bros. and became partner in 1926. He was Special Asst. Sec. |
of War 1940-45, under secretary of state, 1947-49, dep. secretary of |
Defense 1950-51, secretary of Defense 1951-53. It was Lovett who
took the then Secretary of Defense James Forrestal, of Dillon Read I ;
Co. toFishers Island to persuade him to change his stand against U.S. |
MiddleEasternpolicies. Forrestalrefused, and wasplaced ina mental |
ward at the National Institute of Health, where he fell out of the |

window. Lovett then replaced him as Secretary of Defense.

Brown Bros. backed the B & O steamship line in 1887, and went ;

into joint venture with J & W Seligman Co. on a number of South

American loans. In 1915, Brown Bros. combined with J.P. Morganto §
float a series of Latin American loans, which in many instances were |

followed by revolutions in the respective countries. In the Nation,

June 7,1922, Oswald Garrison Villard noted, “The Republic of Brown |
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Bros withJ & W Seligman had reduced Haiti, Santo Domingo, and
Nicaragua to the status of colonies with ruinous loans. Most of the
loans were repaid in 1924.”

In 1931, W. Averell Harriman, son of E.H. Harriman, merged his
banking house, W.A. Harriman & Co. with Brown Bros. to form the
present firm of Brown Bros. Harriman. In 1933, BrownBros. Harriman
backed the expansion of CBS, in which they have maintained a large
position. The Brown Bros. firm occupied offices on the corner of Wall
Street and Hanover which had been occupied by J.L. & J.S. Joseph
Co., the American representatives of the Rothschilds. Josephs went
broke in the Panic of 1837, having been cut loose by the Rothschilds,
who were nowoperatingthrough August Belmont and George Peabody
& Co. W. Averell Harriman brought to the new firm his vice president,
Prescott Sheldon Bush, who had been with him since 1926. Bush
became chairman of the Board of Pennsylvania Water & Power Co.,
director U.S. Rubber,PanAm,CBS, Dresser Mfg Co. Vanadium, U.S.
Guaranty, Prudential Insurance and partner Brown Bros Harriman.
He was chmn National War Fund 1943-44 and chmn USO. His son
George Bush is now president of the U.S. George Herbert Walker,
grandfather of George Bush, who was named after him, became
presidentof W.A.Harriman Co.in1928 ~now BrownBros.Harriman).
He was director of Belgian-American Coke Ovens Corp., chmn
Habershaw Cable Corp., chmn International Great Northern Railway,
director Certain Teed Products, American Shipping & Commerce
Corp., American International Corporation, Cuba Railway Co.,
Pennsylvania Coal & Coke. He was the donor of the Walker Cup, the
prestigious golftrophy,and president of the U.S. Golf Association. In
1925, he financed the building of Madison Square Garden. His son,
George H. Walker Jr. became chmn Walker-Bush Oil Corp., and
Zapata Petroleum (George Bush’s firm), Silesian Holdings, with
W.A. Harriman City Investing Corp., Westmoreland Coal. Co. and
West Indies Sugar Co. He is a trustee of Yale. George H. Walker I11
merged the firm of G.H. Walker Co. with Laird & Co. and White &
Weld in 1974. He is now a senior vice pres. of White & Weld.
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Some Americans see George Bush’s rapid rise to the Presidency
as evidence of the power of the Trilateralists. But Bush’s stars goback
much farther than the Trilaterals. He is a distant cousin of the Queen
of England, the Black Nobility which traces its power back some five
thousand years, and his family firm, Brown Brothers Harriman, has
represented the Bank of England here since the early 1800s. Through
service to the Harrimans, the Bush family achieved the position of a
third rank family in the hierarchy of dynastic families. The World
Order dynastic families of the first rank are the Rothschild, and the
ruling aristocracy of England and Europe, most of whom have owned
stock in the Bank of England since 1700. The second rank of dynastic
families consist of those who serve as courtiers to the first rank. The
second rank includes families such as the Rockefellers, the Morgans,
and the Harrimans, By becoming servants of a dynastic family of the
second rank, the Harrimans, the Bush family entered the ranks of the
third group of dynastic families of the World Order. When Averill
Harriman began doing business with Moscow in 1921, he dealt
directly with Felix Dzerzhinsky, head of Cheka, now known as the
KGB. Harriman and other Western financiers linked to the terrorist
activities of Dzerzhinsky became known as The Trust. They worked
through a number of firms located in the Equitable Trust Building at
120 Broadway in New York’s financial district. These firms included
E.H. Harriman Co., AmericanInternational Corp., Dresser Industries,
J.P. Morgan Co., and Equitable Trust. As members of the Trust, the
owners of these firms served as a colonial government of the Soviet

Union, as illustrated by the fact that Averill Harriman spent most of |

the Second world War at STalin’s side in Moscow, directing the
Russian war effort.

George Bush’s assets are held in a blind trust while he serves as
President of the United States. The blind trust is handled by a family
friend named William Stamps Farish 11. His father founded Humble
Oil Corp. in 1917, raising capital for the venture from Walter C.
Teagel, president of Standard Oil. Farish later succeeded Teagle as
president of Standard Oil,andhasalwaysbeenknownas “aRockefeller
man”. He married into the wealthy Rice family of Houston, whose

progenitor had been murdered by his secretary and a crooked lawyer |
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in order to prevent his fortune from being donated to Rice Institute.
The killers were sent to prison, and the institute was built. William
Farish Il and the Queen of England have much in common; their
families collected royalties on each gallon of gasoline burned by the
Nazi planes which nightly bombed London. Because of these
memories, Queen Elizabeth staysin only one privatehome in America
when she visits here—the Farish home. Each autumn, President Bush
hunts quail on the 10,000 acre Lazy F Ranch at Beeville, Texas, one
of Farish’s many lavish estates. he is a director of Pogo Producting,
formed as aspinoffof Pennzoil by Chemical Bank,and Manufacturer’s
Hanover Bank (Rothschild).

When George Bush formed Zapata Oil Co. with Hugh and Bill
Liedtke in 1953, the partners were unwilling to choose a name from
American history, such as Washington or Lee. Instead, they named
their firmafterone of Mexico’s mostbloodthirsty Communist terrorists,
General Emiliano Zapata. From its outset, the firm was involved
heavily in CIA activities. In 1961, when the CIA planned the Bay of
Pigs invasion, George Bush resided in Houston, where he worked
secretly with George de Mohrenschildt, an oil man who is now
believed to have been a Soviet plant. An entry in de Mohrenshildt’s
personal phone book show “Bush, George H. W. (Poppy) 1412 W.
Ohio, and also Zapata Petroleum Midland. This phone book was
found after de Mohrenschildt’s “suicide”. The top secret name for the
CIA Bay of Pigs plan, known only to a few top people, was Operation
Zapata. Col. Fletcher Prouty, formerly with the Chiefs of Staff, was
responsible for securing ordinance for the Bay of Pigs invasion. He
obtained two ships from the Navy which were sent to Elizabeth City,
N.C.toberemitted fortheinvasion. Newnames were painted on these
ships, Barbara, and Houston, J. Edgar Hoover wrote a memorandum
on Nov. 29, 1963 after the JRK assassination that Mr. George Bush of
the CIA was assessing the reaction of Cuban exiles in Miami. Bush
had begun service with the CIA in 1960, using his oil business as a
cover. Zapata Oil may have been one of the CIA (The Company)
firms from its outset.
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Besides Farish, Bush’s other close friend is Nicholas Brady,
senior partner of Dillon Read, a New York investment house. Brady
was the personal protege of C. Douglas Dillon, head of the firm, who
has an enormous estate at Short Hills, N.J. Brady was brought up on
the neighboring estate, a 4,000 acre spread only a few miles from
Manbhattan. DillonRead wasfounded by Clarence Dillon (Lapowski)
of Texas, who bought the firm from William Read of New York. His
son served as Secretary of the Treasury for years. He is one of
America’s silent billionaires, his enormous fortune never reported in
the press. Bush appointed Nicholas Brady as his Secretary of the
Treasury. He confers daily with Brady.

Harriman was the go-between of Churchill and Roosevelt’s
World War II alliance. The two leaders did not know or particularly
like each other; each of them conferred with W. Averell Harriman
about how to talk to the other, and carefully followed his advice.

W. A. Harriman served as U.S. Ambassador atlarge during World
War II, principally in Moscow with Stalin; his brother E. Roland was
president of the American Red Cross, Robert A. Lovett was Secretary
of Defense. Harriman was related by marriage to Wild Bill Donovan,
founder of the OSS.

Brown Bros. has always maintained close relations with British
firms. James Brown, partner from 1935-50 was director Northern
Assurance of London, Sun Insurance, pres. British Empire Club and
National Bank of Nicaragua. Thatcher M. Brown, another partner,
was director of Manchester Land Co., National Bank of Nicaragua,
chairman of the board of Liverpool and London Insurance Co. Ltd.,
Globe Indemnity Co., Royal Insurance, British and Foreign Marine
Insurance Ltd., American London & Empire Co., Ocean Accident &
Guaranty of London, and Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Co.

The New York Times noted May 29, 1928, “Dr. Rudolf Roesler,
representative of the New York banking house of Brown Bros. said
Germany for a number of years to come would be a borrowing nation.
Brown Bros. had loaned the City of Berlin $15 million on 6% 30 yr.
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bonds and Mr. Roesler, who completed details of the transaction said
that ‘it was the biggest loan to a city in Europe since 1914.”

The New York Times later noted, “Word was received here
yesterday by J.Henry Schroder Banking Corp., representative in the
U.S. for Capt. Alfred Lowenstein, that a corporation organized by the
Belgian capitalist and French associates, whom it has offered the
public in Paris, had been oversubscribed twenty-five times.” The
holding company for artificial silk shares was offered at $117.50 and
promptly went to 200. This good news was somewhat palled by the
Times report that a syndicate had been formed to handle this stock
since “Capt. Alfred Lowenstein whose reported death through a fall
from an airplane in the English Channell July 4th has been surrounded
by mystery. J.Henry Schroder is to purchase $25 million of bonds of
International Holding and Investment Corp. through Albert Pam, of
J.Henry Schroder London, and Albert Svarvasy, head of British
Foreign and Colonial Corp., British investing company.”

The July 5,1928 New York Times headlined, CAPT.
LOWENSTEIN FALLS FROM PLANE. Known as Mystery Man.
Alfred Lowenstein was known as a Croesus. “The ‘mystery man of
Europe’, the successor to Sir Basil Zaharoff as a man of mystery, in
European finance. The pilot informed the authorities that while the
plane was crossing the sea, Capt. Lowenstein, wishing to go to the
washroom, opened the wrong door and fell out. His valet and two
stenographers as well as the pilot and mechanic of the plane were
present, but did not notice what happened.” The story added that
Lowenstein owned eight villas in Biarritz, an estate in Lancashire, a
castle in Brussels, and a townhouse in London.

Informed observersbelievedit was Zaharoff himself whodethroned
the pretender to his title as “‘mystery man of Europe”. Lowenstein had
become involved in a desperate struggle with Zaharoff and his
associate, Dreyfus Clavell, to control the artificial silk industry in
Europe. After Lowenstein’s accident, his two associates in this
struggle also died mysteriously. M.M. Ayrich had an automobile
accident on a deserted road, with no witnesses. Lowenstein’s third
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associate, Prince Radziwill, waspoisoned by awoman friend, according
to a French journal, La Crapoulle.

The Robert Maxwell case parallels in many ways the Lowenstein
affair. After Maxwell’s sudden death in a “fall” from his yacht, more
than two billion dollars was found to have been siphoned from his
many enterprises. The money will never be recovered. Maxwell had
been identified as an agent of Mossad, Israeli Intelligence, shortly
before his demise. It is believed Mossad had him disposed of the
prevent him from testifying about his operations for Mossad.

W. Averill Harriman was 78 when his wife died. A year later,
Katharine Meyer Graham, publisher of the Washington Post, invited
him to a party to meet Pam Churchill, daughter of Lord Digby, an
English horse fancier. She had been married to Randolph Churchill,
and was mother of the present Winston Churchill. She then married
into the firstfamily ofHollywood, producer Leland Hayward, formerly
married to actress Margaret Sullavan. In Haywire, her autobiography,
Brooke Hayward describes her stepmother as “a cold-blooded
golddigger who made off with her mother’s jewels”. Pam dated Elie
de Rothschild before deciding to marry Harriman. They are now the
dominant figures in the Democratic Party. Harriman has given $15
million to the Russian Institute at Columbia, (now the Harriman
Institute).

Another prominent banking house is the firm of Dillon Read.
Clarence Dillon (1882-1979) was born in San Antonio, Texas, son of
Samuel and Bertha Lapowski or Lapowitz. He graduated from Harvard
in 1905, married Anne Douglass of Milwaukee, whose father owned
Milwaukee Machine & Tool Co. They went abroad from 1908 to
1910.

Their son, C. Douglas Dillon, was born in Switzerlandin 1909.In #&
1912, Dillon met William A. Read, founder of a wellknown Wall
Street bond brokerage, through a Harvard classmate. They became |

partners. Read died suddenly in 1916, and Dillon bought control of the

firm. During World War [, Dillonserved as Bernard Baruch’s righthand |
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man at the War Industries Board. In 1915, Dillon had set up American
& Foreign Securities Corp. to finance the French Government’s
purchases of munitions in the U.S. His righthand man at Dillon Read
was James A. Forrestal, who later died while serving as Secretary of
Defense. Dillon Read played a crucial role in rearming Hitler during
the preparation for World War II. In 1957, Fortune Magazine listed
Clarence Dillon as one of the richest men in the U.S. ($150-200
million). By normal growth rates, his son C. Douglas Dillon should be
worth over $1 billion, but nobody knows. C. Douglas Dillon worked
with John Foster Dulles on the Dewey campaigns, and served as
Under Secretary of State, helping Bechtel Corp. obtain its first large
Saudi Arabiancontracts, which later became a $135 billion operation.
Dillon was Ambassador to France 1953-57, later became Secretary of
the Treasury. He was chairman of the Rockefeller Foundation from
1971-75, then chairman of the Brookings Institution. To organize his
estate, he sold Dillon Read to the Bechtel Corp. He is considered to be
one of the ten wealthiest men in the U.S. and one of the three most
powerful.

Second to the Rothschilds, the Warburgs were considered the
most important international banking family of the 19th and 20th
centuries. In 1798, two sons of Marcus Gumprich Warburg, Moses
Marcus and Gerson W. founded M.M. Warburg Co. in Hamburg.
They were descendants of Simon von Cassel, a 16th century
moneylender and pawnbroker. They were also direct descendants of
Abraham del Banco, largest banker in Venice. When they moved
north, they took the name of Warburg, after Cassel settled in this
Westphalian town. In 1814, the Warburgs became one of the first
affiliates of N.M. Rothschild of London. They were related to the
leading banking families of Europe, the Rosenbergs of Kiev, the
Gunzburgs in St. Petersburg, the Oppenheims and Goldschmidts in
Germany. Moritz Warburg was apprenticed to the Rothschilds in Italy
and Paris, and later married Charlotte Oppenheim, whose family were
diamond merchants in Frankfort. They had five sons, known as “the
Five Hamburgers”; the oldest, Aby, founded the Warburg Institute;
Max financed the German struggle in World War [ and later, the Nazi
regime; Dr. Fritz Warburg was German commercial attache in
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Stockholm during World War I; Paul and Felix emigrated to America
and joined the firm of Kuhn, Loeb & Co. with Jacob Schiff, who had
beenbornin the Rothschildhouse in Frankfort. Paul wrote the Federal
Reserve Act and saw it through Congress. He represented the U.S. at
the Versailles Peace Conference, while his brother Max represented
German interests.

The Memoirs of Max Warburg state, “The Kaiser thumped the
table violently and shouted ‘Must you always be right?’, but then
listened carefully to Max’s view of financial matters.”

M.M. Warburg Co. closed during World War II but reopened in
1970. George Sokolsky notedin“Welews”, “Evenin HitlerGermany
the firm of Max Warburgwasexempted from persecution. Max left for
the U.S. in 1939, unhampered by supposed restrictions on Jews.”

The U.S.Naval Secret Service Report Dec. 2, 1918 noted: “PAUL
WARBURG. German, nationalized U.S. citizen 1911, decorated by
Kaiser, handled large sums furnished by German bankers for Lenin &
Trotsky. Has brother Max who is director of espionage system of
Germany.”

In partnership with Walter Teagle of Standard Oil, Paul Warburg
organized the international dye trust, 1.G. Farben and Agfa Ansco
Film Trust. At the second annual convention of the American
Acceptance Council, Dec. 2,1920, President Paul Warburg said, “Itis
a great satisfaction to report that during the year under review it was
possible for the American Acceptance Council to furtherdevelopand
strengthen its relations with the Federal Reserve System.”” He did not
addthatas vice chairmanofthe FederalReserve Board from 1914-18,
he had organized the Federal Reserve System, or that he served as
president of the Federal Advisory Council from 1918-27, which
actually formulated policy for the Board. He was director of Union
Pacific, B&O Rys, National Railways of Mexico, Western Union,
Wells Fargo, American IG Chemical, Agfa Ansco, Westinghouse,
Warburg Banks in Amsterdam, London and Hamburg, and chairman
of the board of International Acceptance Bank. His brother Felix was
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chieffinancial banker of the Zionist Organizationof America, Palestine
Economic Corp.,National RailwaysofMexico, Prussian Life Insurance
of Berlin, and many other companies. Felix’s son Edward M.M.
Warburg succeeded Gen. Donovan as Cordinator of Information in
1941 and later served as special political advisor to Gen. Eisenhower
at SHAEF, London during World War II. His other son Frederick was
Herbert Lehman’s righthand man in organizing the Lehman Corp.,
and was later known as “the foreign minister of Kuhn, Loeb” because
of his many contacts around the world. He retired as a country
gentleman at his estate Snake Hill, Middleburg, Va. His partner,
Lewis L. Strauss had a magnificent estate nearby at Brandy Station,
site of the Civil War engagement which was the largest cavalry battle
in U.S. history.

Dept. of Commerce figures show that Kuhn, Loeb controlled 64%
of all railroad mileage in the U.S. in 1900, which dropped to a mere
41% by 1939.In 1900, Kuhn, Loeb and J.P. Morgan, representing the
Rothschilds,controlled93% of all railway mileagein the U.S. Speyer
& Co. controlled N.Y. real estate and South American minerals,
Seligman & Co. sugar, public utilities, and Latin American loans,
August Belmont, the New York subway system, Lazard Freres, gold
and silver, specializing in international gold movements.

U.S. News May 14, 1984 listed Who Runs America; the first ten
included Weinberger and Shultz of Bechtel Corp.; the second ten
included Sulzberger of the New York Times, vice pres. Bush, David
Rockefeller; the third ten included Katharine Graham and Henry
Kissinger. Former president Gerald Ford was not listed; he is now
director of GK Technologies,a $1.19 billion firm with large defense
contracts.

Other leading defense firms are United Technologies; Scovill
Corp. whose chairman Malcolm Baldrige is now Secretary of
Commerce; directorsinclude Daniel Pomeroy Davison of J.P. Morgan
bank and president U.S. Trust; Olin Corp., $1.85 billion; and General
Dynamics, controlled by the Crown family of Chicago.
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When Texaco swallowed the $12 billion Getty Oil corp. after its
founderdied, it showed the financial power of the London Connection;
Directors of Texaco included Willard C. Butcher, former chmn of
Chase Manhattan; Earl of Granard (Forbes) (the first baronet had
reduced Sligo for William III), and grandson of Ogden Mills, Secretary
of Treasury U.S. 1932-33; Thomas H. Moorer, chmn Joint Chfs of
Staff 1970-74, director Fairchild Bunker Ramo; Robert V. Roosa,
director Brookings Institution, Trilateral Commission.

The Rothschild Houston-Cleveland axis brought off one of its
greatest coups when its agent John Connally, then Secretary of the
Treasury, persuaded Nixon to abondon the gold standard. The New
York Times headlined, Aug. 16, 1971, “SEVERS LINK BETWEEN
DOLLAR AND GOLD. President Nixon announced tonight that
henceforth the U.S. would cease to convert foreign held dollars into
gold—unilaterally changing the 25 year old international monetary
system. The President said he was taking the action to stop ‘the attacks
of foreign monetary speculators against the dollar’. The change in the

world monetary system brought about by the Presidential decisionto |

cease converting foreign held dollars into gold is entirely uncertain.

That was the word used by Secretary Treasury John B. Connally. Mr,
Connally said he did not know what would happen.” The Times noted |

that “Advice to impose some controls has been given the President |
from such sources as David Rockefeller, chmn of the $23 billion {
Chase Manhattan Corp., and the Organization for Economic
Development, agrouprepresenting 22 nations.” The Times editorially |

stated, “We unhesitatingly applaud the boldness with which the

President has moved on all economic fronts—an admiration for the

completeness with which the President has junked the do-nothing |
approach that immobilised the country and sapped the national will.”

On 17 Aug. 1971, the Times quoted Paul Volcker, Under Secretary
of the Treasury, who, when asked if other currencies would rise in |
relation to the dollar, replied, “I think we are in no position to object.”
With the story was a photo of Volcker conferring with banking
officials in London, with the caption, “Under Secretary Paul A.

y

Volcker conferred with leading European financial officials here
today on President Nixon’s new policy to meet the dollar crisis. He
hinted broadly that the U.S. would be happy if other countries let their
currencies floatin the exchange markets. Their value would presumably
rise in relation to the dollar. Mr. Volcker said he had found a ‘very
good understanding’ in his meeting. But at the end of a confusing day
in European ministries and banks, few thought they could see a clear
way out of the immediate monetary chaos caused by Mr. Nixon’s
moves.”

Advance knowledge of such a far-reaching change in the monetary
system would be worth billions of dollars.




CHAPTER SIX
The CIA

On May 24, 1979, a 14 ft. bronze statue of General William J.
Donovan was dedicated in front of Columbia University’s Law
School. The dedication speech was delivered by John J. McCloy, who
had been Asst. Sec. of War when Donovan founded the Office of
Strategic Services in World War II. When Donovan died on Feb.
8,1959, the Director of the Central Intelligence Agency, Allen W.
Dulles, sent a message to all CIA stations around the world, “Bill
Donovanwasthefather of central intelligence. He was a greatleader.”

International intelligence, or, asit was formerly known, espionage,
was not founded by either Donovan or Dulles, who were merely
employees of the World Order. The Order founded international
espionage to protect their far reaching investments and dealings in

slaves, drugs and gold, the commodities on which their wealth was
built.

On Nov. 17, 1843, the Port of Shanghai was opened to foreign
traders. Lot No. 1 was rented by Jardine Mathieson & Co. Other
entrepreneurs were Dent & Co., and Samuel Russell, an American
who represented Baring Brothers. Captain Warren Delano, Franklin
D. Roosevelt’s grandfather, became a charter member of the Canton
Regatta Club, and entered into dealings with the Hong Society. Dr.
Emmanual Josephson states, “Warren Delano, Frederic A. Delano’s
father, founded his fortune on smuggling opium into China.” His son,
Frederic A. Delano, was bornin Hon g Kong, and later became the first
vice chairman of the Federal Reserve Board in 1914.

Although he was the son of an Irish wardheeler, William J.
Donovan studied law at Columbia from 1903 to 1908. His grades were
said to be “atrocious”, but one of his professors, Harlan F. Stone, took
a liking to him. Another protege of Stone was J. Edgar Hoover. As
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Attorney General Stone shocked Washington by naming Hoover
director of the Bureau of Investigation. Another Columbia professor
who liked Donovan was Jackson E. Reynolds, later president of the
First National Bank of N.Y. who backed Donovan’s selection as head
of OSS. One of Donovan’s Columbia classmates was Franklin Delano
Roosevelt.

In 1910, Donovan met Eleanor Robson, an actress who later
married August Belmont, Americanrepresentative of the Rothschilds.
There was no question of their marriage—he was looking for a rich
wife, she was looking for a rich husband—they began a relationship
which lasted for years. Donovan also courted Blanche Lopez, of a
wealthy tobacco family, who lived in Rumson, N.J. He then returned
to Buffalo, where he opened alaw practice. He met Ruth Rumsey, and
abruptly dropped Blanche Lopez, never contacting her again. Ruth
Rumsey was heiress of one of the richest families in America. Her
father, Dexter Rumsey, and her uncle Bronson owned 22 of Bufflao
43 square miles. In 1890, Dexter Rumsey was worth $10 million. His
wife was a member of the wealthy Hazard family of Rhode Island,
who had owned one thousand slaves, and were the largest slave
owners in America. The Rumseys were Masters of the Genesee
Valley Hunt, the most exclusive hunt club in the U.S. Dexter Rumsey
died in 1906, leaving his son and daughter 121/2% each of his fortune
in trust. Bill Donovan’s courtship of Ruth Rumsey was complicated
by the reappearance in Buffalo of Eleanor Robson, now Mrs. August
Belmont. She turned up at the Studio Club, an acting group run by
Katharine Cornell’s father, where Donovan had the juvenile lead. La
Robson requested that Donovan come to her suite in New York each
weekend for “drama lessons”. Donovan then took the long train ride
to New York City each weekend, causing considerable gossip in
Buffalo, where he was already widely known for his philandering.
Nevertheless, Ruth Rumsey had determined to marry him, probably
because her family was so strongly opposed. Friends of the family
stated that had Dexter Rumsey lived, he would never have allowed
this marriage to take place, because of Donovan's age; he was 31; his
religion, Irish Catholic; and his philandering. The Rumseys were
Episcopalian, but Donovan persuaded his wife to bring up their
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children as Roman Catholics. His brother was a priest. After the
marriage, Donovan and his wife moved into the Rumsey family
mansion at 742 Delaware Ave. in Buffalo.

Because of his New York connections, the Rockefeller Foundation
selected Donovan to go to Europe on a “War Relief Mission” in 1915,
the first of many assignments from the World Order. He was to be
separated from Ruth Donovan continually during the nextthree years.
While in London, he worked with Ambassador Walter Nelson Page,
William Stephenson, who later “advised” him on setting up the OSS,
and Herbert Hoover. Donovan spent five weeks in Belgium as an
observer with Hoover’s Belgian Relief Commission.

Whenthe U.S. entered World War I, Donovan helped organize the
“Rainbow” Division, and was given command of the “Fighting 69th”.
He fought at Landes et Landes St. George, in the Meuse-Argonne
sector, where, although wounded, he charged a German machine gun
squad on Oct. 15,1918 with his bayonet. For this feat, he was awarded
the Congressional Medal of Honor. His bravery was the subject of
wide publicity in the American press, and Current Biography later
stated he was the most famous man in the A. E. F. He was with J oyce
Kilmer, the poet, when Kilmer was shot down. In 1919 and 1920,
Donovan was sent on secret missions to China and Siberia.

After the war, J. P. Morgan established the Foreign Commercial
Corp. to float $2 billion in bonds in postwar Europe. In February,
1920, he asked Donovan to make a secret tour of Europe to obtain
intelligence relating to these bonds. Cave Brown described this
mission, “Having helped to finance the war, Morgan wished to help
finance the peace by expanding the House of Morgan’s interests
widely.. These activities required the best intelligence from the
bestsourcesin Europe.Donovanandthe Rainbow Division intelligence
officer, Grayson Mallet-Prevost Murphy, had been retained by John
Lord O’Brian’s firm to obtain that intelligence, working in secrecy.”
Morgan reportedly paid Donovan $200,000 for this operation.
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During his European reconnaissance, Donovan met Adolf Hitler
at Berchtesgaden, and spent an evening with him in his room at
Pension Moritz. Donovan later claimed he had not known who Hitler
was, but that he found him a “fascinating talker”.

In 1922, Donovan was appointed U.S. District Attorney for New
York. In 1924, Atty. Gen. Harlan F. Stone, Donovan’s Columbia law
professor, asked him to come to Washington as Asst Atty Gen.
Donovan and his wife bought a house in Georgetown (later the home
of Katharine Meyer) at 1637 30th St. Donovan’s first official act was
to demand that Stone fire J. Edgar Hoover from the Bureau of
Investigation. Instead, Stone, who was Hoover’s patron as well as
Donovan’s, appointed Hoover Director of the Bureau of Investigation
Dec. 18,1924. Donovan also became involved in another political
football, the prosecution of Senator Burton K. Wheeler. Wheeler was
defended by Senator Tom Walsh, one of the most powerful politicians
in Washington, but Donovan, against all advice to the contrary,
insisted on proceeding with the prosecution. It was said that the
charges against Wheeler were “ludicrous”, and Stone asked Donovan
to drop the case, but he stubbornly proceeded to indict Wheeler before
a District of Columbia grand jury. When the case was tried in Great
Falls, the jury deliberated only ten minutes before bringingin a verdict
of acquittal for Wheeler.

Such a boner would have destroyed the careers of most men in
Washington, but Donovan was under the protection of Herbert
Hoover, his associate from World War I. Between 1924 and 1928, he
was Hoover’s closest associate. Hoover took him to the Bohemian
Club, the sacrosanct West Coast powerhouse where he was the
directing figure. Hooverthen persuaded President Coolidge to appoint
Donovan to the Colorado River Commission, a seven state authority
which organized the proposals for the Hoover Dam (later renamed the
Boulder Dam by FDR, and still later, renamed the Hoover Dam by Act
of Congress in 1947.) During the 1920s, Republican politicians
favored the nomination of Dawes for president. Although it seemed
that he was backing a sure loser, Donovan worked as Hoover’s top
strategist for four years. When Hoover was nominated on the first
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ballot at the Republican Convention (a tribute to the power of the
Rothschilds), Donovan wrote his acceptance speech. It wasunderstood
that Donovan was to be Hoover’s running mate. However, Hoover
immediately realized that because he was running against Al Smith,
a Roman Catholic, he would lose the massive anti-catholic vote if he
picked Donovan, also aRoman Catholic, as his running mate. Hoover
had no intention of losing his trump card in the forthcoming election.
He cast Donovan aside without a second thought, and even refused to
consider him for a cabinet post, such as Attorney General, probably
the only time in American politics that the architect of a successful
Presidential campaign was denied a position on the team or in the
Cabinet.

The disheartened Donovan decided to forego political life. In
1929, he organized the law firm of Donovan, Leisure, Newton and
Irvine, with offices at 2 Wall St. He also took a 23 room suite at the
Shoreham Hotel for the firm’s Washington offices. During ensuing
years, Donovan rarely saw his wife, although they were never legally
separated. Dunlop’s biography of Donovan notes that “He always had
his pick of feminine admirers. To many of the women he met,
Donovan was irresistible.” Ruth Donovan stayed at their summer
home on the South Shore of Massachusetts, or at their New york
apartment on Beekman Place.

Despite his disappointment with Hoover, Donovan continued to
take an activerolein national politics. Heran Knox’s campaign for the
Republican nomination in 1936, and his firm defended American
Telephone and Telegraph in an anti-trust suit by the government.
Donovan won handily, which brought in a new influx of business to
his firm.

In 1937, Donovan renewed his association with the Rothschilds.
The Viennese branch of the family had lost extensive holdings in
Bohemia when the Nazis moved into Czechoslovakia. Because
Donovan had already established a network of informants in the
highestechelons of the Nazi government, including Admiral Canaris,
the Rothschilds asked him to salvage their interests. He went to
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Germany to argue their case, but despite his important contacts, he
was defeated by Hitler’s view of the Rothschilds as a symbol of what
he hoped to achieve in his battle against “the international bankers”.
The Rothschilds were not overly concerned; they knew that World
War II was on its way, and that the outcome had been decided in
advance.

Donovan won another important legal victory in 1937, when he
and a staff of 57 lawyers defended 18 oil firms against anti-trust
charges. His clients were let off with nominal fines, and once again
Donovan was considered the winner.

His German contacts now invited him to observe the Nuremberg
maneuvers, as a guest of the German General Staff. He also
accompanied them on a trip to observe the progress of the Spanish
Civil War. Although he was there as an invited guest of “'the Fascists”,
Donovan was soon to build the OSS around the hard core of the
Communist Lincoln Brigade. He met Kim Philby in Spain, who was
writing about the Civil War as a “pro-Nazi” journalist, a pose he
carried off successfully despite hisrecent mariage to Litzi Friedmann,
a fanatical Communist and Zionist provocateur.

On April 10, 1940, Donovan’s daughter, Patricia wrecked her car
near Fredericksburg, Va. and was killed. She was his only daughter;
there was also one son, David, who married Mary Grandin, Patricia’s
roommate at boarding school, and heiress of a wealthy Philadelphia
family. Associates said that Donovan never got over his daughter’s
death. Because he had received the Congressional Medal of Honor,
Patriciawasburiedin Arlington National Cemetery. His griefstricken
wife left for a round the world cruise on IrvingJohnson’s ship,
Yankee.

On May 29,1940, William Stephenson arrived in New York with
a letter to Donovan from Admiral Blinker Hall, a British Naval
Intelligence of ficer whom Donovan had met in 1916. The letter
proposed an American intelligence agency, although we were not at
war. Franklin D. Roosevelt sent Donovan to London with orders to
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develop this program, as an “unofficial observer”. Despite efforts at
secrecy, there was widespread journalistic speculation about his
mission for Roosevelt. He then made a tour of southeast Europe for the
President, gauging the status of the German occupied countries.
Although this was an obvious espionage mission, the Germans placed
noobstaclesin his path. They were anxious to maintain good relations
with the United States.

After Donovan delivered his report to the President, he was named
Coordinator of Information by the White House. Because he had had
no experience in propaganda work, the office was later split into the
Office of War Information, Executive Order 9128, and the Office of
Strategic Services, Military Order of June 13, 1942. Donovan was
placed in charge of the OSS.

The “new” agency was from the outset merely an outpost of
British Intelligence. On Sept. 18,1941, Col. E.I. Jacob, Churchill’s
military secretary, was informed by Maj. Desmond Morton Church,
Churchill’s liason with the British secret service, “Another most
secret fact of which the Prime Minister is aware is that to all intents
and purposes U.S. Security is being run for them at the President’s
request by the British. A British officer sits in Washington with Mr.
Edgar Hoover and General Bill Donovan for this purpose. It is of
course essential that this fact should not be known.”

For some months, Donovan had been living in a suite at the St.
Regis Hotel in New York. He and William Stephenson had b